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I. Introduction 

William and Julia Rooney were prominent early settlers of Chicago (Cook County, Illinois - United States) dating back to 1835, two years before the city was 
incorporated. They still have direct descendants who reside in Chicago as of 2024, 189 years later, making the Rooney lineage one of the oldest in the city. 

William Rooney was born in Urard, County Tipperary (Ireland) on Christmas Day in 1811. He was baptized at the Catholic Church located in Gortnahoe [Exhibit 
63-2]. His parents were Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer, who were farmers. The exact date and location of Julia Phelan’s birth remains unclear, but was probably 
nearby around 1816. Her parents are also unknown. 

William Rooney and Julia Phelan were married around 1834, most likely in the border region of Tipperary and Kilkenny counties. They lived in Ardreagh within 
the Urlingford Catholic Parish in Co. Kilkenny when their eldest child was born in 1835 shortly before traveling to the United States. 

The Rooney family spent their initial years in the United States traveling back and forth between two residences in Chicago and the State of New York, probably 
New York City. There is consensus that William Rooney arrived first in Chicago while his wife and family remained in New York. The entire family became 
permanent residents of Chicago around 1838. William and Julia had a total of eleven children (three sons and eight daughters): Alice (1835 - Co. Kilkenny), John 
(about 1837 - New York), Hugh (about 1838 - New York or Chicago), Anna (about 1840 - Chicago), Elizabeth (1842 - Chicago), Hannah (About 1844 - Chicago), 
William (1845 - Chicago), Mary (1848 - Chicago), Katherine (1849 - Chicago), Margaret (1851 - Chicago), and Josephine (about 1856 - Chicago).  

Between 1835 and 1885, William and Julia Rooney acquired a considerable amount of real estate in Chicago and the suburbs. These properties included a 
residential home they built in the Gold Coast neighborhood at present-day 43 E. Division Street; two commercial buildings built in Downtown near Franklin and 
Lake; and a large farm with timber lots in the present-day suburbs of Des Plaines and Mount Prospect. William Rooney’s namesake Downtown building on the 
southeast corner of Franklin and Lake was made a Chicago Landmark in 1989. The City of Chicago Commission on Landmarks recognized William Rooney as 
one of the investors and businessmen who helped rebuild Downtown after the 1871 Chicago Fire. His residential home on Division Street was designated an 
architecturally and historically significant building by the City of Chicago. 

Photographs of William and Julia Rooney were on display at the 1876 Centennial Exposition held in Philadelphia to commemorate the 100 year anniversary of 
America. Copies of these portraits are part of the photographic collection at the Chicago History Museum.  

William and Julia Rooney joined the Old Settlers Society that was formed within the Calumet Club of Chicago in 1879. They were active participants in the annual 
receptions until their deaths, both in 1885. Status as an “Old Settler” was defined as permanent residence prior to 1840.  

William and Julia Rooney were well-known amongst the earliest settlers of Chicago and they were mentioned in several Chicago history books. Today, William 
and Julia are best remembered as pioneers of the city and for their real estate endeavors during the rebuilding efforts after the Chicago Fire of 1871. 

This biography has been extensively and meticulously compiled by their 3x-great-grandson Michael E. Byczek, a licensed Illinois attorney and real estate broker 
from Chicago. The definitive compilation and research, both legal and real estate, is the only accurate source of genealogy that is approved by him and his family. 
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II. Old Settlers of Chicago 

William Rooney first arrived in Chicago in the year 1835, two years before the city was incorporated. The Rooney family initially spent some of their time in the 
State of New York before permanently settling in Chicago prior to 1840. There is a suggestion that William Rooney was already in Chicago by 1833, but this 
would have required him to travel back and forth between Chicago and Ireland. The year 1835 is more reasonable for his initial arrival. 

The population of Chicago in 1832 was 200 total individuals [4]. The residents voted to incorporate as a town in 1833 (versus a city in 1837). The population of 
Chicago in 1837 was estimated to have been around 4,000. William Rooney first arrived in Chicago while the population ranged between these lower and upper 
estimates. Chicago’s population in 2023, according to the U.S. Census Bureau, was about 2.6 million. 

It remains unknown whether Julia accompanied William on his first trip to Chicago, or whether she stayed in New York with their infant daughter Alice. Their 
second child (John) was, without doubt, born in New York. There is uncertainty for their third child (Hugh) as both Illinois and New York are listed on different 
documents. Their fourth child (Anna) was, without doubt, born in Chicago. Therefore, the time period after the second and before the fourth child is the best 
estimate for when Julia Rooney permanently settled in Chicago, which would have been about 1838. There is consensus amongst historical documents that list 
William as arriving in Chicago in 1835 and Julia within three years later. 

It also remains unclear whether William and Julia Rooney both traveled back and forth between Chicago and New York prior to their permanent residence around 
1838. It is possible that Julia had not been to Chicago prior to 1838 and that William was traveling alone. The Rooney family remained in contact with their 
relatives and/or friends in New York throughout their life, as evidenced by sending notice to the New York newspapers when their youngest daughter Josephine 
passed away in 1879. 

There had been multiple attempts in Chicago throughout the decades to form an Old Settler’s Society without great success until 1879 when the Calumet Club 
established a society within it’s own club that was dedicated to the earliest history of the city. The Club honored the early settlers with annual receptions, a 
historical collection, and photographs of the pioneers. Membership required permanent residence in Chicago prior to 1840.  

The Calumet Club hosted an annual reception for the Old Settlers held each May. William and Julia Rooney joined the Old Settler’s Society after the initial 1879 
event and were well-known amongst the other members. The Old Settlers were asked to contribute their photographs. William Rooney’s photograph was on 
display [Exhibit 8]. The year 1837 was listed for his membership and 1838 was written on the photograph. 

William Rooney’s membership as an Old Settler was mentioned in at least two published history books of Chicago [Exhibits 4 and 5]. 

At each reception, the Old Settlers paid tribute to those who died since the previous event. William Rooney passed away in May 1885 and was honored at that 
month’s event (the 7th reception). His official death notice for the Old Settlers reception listed 1835 as the year he had first arrived. Julia Rooney passed away in 
December 1885 and was honored at the 8th reception held in May 1886. Her death tribute showed 1837 as the year that she arrived in Chicago. Refer to Exhibit 6 
for both death tributes. 

One explanation for the difference between 1835 and 1837 is whether these years referred to first arrival or permanent residence and whether Julia had stayed in 
New York for two years.. 

The Fergus 1839 Directory of Chicago was a commemorative edition published in 1876. The purpose was to show what such a directory would have been if 
compiled in the year 1839. William Rooney was listed as a farmer, which suggests he already operated a farm to have been identified in the records used to 
recreate such a directory of residents for that year. An 1843 commemorative directory, published in 1896, referred to William Rooney, who was then deceased, as 
one of the Old Settlers who worked as a blacksmith. Refer to Exhibit 7 for both directories. 
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Exhibit 4 

 

1st Edition (Three Volume) History of Chicago by Alfred Andreas (1886) [4A] 
Actual items from The Michael E. Byczek Collection (Photo credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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William Rooney was named among the list of deceased Old Settlers in Volume III [4B] 

Photo of actual book (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 

William Rooney’s name is near the bottom of the list (right column) with date of death as May 5, 1885 
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Exhibit 5 

 

1st Edition (rebound cover) of Discovery and Conquests of the North-West by Rufus Blanchard (1879) [5A] 
Actual item from The Michael E. Byczek Collection (Photo credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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William Rooney was listed as a member of the Old Settler’s Society as having arrived in May 1837 and that he was born in Ireland [5B] 
Photo of Actual Book (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 

William Rooney’s entry appears near the bottom of this image 
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Exhibit 6 
Old Settler Death Tributes 

 

Tribute to William Rooney’s death - Newspaper announcement of the 1885 Annual Reception (near bottom of 2nd column) 
Arrival in 1835 - Chicago Inter Ocean. 5/22/1885 [6A] 
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Chicago Tribune. 5/22/1885 [6B] 
William Rooney listed in 2nd column near bottom, without an arrival date 
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Official Order of Exercises for the 7th Annual Reception of Old Settlers in May 1885 [6C] 
William Rooney’s Death with 1835 listed as year of arrival 
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Official Order of Exercises for the 8th Annual Reception of Old Settlers in May 1886 [6D] 
Julia Rooney’s Death with 1837 listed as year of arrival 

Old Settler death tributes printed in the newspaper for Julia Rooney are shown in Appendix II-B and Appendix II-C alongside a copy of her original Will. 
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Exhibit 7 

 

Original 1839 and 1843 Commemorative Fergus Chicago Directories from 1876 and 1896, respectively  [7A] 
Actual items from the Michael E. Byczek Collection (Photo Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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1839 Commemorative Chicago Directory [7B] 
William Rooney listed as a farmer in Maine (refers to the Town of Maine, which is present-day Des Plaines) 

Photo from actual page in the booklet (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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1843 Commemorative Chicago Directory [7C] 
William Rooney, deceased when this booklet was compiled, listed as a Blacksmith without an address 

Photo from actual page in the booklet (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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Exhibit 8 
Newspaper articles that show Old Settlers with photographs on display at the Calumet Club 

 

  
William Rooney listed in 2nd column without biographical information - Announcement for the 2nd Annual Reception (relevant portion) 

Chicago Tribune. 5/21/1880 [8A] 
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Chicago Inter Ocean. 5/21/1880 [8B] 

William Rooney listed in 2nd column without biographical information (relevant portions shown) 
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III. The William and Julia Rooney Photographs 

A Chicago photographer named C.D. Mosher took portraits of Chicago’s earliest settlers around 1876. The objective was to display these photographs, along with 
their biographical sketches, at the 1876 Centennial Exposition held in Philadelphia [Exhibit 11D]. Photographs of William and Julia Rooney were part of this 
exhibition. All photographs of the Old Settlers that were on display were later published in the 1892 book, “The Story of Chicago” [Exhibit 9]. C.D. Mosher also 
used William Rooney’s photograph as part of a special plate featuring the Chicago Old Settlers, which was later published in an 1893 trade journal, “The Inland 
Printer” [Exhibit 10]. 

C.D. Mosher capitalized on the success of his photographs at the Philadelphia World’s Fair with a memorial dedicated to Chicago, similar to a time capsule 
[Exhibit 11C]. The project involved cataloging not just the Old Settler photographs, but other prominent residents, to be sealed until 1976 to celebrate the second 
centennial of America. C.D. Mosher wanted the descendants of these Old Settlers to discover their family pedigree through photography [14]. 

William and Julia Rooney’s photographs were part of this project [Exhibit 11A, 11B]. C.D. Mosher called his initiative “The Memorial Offering to Chicago”. 

Copies of the same photographs for William and Julia Rooney were used at the 1876 Philadelphia World’s Fair, the Old Settler’s Society at the Calumet Club, and 
the C.D. Mosher Memorial Offering to Chicago. The portraits, perhaps the originals from the Calumet Club, are now part of the photographic collection of the 
Chicago History Museum [Exhibits 12 and 13]. 

William and Julia Rooney must have contemplated the future upon hearing that their photographs were placed into a time capsule for their descendants to discover 
100 years later. They might have imagined which of their eleven children would have descendants who would find and hold the photographs. 

The first known descendants of William and Julia Rooney to view these photographs were Michael M. Byczek, their 2x-great-grandson, and his son  
Michael E. Byczek, 3x-great-grandson, in the year 2006 (about 130 years after the photographs were taken). They already knew that William and Julia Rooney 
were members of the Old Settler’s Society and discovered the photographs at the Chicago Historical Society (now called the History Museum). 

William and Julia Rooney’s daughter Kittie A. Talbot was a co-executor of her mother’s Will. She married Edward H. Talbot in 1880 at Holy Name Cathedral in 
Chicago. Their only daughter Marie Talbot married Martin Flanagan, also at Holy Name, in 1922. Their eldest child Marie Flanagan married Michael S. Byczek in 
1950 at St. Bridget’s in the Bridgeport neighborhood. Michael M. Byczek, their eldest child, married Betty A. Bykowski in 1974 at St. Helen’s in the Ukrainian 
Village neighborhood. Their eldest child is Michael E. Byczek. 

It was Michael E. Byczek who first personally viewed each photograph at the History Museum. He and his father purchased high-resolution digital copies and 
licenses for both photographs from the Chicago History Museum upon discovery of the images.  

The photographs are now publicly accessible through the Chicago History Museum’s website. Julia Rooney’s photograph was originally indexed as “Mrs Van 
Rooney”. Michael E. Byczek corrected this mistake by explaining to the archives that “Van” was mistaken for the abbreviation “Wm”. The photograph should 
have been indexed “Mrs Wm Rooney”, not “Mrs Van Rooney”. The Chicago History Museum now displays the correct description for the photograph. 
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Exhibit 9 

 

1st Edition (single volume) and 2nd Edition (two volume) books “The Story of Chicago” by Joseph Kirkland (both editions published in 1892) [9A] 
Actual Items from the Michael E. Byczek collection (Photo Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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William and Julia Rooney are both listed as “Wm Rooney” with the date of 1838 [9B] 
Photo of actual page of the book (1st Edition) [Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024] 

Photo insert prior to Page 129 

The multi-page photo inserts of the Old Settlers are described as: 

This sheet of “memorial portraits,” and the others facing pages 105, 112, 113, 120, 121, 128, 129, 136, and 137,  
are facsimiles of those exhibited at the Philadelphia Centennial Exposition of 1876, by C.D. Mosher 
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Exhibit 10 

 

Public domain reprint of “The Inland Printer” - Volume 11 (April-September 1893) [10A] 
Actual Item from the Michael E. Byczek Collection (Photo Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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Actual photo of page from the book (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) [10B] 
Photo insert prior to page of May 1893, about p. 118 

William Rooney’s photo is shown in the 2nd row, third from the right 
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Exhibit 11 
C.D. Mosher and the 1876 Centennial Albums 

 

“Catalogue of the Names and Occupations of Prominent Persons who have sat for  
Memorial Photographs for Mosher’s Memorial Offering to Chicago” 

Julia Rooney was listed amongst the “Lady Old Settlers” with 1838 listed as the year she came to Chicago (third column near top) [11A] 
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William Rooney was listed among the “Old Settlers” with the date of 1838 (middle column near bottom) [11B] 
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Newspaper article about the Memorial Offering with reference to the 1876 Philadelphia Centennial Exposition [11C] 
Chicago Tribune (2/28/1885) 
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Newspaper article that described the C.D. Mosher photographs on display at the 1876 Philadelphia Centennial Exposition [11D] 
Chicago Tribune (5/21/1876) 
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Exhibit 12 

 

Catalog entry for the photograph of William Rooney at the Chicago History Museum 

Page  of 25 359



Exhibit 13 

 

Catalog entry for the photograph of Julia Rooney at the Chicago History Museum that shows the updated title provided by Michael E. Byczek 
The photo tag itself shows “Mrs Van Rooney” while the description is titled “Julia Rooney, wife of William Rooney” 
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IV. Real Estate 

William and Julia Rooney were known amongst the Old Settlers as having acquired a considerable amount of real estate in Chicago and the suburbs. The Chicago 
Fire of 1871 destroyed most public access to real estate records prior to that time. The full extent and chronology of all properties they once owned may never be 
known. The effort to fully document the properties they owned is an ongoing project.  

Michael E. Byczek, William and Julia Rooney’s 3x-great-grandson, is a licensed Illinois attorney and managing real estate broker in Chicago. He began to research 
legal records and real estate transactions during his studies at The John Marshall Law School in Chicago between 2003-2006. This included access to microfiche 
archives at City Hall and research through the Cook County Clerk of Court. Over the years, he has compiled a collection of records from the 1830s through the 
1871 Fire to reconstruct a historical narrative that has otherwise been lost.  

Reconstructed records after 1835 were combined with recorded real estate documents after October 1871. Through these efforts the history of William and Julia 
Rooney’s ownership of the following properties has been fully documented and preserved for posterity: 

1. The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building (West side of Fifth Ave, now Wells St, between Lake St and Couch Place in Downtown Chicago) 
2. William Rooney’s Building (present-day 235 W. Lake St - southeast corner of Franklin and Lake Streets in Downtown Chicago) 
3. The William and Julia Rooney Family Residence (present-day 43 E. Division Street in the Gold Coast neighborhood of Chicago) 
4. The William and Julia Rooney Farm in present-day Des Plaines and Mt. Prospect, which spanned more than 500 acres of land 
5. The oldest house in Mount Prospect located at 15 S. George 
6. Several non-adjacent timber lots in present-day Des Plaines, which totaled over 20 acres 
7. One commercial lot on Lake Street between Peoria and Green Streets in the West Loop neighborhood of Chicago 
8. Eight residential lots between Wentworth Ave, State Street, 57th Street, and 57th Place in the Chicago neighborhoods of Englewood and Washington Park 
9. An ownership interest in 3/8 of the entire “Block 36” in Downtown Chicago on the north side of Randolph Street between State and Dearborn Streets 

Refer to Appendix I for representative transcriptions and actual documents for these properties. 
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1. The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building 

William Rooney acquired a single lot, that was about 20-foot wide, on Wells St (known as Fifth Ave at the time) between Lake Street and Couch Place around 
1867. There was a building on the lot, which would have been destroyed by the Chicago Fire of 1871 [Exhibit 16]. The building was actually damaged during an 
earlier localized fire in 1868 [Exhibit 17]. 

In 1872, during the rebuilding efforts after the 1871 Fire, William Rooney partnered with the owner of the neighboring lot, Peter Ryan, to combine their properties 
and construct a double-lot 40-foot commercial building [Exhibit 15]. The new building would sit on both of their lots, but each would independently own their 
respective half. The building did not seem to have an official name. Michael E. Byczek has named the property The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building. 
Detailed drawings [Exhibit 18] and partial photographs [Exhibit 20] exist, even though the building has since been replaced. 

The address of the combined building was 40-42 Fifth Ave [Exhibit 19]. William Rooney owned the left half (south half) that was numbered 42 Fifth Ave (also 
known as 42 Wells). The 1911 renumbering guide for Downtown properties appears to have changed the address to 182 N. Wells. It is difficult to determine the 
present-day address because the building doesn’t exist anymore [Exhibit 22 and 23]. Maps from the time period after the renumbering tend to show an even wider 
building without individual addresses, as if multiple buildings may have been merged into a single number.  

William Rooney arranged for his son Hugh to manage their family cigar business in the building after construction [Exhibit 21]. 

The building was sold in 1880 after William Rooney accumulated liens on the property. The terms of the sale required the buyer to pay these liens. However, the 
buyer did not pay the debts and kept the lease payments collected from the tenants. A subsequent buyer in 1885 discovered the outstanding liens and pursued 
default against William and Julia Rooney to clear the title. As a result, the building was sold at auction to pay the debt that William and Julia Rooney thought had 
been resolved five years earlier.  

It is unknown whether the Rooney family sustained any financial loss as a result, or whether the auction itself resolved the outstanding liens. It is possible that the 
stress inflicted upon William Rooney may have contributed to his death on May 5, 1885. The auction had taken place on April 11th. 

The drawings and photographs that survive are a lasting tribute to the first known building that William Rooney constructed Downtown after the 1871 Fire. 
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Exhibit 15 

 

Newspaper article about the permit to construct the building - Chicago Evening Mail (7/11/1872) 
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Exhibit 16 
Pre-1871 Buildings 

 

1857 Birds Eye Drawing of the property that William Rooney acquired around 1867 [16A] 
Fifth Ave is along the bottom with Lake St along the right, Randolph on the left, Franklin along the top, and Couch Place vertical in the center.  

It is unknown whether the buildings shown in this 1857 map are the same buildings that existed when William Rooney acquired ownership ten years later.  
His property was within the collection of five two-story buildings right of Couch Place. William Rooney’s building was the 2nd building right of Couch Place.  

It is unknown whether each building was situated on a single lot. The SE corner of Franklin and Lake is visible in the top right of this image. 
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1868-69 Sanborn Insurance Map [16B] 

Lake Street is along the bottom, Fifth Ave along the left and Franklin on the Right with Couch Place along the top 

William Rooney’s building at 42 Fifth Ave is the center of the five buildings facing Fifth Ave, but the dimensions do not exactly match the 1857 Birds Eye 
The building located on the SE corner of Franklin and Lake that William Rooney acquired in 1870 is shown in the lower right corner (223 Lake) 
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Exhibit 17 

 

Newspaper article describing damage caused to William Rooney’s building at 42 Wells from a fire in January 1868 
Chicago Tribune (1/18/1868) 

It is unknown whether this is the same building shown in the 1857 Birds Eye Map, or whether it was rebuilt before or after William Rooney’s ownership 
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Exhibit 18 
Post-1871 Drawings  

 

1898 Birds Eye view from the same perspective as the 1857 image [18A] 

The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building is the double width building left of the thin white building along the bottom of this image (Fifth Ave with rail tracks) 
Lake Street is on the right side of the image and Randolph along the left. William Rooney’s half of the double width building is the left half.  

William Rooney’s Building on the SE corner of Franklin and Lake is visible on the top right corner. 
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1893 Birds Eye Map [18B]  
Both of William Rooney’s buildings on Fifth Ave and the SE corner of Franklin and Lake St are visible 

 

Page  of 34 359



Exhibit 19 

 

1891 Rascher Insurance Map 

Precise details for The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building with the address 40-42 Fifth Ave / Wells (along the right side of the image) 
William Rooney’s Building is shown at 223 Lake (top left corner) with Samuel Cole’s Building wrapped around it facing both Lake and Franklin 
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Exhibit 20 
Actual Photos 

 

The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building is visible along the right side of the photograph next to the thin white building (looking south on Wells from Lake) 

Photographic Collection from the U.S. Library of Congress [20A] 
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Another perspective that shows The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building at the very bottom left corner of the photo [20B] 
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Exhibit 21 

Hugh Rooney’s business was listed as “Wholesale and Retail” Cigars  
and Tobacco 

The 1875-76 residential Chicago Directory (below) lists Hugh and  
William Rooney both involved with the business located at 42 Fifth [21A] 

The business directory (right) for the same year shows that the company was 
operating under the name of Hugh Rooney and was located at 44 Fifth [21B] 

Note: There were discrepancies in the actual address of the building  
because it was a double building operating under multiple addresses.  
It is also possible that mistakes were made when typing the street number. 
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Exhibit 22 

 

The 1950 Sanborn Insurance Map (Fifth/Wells along the right and Franklin along the left 

The present-day addresses for both buildings are shown, but the address on Fifth Ave is approximate because the building appears merged with the next property 
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Exhibit 23 

 

The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building would have been approximately the location of the two stores to the left of the thin white building 
William Rooney’s half of the building was approximately the middle of the three stores 

Photo Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2022 
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2. William Rooney’s Building 

The most enduring of William Rooney’s real estate construction projects in Downtown Chicago was his namesake building located at present-day 235 W. Lake 
Street on the southeast corner of Franklin and Lake [Exhibit 24]. It was named William Rooney’s Building [Exhibit 26]. Construction took place in 1873 around the 
corner from The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building. Afterwards, William Rooney simultaneously owned two buildings he constructed on the same block.  

	 William Rooney built upon … the premises on the corner of Franklin and Lake Streets … a substantial building at great expense … at an  
	 expense of about the sum of fifteen thousand dollars; that the said William Rooney paid out upon said premises large sums of money for taxes  
	 and special assessments and other improvements; that he caused to be placed upon the building so erected by him an inscription or legend  
	 as follows “William Rooney’s Building”; that he sold a valuable farm, theretofore owned by him in said County of Cook, and invested the money  
	 in said building; that he sold other valuable properties belonging to him, for the purpose of making the improvements upon the said premises on  
	 the corner of Lake and Franklin Streets. 

	 - Kittie A. Talbot and Bridget Anna Boucher - Joint statement filed in court documents during their mother’s probate case [refer to citation for Exhibit 54] 

In 1997, the building and those immediately adjacent were made a collective Chicago Landmark called “The Lake-Franklin Group” [Exhibits 27B and 29]. It is 
also listed in the City of Chicago Historic Survey [Exhibit 27A]. William Rooney was recognized as amongst the businessmen and investors who helped rebuild 
Downtown after the 1871 Chicago Fire [Exhibit 29]. There is uncertainty about the architects, but there is a suggestion of Burling & Adler since they built several 
nearby buildings. It appears that the photograph used during the landmark review is from the Art Institute of Chicago [Exhibit 30]. 

Unfortunately, those who conducted the review for landmark consideration mistakenly identified William Rooney as William Rowney. As a result, the building is 
officially known as “The Rowney Building” or otherwise having been built for “William Rowney”. At the time, William Rooney still owned a large farm in  
“The Town of Maine”, as present-day Des Plaines was known at the time. The landmark review also mistakenly referred to him as an “out of town” investor, 
possibly because they did not know the former name of Des Plaines. It also appears that the landmark review may have mistook tenant records based on the new 
and old addresses. “William Rowney” is the official name of the building used by some Chicago architecture guide books [Exhibit 28]. Michael E. Byczek 
contacted the City of Chicago Department responsible for the landmark in 2006 to correct the spelling of William Rooney’s name. The response acknowledged a 
possible spelling error, but it does not appear that the records were updated. Due diligence during landmark review would have revealed William and Julia 
Rooney’s ownership of the property, their residence, and the correct spelling of their names. 

The original address of the building was 223 Lake Street before it was renumbered. The building, which was 20-foot wide, was later merged with the property next 
door to form a double building with the address of 233-235 W. Lake. Refer to Exhibits related to The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building for combined maps 
and images that show both buildings on Fifth Ave and the Lake-Franklin Group. A birds eye view prior to construction of the elevated train tracks is shown in 
Exhibit 25. The photograph from the Art Institute of Chicago shows the original building prior to the renovation project that doubled the width. 

William Rooney acquired the property in 1870. The original building was owned by the family of his daughter Elizabeth’s husband Caesar Periolat. The 1871 
Chicago Fire destroyed the building, and William Rooney proceeded with new construction in 1873. He transferred ownership to his wife Julia in 1885. However 
her probate proceedings took nine years to finalize with the result that William Rooney’s Building was sold at auction in 1893. 

The most recent sale took place in 2023 for a reported $2.9 million. This sale was for the combined sublots 2, 3, and 4. William Rooney’s Building is sublot 3. 
Sublot 2 is the building next door on Lake while Sublot 4 is a portion of the building behind these two properties along Franklin. The total real estate taxes for the 
year 2023 (payable in 2024) was $45,000. This payment is presumed to cover all three sublots.  

The Cook County PIN for the combined sublots is 17-09-430-020-0000 with an official address of 233 W. Lake St and 19,800 building square footage. 
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Exhibit 24 
Present-Day Photos (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2017) 
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The Landmark designation plaque is located on William Rooney’s Building on the Franklin side near the front of the building (visible in this photo) 
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Exhibit 25 

 

1893 Birds Eye Map 
William Rooney’s Building is visible near the lower left corner along the left side of the image prior to the elevated rail track construction 
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Exhibit 26 

 

1877-78 Chicago Directory [26A] 

William Rooney’s Building is listed on the SE corner of Lake and Franklin 
His residence is listed as 586 Division (present-day 43 E. Division) with reference to both his farm and real estate occupation 

It is possible that the two William Rooney names could refer to father and son, but it is more likely that William Rooney, the father, was listed twice. 
For example, the real estate entry could refer to his status as a businessmen (SE corner of Franklin and Lake), while the farmer entry refers to his personal details. 

 

New building permits - Chicago Inter Ocean (6/13/1873) [26B] 

It appears that the government’s name for the building was derived from a mistake on the building permit instead of reviewing real estate records 
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Exhibit 27 

 

The SE corner of Franklin and Lake (233-235 W. Lake) is listed in the City of Chicago Historic Survey [27A] as “Rowney’s Building” 
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The Lake-Franklin Group Landmark as described on the City of Chicago website [27B] 
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Exhibit 28 

 

1st through 3rd editions of the Chicago Architectural Guide Books “AIA Guide to Chicago” [28A] 
Actual items in the Michael E. Byczek Collection (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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Actual page from the 1st edition [28B] 
Photo Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024 
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Exhibit 29 

	 Official City of Chicago booklet for the 
	 Lake-Franklin Group Landmark. 

	 This booklet (representative segments shown 
	 below) describe the boundaries of each building, 
	 a brief history of construction, and a 	 	 	
	 detailed explanation of William Rooney’s 	 	
	 Building. 

	 The City of Chicago recognized William 	 	
	 Rooney as one of the investors and businessmen 		
	 who rebuilt Downtown, but misspelled his name 
	 as “William Rowney” who was described as an 	 	
	 “out of town investor”. 

	 This booklet was originally obtained by  
	 Michael E. Byczek through email 	 	 	
	 communication with the City of Chicago 	 	
	 around 2006 to inform them of the spelling error. 
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Exhibit 30 

 

The presumptive photograph used by the City of Chicago when reviewing William Rooney’s Building landmark documents 
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3. The William and Julia Rooney Family Residence 

The William and Julia Rooney family legacy is best preserved by their prestigious residential home built in the Chicago Gold Coast neighborhood [Exhibit 31].  

In 1875, William Rooney entered into a partnership with Edward Harland to construct two houses on land that Harland owned on Division Street at the  
T-intersection of Astor Street [Exhibit 33]. The design specified two row houses. William Rooney would assume full responsibility for construction. In exchange, 
Edward Harland would transfer ownership of the easterly half to William Rooney, who arranged for his wife Julia to be named on the deed. 

The contract between William Rooney and Edward Harland was signed on August 11, 1875:  

This agreement made and entered into this eleventh day of August AD 1875, by and between Edward Harland and William Rooney both of Chicago, Cook 
County in the State of Illinois … That said Harland is the owner of a certain lot or piece of land … that said Harland desires to have erected … a block of two 
brick dwelling houses of two stories and basement each of not less than twenty feet each in width and according to plans and specifications attached hereto 
and made a part of this agreement and said Harland hereby agrees with said Rooney that if he the said Rooney will proceed at once to build and erect such 
dwelling houses according to such plans and specifications … and have the same fully built and completed by or before November first 1875, then said 
Harland will give said Rooney a deed of conveyance to the easterly one of the two houses with the lot on which it stands. […] The said Harland also further 
agrees to furnish to said Rooney in proper amounts and at proper times all the bricks necessary for the erection of said houses and also to furnish the said 
Rooney, two thousand five hundred dollars in cash and material.  

- Copy of the agreement (joint statement by William and Julia Rooney during a legal dispute with Edward Harland in 1880) [refer to citation for Exhibit 3] 

The City of Chicago designated the house as an architecturally and historically significant building [Exhibit 35]. A renovation project around 2006 combined the 
two houses into a single family home [Exhibit 32]. The most recent brokerage advertisement lists an interior building square footage of 5,500. When William 
Rooney built both houses in 1875, he undertook a financial expenditure of $2,500. The most recent real estate transaction for the property in 2014 was reported as  
$4.2 million. The total real estate tax payment for the year 2023 (payable in 2024) was about $70,000. 

The east half of the two houses originally had the address of 586 E. Division. The Rooney family moved into their new home around November 1875. Their 
daughters Hannah, Kittie, and Mary were married from the house in 1876, 1880, and 1881 respectively. It was also in the home where their children Josephine and 
Hugh passed away in 1879 and 1881. Both William and Julia Rooney also passed away in 1885 while living in the home they had built.  

Four years after construction, in 1879, Julia Rooney and her eldest unmarried daughter Mary, were listed amongst the most fashionable and prominent ladies of 
Chicago [Exhibit 36]. In recognition of this distinction, Michael E. Byczek has affectionately paid tribute to his 3x-great-grandmother as “Lady Julia”. 

As a result of Julia Rooney’s probate proceedings, the house was sold at auction in 1893 [Exhibit 55]. Mary (Rooney) Riley purchased her parent’s house at the 
auction and it remained in her family until around the 1930s or 40s.  

It appears that the land immediately to the east was originally unbuildable. Therefore, an address does not seem to have been assigned to that land. During Julia 
Rooney’s probate proceedings, a developer negotiated new boundaries that provided an opportunity to build a house next door. Since an address was not available, 
the two houses that William Rooney had built were renumbered. The address 586 E. Division was given to the new house next door while the Rooney half of the 
house was assigned 584 E. Division. During the 1909 renumbering initiative, the 584 address was changed to present-day 43 E. Division. [Exhibit 34]. 

The property spans three Cook County PINs: 17-03-200-017-0000, 17-03-200-018-0000, and 17-03-200-019-0000. This represents the two units and side strip of 
land that was used as a private alley (alongside the east Rooney half). 
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Exhibit 31 

 

The William and Julia Rooney Family Residence was built in 1875 located at present-day 43 E. Division in the Gold Coast neighborhood 
The Rooney family owned the left half of the two buildings - Photo Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2017 
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Exhibit 32 

 

Image used by the Cook County Assessor for tax assessment data posted to their government website taken in the year 2000 [32A] 
[Image saved in 2006] 
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A renovation project in 2006 combined the two homes into a single family property [32B] 
Photo Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2007 
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Exhibit 33 

 

List of new building permits 

Chicago Tribune (8/15/1875) 
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Exhibit 34 

 

1886 Robinson Insurance Map [34A] - The two houses have multiple empty lots on both sides (diagonal layout near right side of image) 
The houses have the addresses of 584 and 586 Division. Lot number 17 to the east has irregular boundary dimensions. 
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1892 Rascher Insurance Map [34B] 
The two buildings now have the address 582 and 584 Division 

The new house built next door to the Rooney property is now 586 Division 
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1910 Sanborn Insurance Map [34C] 
The two buildings have been renumbered as 41 and 43 E. Division 
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Exhibit 35 

 

City of Chicago Historic Survey for the two properties located at 41-43 E. Division 
The double building is classified as “Queen Anne” style 
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Exhibit 36 

Julia Rooney and her 
eldest unmarried  
daughter Mary 
were named as amongst 
Chicago’s most 
prominent and 
fashionable ladies 
in 1879, four years after 
the Rooney family 
residence was built at 
586 Division 
(present-day 43 E. Division) 
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4. The William and Julia Rooney Farm 

William and Julia Rooney owned and operated a large farm that spanned both present-day Des Plaines and Mount Prospect. The Des Plaines land was their 
primary farm and most associated with the family. At the time, the area was known as “The Town of Maine” as it was located in “Maine Township”. The land in 
present-day Mount Prospect was located in “Elk Grove Township” and the area was known as “Elk Grove”. Michael E. Byczek refers to these two farms as the 
“Des Plaines Farm” and “Mount Prospect Farm”. The land was continuous and adjacent. 

Unlike the legal description or street address for residential property, these farms were described in legal documents using the grid-based rectangular coordinate 
system. The State of Illinois is divided into 640 acre squares. Not all squares have a full 640 acres, but each is called a “Section”. Each Section is further divided 
into quarters, each having about 160 acres. These quarters are NW, NE, SW, and SE. There are a total of 36 Section squares per township, numbered 1-36. There 
are also different range and meridian reference lines. Large amounts of land can be located, such as a farm, using these quarters, sections, and townships.  

The “Des Plaines Farm” was located in Section 7, Township 41, Range 12, Range Direction E, Township Direction N, and Meridian 3. Michael E. Byczek also 
refers to this land as the “Section 7” farm. William Rooney’s farm was located in the NW and SW quarters of Section 7. 

The “Mount Prospect Farm” was in Section 12, Township 41, Range 11, Range Direction E, Township Direction N, and Meridian 3. This land can also be referred 
to as the “Section 12” farm. William Rooney’s land was located in the NE and SE quarters of Section 12. 

These two sections, 7 and 12, are not part of the same 1-36 section grid as the sections are referenced by different range numbers. It just so happens that the 
“Section 7” farm in present-day Des Plaines and “Section 12” farm in present-day Mount Prospect were adjacent continuous land. The NE and SE quarters of the 
“Section 12” farm along with the NW and SW quarters of the “Section 7” farm are adjacent.  

Refer to Exhibit 37 for a map of these sectional grid-based legal descriptions and location of the William Rooney land. The vertical north-south boundary between 
the “Section 12” and “Section 7” farms is present-day Mt. Prospect Rd. The horizontal west-east boundary that served as the northern border of both farms is 
present-day Central Rd. The “Section 7” farm was immediately SE of the intersection of Mt. Prospect and Central Roads. The “Section 12” farm was immediately 
SW of the same intersection. 

The boundaries for the Rooney farm were not the same from year to year. Both William and Julia Rooney owned land in their own names and entered into several 
transactions to buy and sell portions of their farm over time. The land was both improved and unimproved. 

Michael E. Byczek has estimated that the farm may have covered 530 acres, but not necessarily all owned at the same time. He concluded that William Rooney 
purchased an unknown number of acres directly from either/both the federal government and State of Illinois as early as 1835. Land patents had strict 
requirements, such as payment in full. It was common for individuals to purchase land and fail to satisfy the requirements. The same land was sold and resold until 
a purchaser completed all necessary paperwork. This appears to have happened with William Rooney’s original ownership claims.  

The federal government auctioned a portion of the “Des Plaines Farm” in 1850. William Rooney filed a claim for a land patent, but was denied. He had to buy the 
land back from the buyer at the auction. 

The earliest documented reference to William Rooney’s farm was the commemorative 1839 Chicago Directory published in 1876 that referred to “Maine”. William 
Rooney stated in his own words during an 1876 court case that he purchased a timber lot in Des Plaines around 1843 to use for his nearby farm.  

William and Julia Rooney’s eldest son John married Ellen Butler around 1863. In recognition of the marriage, William Rooney arranged for his son to acquire 
ownership of a portion of the “Mount Prospect Farm” located in the NE quarter of Section 12. It is unclear what form of ownership William Rooney had at the 
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time, but it was his name associated with the land prior to 1863. The result was a father and son who owned adjacent farms. John Rooney’s farm covered about 130 
acres in present-day Mount Prospect. William Rooney’s farm boundary in present-day Des Plaines was about 160 acres near the end of his ownership in the 1880s. 

The 1860 federal agriculture census provided very detailed data. William Rooney owned a total of 437 acres. 200 was improved and 237 unimproved. His real 
estate was estimated at $15,000. Julia Rooney owned $1,800 worth of real estate, but it is unclear what properties she owned. William’s personal property was 
worth $3,000, while the value of farm machinery and implements was $800.  

Animals were also counted for the 1860 census. William Rooney owned eight horses, twenty-one dairy cows, two working oxen, five cattle, and eight pigs. His 
farm production included 250 bushels of wheat, 1,300 bushels of Indian corn, 4,500 bushels of oats, 1,300 bushels of Irish potatoes, 2,100 pounds of butter,  
100 tons of hay, 40 bushels of grass seed, and $40 worth of orchard products.  

Detailed land ownership maps for Cook County showed how the boundaries of William Rooney’s farm changed over time. Refer to Exhibit 38 for a map of 
ownership boundaries from 1861, Exhibit 39 for 1862, Exhibit 40 for 1870, Exhibit 41 for 1886, Exhibit 42 for 1890, and Exhibit 43 for 1898. 

William Rooney was never granted a land patent from either the federal government or State of Illinois. Michael E. Byczek has reviewed all real estate deeds 
recorded after the Chicago Fire of 1871, newspaper articles prior to 1871, old maps, and a collection of historical records to reconstruct as complete of a 
chronological sequence of transactions as possible from 1835 through the final days that the land remained in the Rooney family in 1916. 

It appears likely that William and Julia Rooney kept a residence in Chicago over the years that they operated the farm, perhaps on a seasonal basis. By 1870, 
almost of their children were living in the city. William and Julia Rooney began to fully transition from the farm to Chicago after the 1871 Chicago Fire, but 
continued to own their farm until shortly before their deaths in 1885. The last 90 acres of their farm was sold for $7,200 in 1884. John and Ellen Rooney also kept 
ownership of their farm after settling in the Bridgeport neighborhood of Chicago in the 1880s. John Rooney sold the farm in 1916 to the Busse family who are 
responsible for the development of present-day Mount Prospect. 

The Owen Rooney Farm and Origins of Mount Prospect 

The name Owen Rooney is known as one of the founders of Mount Prospect. It was his farm, along with one other, that a developer named Ezra Eggleston 
acquired in 1874 to begin residential development. The new community was given the name Mount Prospect. Since the village began on Owen Rooney’s farm, he 
is rightfully credited in the historical narrative of Mount Prospect’s origin.  

However, this historical narrative has entirely overlooked the role of William and Julia Rooney, which may in fact, have an even greater significance than Owen 
Rooney in the origins of Mount Prospect.  

Owen Rooney married Anne Dorsey at St. Mary Catholic Church in Downtown Chicago in 1843. He was from County Tipperary, Ireland and was about the same 
age as William Rooney. The biggest clue as to the relationship between William and Owen Rooney is that Owen Rooney’s farm was immediately adjacent to 
William Rooney’s “Mount Prospect Farm”. Not only did they share a common border, but they also exchanged land with each other. It is extremely unlikely that 
two strangers who never met would both have the name Rooney, arrived in Chicago very early in history, came from County Tipperary, were parishioners at the 
same church Downtown, and just happened to purchase farms that were adjacent to each other. 

There is a very high likelihood that Owen was William’s brother John, both sons of Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer from Urard. Records may not exist to ever 
verify the identity of Owen Rooney, but they were not unrelated strangers. There is very little doubt that whatever their family relationship, William Rooney was 
the reason for Owen Rooney’s arrival in Chicago and the location of Owen’s farm.  
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Owen Rooney’s farm was located in the NW and SW quarters of Section 12, as described above. William Rooney’s land was in the NE and SE quarters. At some 
point, they both may have owned all of Section 12. It was the NE quarter of Section 12 in which William Rooney’s son John later owned a farm. This means that 
as of 1863, these three Rooney families owned and operated continuous farms all adjacent to each other. When viewed on a map, from west to east, these three 
farms were (1) Owen and Anne Rooney, (2) John and Ellen Rooney, and (3) William and Julia Rooney. 

It is very possible that William Rooney arranged that particular farm for his son John because it was adjacent to Owen Rooney’s land. William and Julia Rooney 
may have already been making plans to permanently live in the city and wanted their son to farm the land alongside Owen Rooney instead of having those two 
farms separated with a third party between the two segments. 

As a result of these three Rooney family farms, there were four family members with the name William: (1) William, the Old Settler; (2) his son William; (3) his 
grandson William, son of John; and (4) William, the son of Owen. There were also three with the name John: (1) William and Julia’s son John; (2) John’s son John; 
and (3) Owen Rooney himself, since Owen is derived from the name John.  

The fact that seven Rooney family members with the same two names, William and John, lived on three continuous adjacent farms has caused significant 
confusion, presumptions, and mistakes in the local historical narrative as to the origins of Mount Prospect. 

The single most inaccurate narrative involving Owen Rooney is that he owned all three farms. These historical narratives tend to combine all land owned by any 
individual with the Rooney surname as a single farm owned by Owen Rooney and/or his children. Another mistake is that all reference to any of the four family 
members named William Rooney is attributed to Owen Rooney’s son. All reference to any of the three John Rooney names is attributed to Owen Rooney himself. 

Due to this misinformation, the William and Julia Rooney family has been largely erased from history. In fact, their status as Old Settlers in Chicago has even been 
dismissed in favor of Owen Rooney’s son who had not even been born. All reference to anybody named William Rooney prior to the birth of Owen Rooney’s son 
William has been largely dismissed. 

Perhaps the most significant feature of the Cook County ownership maps are marks that identify where buildings were located. The homes of William and Julia 
Rooney on their “Des Plaines Farm”, John and Ellen Rooney on their “Mount Prospect Farm”, and Owen and Anne Rooney on their farm are all clearly marked.  

William Rooney agreed to remove his buildings on the Des Plaines “Section 7” farm when it was sold. The ownership maps for 1862 and 1886 confirm that the 
buildings were removed during this period. The 1870 map did not show building locations.  

An aerial photograph from 1938 shows William and Julia Rooney’s “Des Plaines Farm” mostly undeveloped with the “Mount Prospect Farm” sparsely developed 
[Exhibit 44]. 
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Exhibit 37 

 

William and Julia Rooney’s “Des Plaines Farm” was located in Section 7 (top center) and “Mount Prospect Farm” in Section 12 (to the left of Section 7) 
The NE quarter of “Section 12” was John and Ellen Rooney’s farm while Owen Rooney’s land was in the NW quarter of Section 12  

William Rooney also owned several timber lots in Sections 9, 16, and 21 along the right side of the map (John Rooney acquired one of these lots in Section 16) 
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Exhibit 38 
1861 Cook County Ownership Map 

 

William Rooney’s farm in Sections 7 (“Des Plaines Farm”) and 12 (“Mount Prospect Farm”) with Owen Rooney’s land also in Section 12 

William Rooney had two buildings on the “Section 7” farm (with a road he used to reach the main streets) and one house in “Section 12”.  The “Section 12” house 
is present-day 15 S. George and is considered the oldest house in Mount Prospect. The “Section 7” buildings were removed when William Rooney sold the land. 

The “Section 7” buildings would have been approximately located near present-day Amherst Ave between Princeton St and Drake Ln in Des Plaines. 

Owen Rooney’s house is also visible along the railroad tracks. 
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Exhibit 39 
1862 Cook County Ownership Map 

 

The 1862 map is essentially the same as 1861 
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Exhibit 40 
1870 Cook County Ownership Map 

 

The 1870 map does not show buildings, but does show that William Rooney had entered into a series of agreements to buy and sell land that changed the 
boundaries of his farm, including with Owen Rooney. This is the last known map prior to William Rooney’s death in 1885. 

Even though William and Julia Rooney’s son John acquired the NE quarter of Section 12 in 1863, the father is still considered the owner of the land. 

Page  of 74 359



Exhibit 41 
1886 Cook County Ownership Map 

 

William Rooney passed away in 1885. His son John is now the recognized owner of the NE quarter of Section 12.  
The buildings in Section 7 were removed prior to William’s death when he sold the land. 

The Owen Rooney farm was used for the Mount Prospect development (shaded area), as shown adjacent to John Rooney’s farm. 
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Exhibit 42 
1890 Cook County Ownership Map 

 

The 1890 map is essentially the same as 1886. 
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Exhibit 43 
1898 Cook County Ownership Map 

 

The 1898 map is essentially the same with clear reference to the John Rooney farm house located near present-day Mt. Prospect Rd and Central.  
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Exhibit 44 

Aerial view of William Rooney’s farm 
taken in 1938 before development took 
place.  

The “Section 7” farm is essentially 
the same as it would have been under 
William Rooney’s ownership with some 
development beginning to take place. 

The “Section 12” farm, including the 
portion acquired by John Rooney, in 
present-day Mt. Prospect is  
rapidly being developed compared to 
Des Plaines. 
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5. The William Rooney Farm and the Oldest House in Mount Prospect 

The most significant historical error has been to credit Owen Rooney as having built the oldest house in Mount Prospect, which is located at 15 S. George. The 
problem with this narrative is that 15 S. George was not located on Owen Rooney’s farm. It was John and Ellen Rooney’s house that was acquired from William 
and Julia Rooney in 1863 located in the NE quarter of “Section 12”. This house is clearly marked on John Rooney’s farm in the Cook County ownership maps, 
with William Rooney as the prior owner. 

Numerous sources identify William Rooney as the farmer who built the house in 1833. These narratives have been largely dismissed on the basis that Owen 
Rooney’s son William had not yet been born. 

Michael E. Byczek, as an attorney and real estate broker, reviewed real estate documents, court files, newspaper articles, and maps. He concluded, on the balance 
of probabilities, that it is highly plausible and more likely than not, that it was his 3x-great-grandfather William Rooney, the Old Settler of Chicago, who built the 
house at 15 S. George.  

William Rooney may not have been the original owner of the land and may not have built the first home on that farm. It is possible that the house was not built in 
1833, but more likely in 1835 or later. William Rooney first arrived in Chicago in 1835. However, false claims have been made that Owen Rooney was the only 
person with the Rooney surname in the Chicago area until at least the late 1840s. The belief that all land was owned by Owen Rooney is inaccurate. There is not 
any document that links Owen Rooney to the NE quarter of Section 12 where the house is located. The only Rooney names associated with that farm are William 
and Julia along with their son John and his wife Ellen. 

In support of this conclusion, Michael E. Byczek emphasized the following observations:  

1. 15 S. George was located on John and Ellen Rooney’s farm with William Rooney as the prior owner. 
2. There are numerous sources that identify William Rooney as having built the house as early as 1833. 
3. The ownership map markers show where John Rooney’s house was located. That mark is present-day 15 S. George. 
4. John Rooney sold the farm in 1916 to the Busse family, who subsequently lived in his house. It was the Busse family who gave the house its present address. 
5. There is not any evidence that Owen Rooney or his family ever owned the NE quarter of Section 12 where the house is located. 
6. John Rooney, the son of William and Julia, was identified as the owner of the farm when sold in 1916 [Exhibit 48]. However, the historical narratives refer to 

this sale as the “other half” of Owen Rooney’s farm instead of a distinct farm owned by a different Rooney family. In this context, the “other half” is the 
alleged leftover portion from the 1874 development project. 

One clue about the true history of 15 S. George is the rumor that William Rooney built the house in 1833. As a real estate broker, Michael E. Byczek considered 
the likely conversation that took place between John Rooney and the Busse family in 1916: 

Busse: “Who built this house?” 
Rooney: “My father William Rooney”. 
Busse: “When did he build it?” 
Rooney: “About 30 years before I took over the farm in 1863”. 
Busse: “About 1833?” 
Rooney: “Yes”. 

This fictional conversation is very plausible, and would explain why some people believe it was William Rooney who built the house in 1833. Most likely, it was 
the Busse family, after talking to John Rooney, who began to tell the story that the house, 15 S. George, was built in 1833 by William Rooney. [Exhibit 47].  
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John Rooney’s son, also named John Rooney, was an attorney and Chief Justice of the old Municipal Court of Chicago. Judge John Rooney was a regular 
participant at historical events in Mount Prospect and Elk Grove [Exhibits 49 and 50]. He was known as the descendant of early settlers of the area. He was not a 
descendant of Owen and Anne Rooney. 

Another fact that Michael E. Byczek emphasized was the inaccurate portrayal of Owen Rooney’s son William as the individual who started the Mount Prospect 
development project in 1874. He concluded, as more likely than not, that it was his 3x-great-grandfather William Rooney who brought the parties together. An 
important clue came from the grandson of Ezra Eggleston. The grandson commented that his grandfather worked with “a real estate man” named William Rooney 
[Exhibit 46]. In 1874, William Rooney had just built two commercial buildings in Downtown Chicago. He built the house at 43 E. Division in 1875. It is unknown 
how many other buildings William Rooney may have constructed during this time period. William Rooney played a notable role in the rebuilding efforts in 
Chicago after the 1871 Fire. Since the individual who is credited with bringing together Owen Rooney and Ezra Eggleston was known as a “real estate man”, this 
can only refer to the Old Settler William Rooney, not the son of Owen.  

Another interesting fact about the history of Mount Prospect is the dedication of a park to Owen Rooney. That park is called “Owen Park” and it sits on land that 
was once Owen Rooney’s farm. However, records show that part of Owen Park is actually on land that was originally owned by William Rooney.  

Refer to Exhibit 45 for two Mount Prospect History books that discuss the origins of 15 S. George without any mention of William and Julia Rooney or their son 
John and his wife Ellen Rooney. 

It is unknown whether William Rooney, the Old Settler, was involved with the construction of new homes or the development plans, such as street and subdivision 
layout. Claims have been made that William Rooney, the son of Owen Rooney, was involved with the real estate side of the development project. If so, most likely, 
this refers to the Old Settler, not the son of Owen Rooney. 
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Exhibit 45 

 

Two books in the “Images of America” series from the Michael E. Byczek collection [45A] 
Photo credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024 
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This is the John Rooney farm house (15 S. George) that he sold to the Busse Family in 1916, incorrectly labeled as Owen Rooney’s farm. [45B] 

Photo from actual page in book [Credit Michael E. Byczek, 2024] 
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Another view of the John Rooney farm house, not Owen Rooney [45C] 

Actual photo from book (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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15 S. George is mistakenly called the “Owen Rooney” house when it was really owned by John Rooney, son of William and Julia Rooney. [45D] 

Actual photo from book (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024) 
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Exhibit 46 

 

Newspaper article where Ezra Eggleston’s grandson refers to “a real estate man” named William Rooney 

Chicago Daily Herald (2/8/1962) 
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Exhibit 47 
Newspaper Article that refers to William Rooney having built 15 S. George in 1833 

 

Photo caption from a newspaper article refers to the Owen Rooney house without mention of William or John Rooney 

The Herald (2/24/1970) [and images that follow] 
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The multi-column newspaper publication did not print correctly. There is a sentence that begins in the first column and ends in the fourth that should read: 

Previous owners of the house had believed it was built in 1833 by “a man named William Rooney” 
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Continuation of the newspaper article that expressly rejects the claim about William Rooney building the house in 1833 

This segment of the article refers to Owen Rooney’s son William and the singular Rooney family farm 
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Exhibit 48 

Newspaper article that identifies John Rooney, the father of Judge John 
Rooney, as the seller of the NE quarter of Section 12 to George Busse. 

John Rooney owned the farm since 1863. This is the sale that transferred 
ownership of the farm house that would become 15 S. George. 

Chicago Tribune (6/18/1916) 
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	 	 Exhibit 49 

	 	 Judge John Rooney’s forefathers lived on the Rooney farm that is now part  
	 	 of Mount Prospect. 
	  
	 	 Chicago Daily Herald (1/10/1930) 
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	 Exhibit 50 

	 The centennial celebrations in 1933 could have origins with the claim that William Rooney built 	 	
	 the oldest house in Mount Prospect in 1833. 

	 Judge John Rooney is called a descendant “of families identified with the early life of this 	 	
	 community” [left, 50A] and that his “ancestors” were involved with Elk Grove [top, 50B]. 

	 Left: Mount Prospect Center Herald (8/4/1933) 

	 Right: Arlington Heights Herald (7/28/1933) 
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6. The William Rooney Timber Lots 

William Rooney owned five or more separate timber lots (not adjacent) in present-day Des Plaines. This includes one timber lot that his son John Rooney acquired 
in connection with the “Mount Prospect Farm”.  

The known lots represent a total of about 20 acres. Refer to Exhibit 37 for a map of where the timber lots were located relative to the farm. These timber lots were 
in Sections 9, 16, and 21 along the right side of the map image. John Rooney owned a timber lot in Section 16. Since his father arranged for ownership of the farm, 
it is presumed that he also transferred a timber lot versus John making an independent purchase. 

William Rooney sold one of the lots in Section 9 in 1876, but had to file court papers to regain ownership of the land after the buyer breached the contract. In his 
own words, William Rooney explained ownership of this particular timber lot:  

Your Orator William Rooney a resident of the said County … on or about the year 1843 he purchased … certain real estate … containing eight and one half 
acres … the said tract of land was covered with wood and your Orator has used it as a wood lot in connection with a farm which he occupied in the vicinity 
and that he cut timber from it for farm purposes.  

- William Rooney, 1876 (Court documents to regain possession of the timber lot in Section 9) [refer to citation for Exhibit 3] 

As was true for the farms, it is possible that at least some of the timber lots were purchased directly from the federal or Illinois government without a land patent 
issued to William Rooney. 
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7. Other William Rooney Real Estate Ownership 

There are three other known properties that William Rooney owned in Chicago: 

1. One of the other properties acquired from the Periolat family in 1870 was located in the West Loop on Lake Street near Halsted [Exhibit 52]. There appears to 
have been a building on the property during William and Julia Rooney’s lifetime. However, nothing is known about the construction. 

2. William Rooney also acquired eight lots from the Periolat family near 57th and Wentworth that spanned the neighborhoods of Washington Park and Englewood. 
There appears to have been a building on one of these lots. However, nothing is known about the construction [Exhibit 53]. The addresses and street layout does 
not match present-day. Therefore, it is difficult to determine exactly on which lot this building existed and whether it was even owned by William Rooney. 

3. William Rooney pledged as collateral for a loan an undisclosed ownership interest in 3/4 of all real estate on the north side of Randolph between State and 
Dearborn in Downtown Chicago [Exhibit 51]. There is a discrepancy in how the legal description was written that suggests whatever this ownership interest was, it 
could have predated the 1871 Fire. The ownership interest was capable of being pledged as collateral. One possible form could have been an unpaid tax lien. 
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Exhibit 51 

 

William Rooney pledged as collateral for a loan, 3/4 of the block on the north side of Randolph between State Street to Dearborn 
This photograph was taken on the corner of State and Randolph looking along William Rooney’s ownership interest, including the Nederlander Theatre [51A] 

Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2022 
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1886 Robinson Insurance Map [51B] 

William Rooney pledged as collateral all of lots 5, 6, and 8. This represents 3/4 of the entire street along Randolph (left side)  
State Street is along the bottom and Dearborn the top 
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Exhibit 52 

 

William Rooney owned one lot on Lake Street that would have been approximately in the center of the high rise 
The train tracks run along Lake Street. Photo taken on Peoria near Randolph with Green along the right side of image. 

Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2023 [52A] 
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1886 Robinson Insurance Map [52B] 

The lot that William Rooney owned has the address of 228 on the left side of the image (Lake Street). It is unknown when or by who this building was constructed. 
Page  of 97 359



Exhibit 53 

 

1885 Rascher Insurance Map  

William Rooney may have owned 5711 Wentworth where there was a building as of July 1885. It is unknown when or by who this building was constructed 
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V. Julia Rooney’s Will 

On July 21 1885, two months after Julia Rooney’s husband passed away, she wrote a Will. It is unknown whether it replaced an earlier document.  

Julia Rooney gave careful thought to distribution of her assets amongst her surviving children. Her son Hugh and daughter Josephine had already passed away. 
Julia was survived by two sons (John and William) and seven daughters (Alice, Anna, Elizabeth (Lizzie), Hannah, Mary, Katherine (Kittie), and Margaret 
(Maggie)). All of her daughters except Maggie were married, whose status prompted Julia to provide extra thought for her youngest surviving daughter’s comfort.  

The inheritance bequests were: 

First: I give and bequeath to my daughter Kittie Talbot, wife of Edward Talbot, the sum of five hundred dollars in money 

Second: I give and bequeath to my daughter Maggie Rooney, my piano and eight hundred dollars in money. Also the use of my homestead located at and 
known as number five hundred and eight six East Division street in the city of Chicago, Illinois for five years. […] My said daughter Maggie shall have the 
first privilege of purchasing said homestead. […] And in the event the same is sold the proceeds thereof shall be divided equally between my seven daughters. 
And in the event my daughter Maggie shall decide not to purchase said homestead the same shall become the property of my seven daughters who shall hold 
the same in fee as tenants in common.  

Third: I give and bequeath to my daughters Maggie Rooney and Kittie Talbot, in addition to the aforesaid bequests to them, all my household furniture other 
than the piano … to be divided equally between them. 

Fourth: All the rest and residue of my estate, real personal or mixed, of which I shall die … I give, devise, and bequeath to be equally divided to and among my 
heirs at law except John Rooney and Alice O’Connor, the said John Rooney and Alice O’Connor having been given such aid and assistance by their father as 
in my judgement they should receive. Nothing in this clause shall be construed so as to exclude my daughter, the said Alice O’Connor, from sharing with my 
other daughters in the homestead as provided in the second clause of this Will.  

Fifth: I hereby appoint my daughters Kittie A. Talbot and Hannah B. Brophy to be executors of this, my last Will and Testament.  

- Julia Rooney, Last Will and Testament - Signed July 21, 1885 [copy of Julia Rooney’s original Will included as Appendix II] 

Michael E. Byczek reviewed the Will and made the following legal observations: 

1. John Rooney was completely disinherited because he already received a fair share during his father’s lifetime. Julia Rooney specifically referred to having 
used her “judgement” to make this decision. 

2. All seven daughters were to share the ownership, in equal parts, of the family home at 43 E. Division (586 E. Division).  
3. The only inheritance that Alice O’Connor would receive was 1/7 share of the house. She was disinherited from anything else. 
4. Julia Rooney’s two youngest surviving daughters, Kittie and Maggie, would receive all the contents of the house. Additionally, Maggie received her mother’s 

piano and $800 while Kittie was given $500. This amounts to $1,300 in cash total. 
5. The other children had to allow Maggie, as the only unmarried daughter, five years to remain in her family home on Division Street. 
6. Julia’s son William was neither disinherited nor given a specific bequeath. This was not a mistake. Julia took care as a mother when providing for her children. 

It would have been easy to disinherit William. That omission suggests William was meant to receive a fair share. 
7. The crucial question is what constituted the “remainder” of Julia Rooney’s estate in the fourth bequeath. Of this “remainder”, she did not want John or Alice to 

receive anything. At the same time, this “remainder” was the only assets from which William would receive any inheritance. Since Julia Rooney specifically 
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divided the remainder of her estate into seven equal shares, of which William would receive one, while John and Alice received none, indicates she must have 
believed the “remainder” had substantial value. If insignificant, why disinherit John and Alice? 

8. William, Anna, Lizzie, Hannah, Mary, Kittie, and Maggie would receive an equal 1/7 share of the “remainder”. Without John and Alice having been 
disinherited, the “remainder” of the estate should have been divided in nine equal shares. If the value of these assets were small, there wouldn't be an issue. If 
extensive, then there is a definite distinction between 1/7 and 1/9 equal shares.  

9. Julia Rooney named two of her daughters (Kittie and Hannah), instead of one, to administer her estate [Exhibit 54]. This suggests that Julia Rooney already 
knew there would be problems. If administration of the estate was straightforward, only one child was necessary. It seems likely, given the historical context, 
her son John should have been picked. As a mother, she must have trusted these two particular daughters. Julia could have just as easily appointed her attorney 
as executor. It appears that Kittie Talbot had a good grasp of the family’s affairs and was living with Julia at the time of her death. Hannah Brophy lived across 
the street. Hannah’s husband previously went to court on William Rooney’s behalf for real estate matters. Edward Talbot was the only son-in-law specifically 
mentioned in Julia Rooney’s Will. It is reasonable to conclude that Julia Rooney not only trusted her daughters Kittie and Hannah, but also their husbands. 

Despite Julia Rooney’s best intentions of writing her final wishes down in a Will, her probate took nine years to complete. The biggest issue was who should 
inherit William Rooney’s Building. Unfortunately, that question was not explicitly addressed in Julia Rooney’s Will. These nine years of litigation focused on what 
Julia Rooney intended through her “remainder” bequeath: was, or was not, William Rooney’s Building to be distributed through the “remainder’ provision. 
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Exhibit 54 

Executor’s Bond issued in December 1885 that named as executors: 

(1) Kittie A. Talbot, who was living at the Rooney family residence 
located at 586 E. Division 

(2) Hannah B. Brophy, who was living across the street in the Brophy 
family home located at 555 E. Division  

(3) Hannah Brophy’s husband William 
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VI. William Rooney’s Building and Julia Rooney Probate Proceedings 

William Rooney acquired a one-third ownership interest in the SE corner of Franklin and Lake in Downtown Chicago in 1870 while providing financial assistance 
to his daughter Lizzie Periolat and her husband’s family. The $3,000 sales price can be viewed as a loan secured by the real estate, but unlike a mortgage, legal 
ownership of that one-third interest was transferred to William Rooney and recorded with Cook County government. William Rooney agreed to place the real 
estate into a Trust for Lizzie’s benefit (referred to as the “1870 Trust”, by Michael E. Byczek). The terms show that William Rooney was focused on getting his 
money back. In exchange, he arranged for his daughter to inherit the property. The “1870 Trust” was very much like one part of an estate plan. 

Unfortunately, the “1870 Trust” caused nine years of litigation after Julia Rooney’s death. The probate proceedings were filed in December 1885. Litigation was 
not finalized until January 1894. The case lasted so long that Lizzie Periolat passed away before conclusion, as did Alice O’Connor. Kittie Talbot’s infant son 
Edgar also passed away, as did Hannah Brophy’s husband William. John Rooney sent his son John to law school and arranged for a partnership at one of the law 
firms involved in the probate. Kittie Talbot passed away in 1899, just five years after the case was resolved. 

Michael E. Byczek obtained access to the original court files in 2006 through the Cook County Clerk of Court, including Julia Rooney’s actual Will that she held 
and signed shortly before her death. He also reviewed the real estate documents recorded with the Cook County Recorder of Deeds. Some court documents were 
not provided through the archival request and it was unknown whether such files even still existed. Enough information was available to adequately reconstruct 
what happened. It is unknown exactly how the court ruled or the precise nature of all arguments on both sides of the dispute. The family home on Division Street 
and William Rooney’s Building were sold through a court-ordered auction in 1893. It is also unknown exactly how the proceeds were distributed, because the court 
documents only stated such disbursement was in accordance with the judgment. 

The opposing sides of the dispute were primarily advocated by sisters Kittie Talbot and Lizzie Periolat. Kittie Talbot, supported by her brother William and sister 
Anna, claimed that the “1870 Trust” had been revoked and that every member of the family knew this to be true. Lizzie claimed the “1870 Trust” was valid and 
wanted a full audit of the real estate. Michael E. Byczek is Kittie Talbot’s 2x-great-grandson and the 3x-great-nephew of Lizzie Periolat. He tried to remain neutral 
during the legal review with an emphasis on the most likely final wishes of his 3x-great-grandparents William and Julia Rooney. Both claims had merit. There had 
been legal mistakes, most likely caused by inexperienced attorneys who lacked the requisite skill for handling such matters. 

The single biggest problem was that the proper documents were not filed with the Cook County Recorder of Deeds. A skilled attorney would have known such 
revocation, or lack of revocation, regardless of whether it was legally required, should have been formalized and recorded with Cook County government. 

Michael E. Byczek concluded, on the balance of probabilities, that it was highly plausible and more likely than not, that William Rooney revoked the “1870 Trust” 
in 1873 and became the sole legal owner prior to construction of his namesake building. William Rooney later transferred sole ownership to his wife in 1885. 
Through Julia Rooney’s Will, ownership of the building was to transfer through the “remainder” of her estate for distribution to seven of their nine surviving 
children in equal shares.  

To support this conclusion, Michael E. Byczek emphasized the following legal observations: 

1. The building’s name speaks for itself. It was called William Rooney’s Building, not William Rooney’s 1/3 Building or the Rooney and Periolat Building. One 
year earlier, William Rooney partnered with Peter Ryan in 1872 to construct a double-width building around the corner on Fifth Ave. William Rooney did not 
own the building, as it was shared by two owners. The new building, constructed the following year, was called William Rooney’s Building. Legal 
interpretation often evaluates the choice of words and placement of punctuation marks. One can visualize standing on the SE corner of Franklin and Lake 
reading the plaque on the side of the building as if its builder had announced to all Chicago “This is my building”. 

2. Lizzie and her husband sold William Rooney their one-third interest on 3/14/1870. The “1870 Trust” was signed the following day. Very quickly, the terms of 
that Trust required modification, which did not appear to happen. 
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3. On 9/28/1870, Clemens Periolat (relative of Caesar) sold William Rooney his one-third interest in the property for $7,000. As of that date, William Rooney 
owned one-third of the real estate in his own name and served as Trustor for another one-third interest under the “1870 Trust”. If William Rooney intended to 
continue favoring his daughter Lizzie, the “1870 Trust” needed to be revised. William Rooney needed to transfer the one-third interest he owned outright so 
that two-thirds were held through the “1st Revision to the 1870 Trust”. There is not any indication that any modification took place.  

4. Siblings Kittie Talbot, Anna Boucher, and William Rooney stated in court documents that their father negotiated with the Periolat family in the aftermath of the 
1871 Chicago Fire to acquire 100% ownership in the property and revoked the “1870 Trust” to begin construction of the new building. 

5. On 3/3/1873 an agreement was made between William Rooney, Clemens Periolat, and Samuel Cole (owner of the adjacent property). Plans were underway for 
new construction on both properties. This agreement stated that William Rooney and Clemens Periolat were the owners of the SE corner of Franklin and Lake. 
This agreement was recorded with Cook County government. Neither Lizzie nor her husband were mentioned in this agreement. If the “1870 Trust” had still 
been valid, William Rooney would have been identified as acting pursuant to that Trust. Instead, the terms of the agreement conveyed the sense that William 
Rooney was acting in his own legal right as co-owner with Clemens Periolat.  

6. Earlier, on 6/29/1872, Peter Periolat (another relative) had transferred one-third ownership interest to Clemens Periolat. This is why, despite the 1870 
transaction between William Rooney and Clemens Periolat, that the agreement in 1873 with Samuel Cole referred to Clemens Periolat as a co-owner.  

7. Shortly after the agreement with Samuel Cole, on 5/22/1873, Clemens Periolat sold another one-third interest to William Rooney for what appears to have 
been $500 in addition to assumption of liens on the property that may have amounted to over $3,000.  

8. As a result of this second transfer of a one-third interest from Clemens Periolat to William Rooney, the entire property had been transferred to William Rooney.  
9. Not only would the original “1870 Trust” have required a formal modification after the first transfer from Clemens Periolat, this second transfer would now 

require another modification (“2nd Revision to the 1870 Trust”). This did not appear to happen. 
10. Even if the “1870 Trust” was still valid, without a modification, that original Trust only covered a 1/3 ownership interest. Without such a modification, or 

additional deed of transfer into the “1870 Trust”, William Rooney owned a 2/3 interest in his own name without any Trust. It is unlikely that William Rooney 
would have kept 2/3 ownership and left 1/3 in the original “1870 Trust”. It is more likely that the “1870 Trust” was revoked. This is corroborated by the 
statements by Kittie Talbot, Anna Boucher, and William Rooney that their father negotiated with the entire Periolat family to acquire 100% ownership in 1873. 

11. Kittie Talbot, Anna Boucher, and William Rooney stated that their father negotiated with Lizzie and her husband prior to construction of the building. The end 
result was revocation of the “1870 Trust”.  

12. William Rooney granted a deed of transfer to his wife Julia on 1/27/1885. There was not any indication that his ownership interest was subject to any form of 
Trust. It was a straightforward transfer from husband to wife without regard to a fractional share or existence of a Trust declaration. 

13. Julia Rooney’s Will did not refer to any existence of the “1870 Trust”. William Rooney’s Building would have fallen under the “remainder” of her estate for 
distribution to her son William and daughters Anna, Lizzie, Hannah, Kittie, Mary, and Maggie in seven equal shares. As mentioned, Julia Rooney most likely 
believed that the “remainder” of her estate had substantial value. The only possible “remainder” asset with substantial value was William Rooney’s Building. 

14. Even if the original “1870 Trust” was still valid, without modification it only covered one-third ownership. Assuming that scenario was true, Lizzie would 
inherit the 1/3 interest from the “1870 Trust” and a 1/7 share of the remaining 2/3 ownership interest. Her brother William and sisters Anna, Hannah, Mary, 
Kittie, and Maggie would receive 1/7 share each of the remaining 2/3 interest that was not part of the original “1870 Trust”. Even without a formal revocation, 
Lizzie Periolat still would not have owned the entire property.  

15. The Chicago Fire of 1871 destroyed all public access to real estate conveyances. It was common for property owners to file a duplicate copy of documents 
recorded prior to 1871. They did so by showing proof that such a document had been filed. This was the case for both 1870 transfers to William Rooney. 
Duplicate copies were filed in 1873, which corresponds to the negotiations between William Rooney and the Periolat family. It would have been important for 
William Rooney to prove that he owned 2/3 of the property at the time of the 1871 Chicago Fire.  

16. The most interesting observation about the post-1871 duplicate copies is that somebody recorded the “1870 Trust” in 1879. It was not filed with the two 1870 
deeds in 1873. This suggests that William Rooney filed the duplicate deeds, but an unknown third-party filed the “1870 Trust” six years later. If William 
Rooney was protecting his daughter Lizzie, he would have re-filed the “1870 Trust” in 1873 with the duplicate 1870 deeds. This did not happen.  

17. The 1879 filing of the “1870 Trust” doesn’t make sense. The “1870 Trust” needed to be revised twice. By 1873, William Rooney owned 2/3 of the property in 
his own right without regard to the “1870 Trust”. Whoever recorded the “1870 Trust” in 1879 did not understand this distinction or that the other 2/3 fractional 
share needed to expressly be transferred into the “1870 Trust”. If William Rooney was behind this 1879 filing, he would have revised the document so that 
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Lizzie would inherit the entire building. Instead of filing the original “1870 Trust” that only provided for 1/3 ownership interest, it would have been logical to 
revise the Trust and/or otherwise prepare a deed to that effect. The “1870 Trust” should not have been refiled in its original form. 

Michael E. Byczek emphasized that neither transfer from Clemens Periolat to William Rooney referred to the “1870 Trust”. Both transfers were to William Rooney 
as an individual in his own name. When William Rooney and Samuel Cole negotiated with each other prior to construction of both buildings, neither Lizzie nor 
Caesar Periolat were identified as owners. Not even Clemens Periolat recognized any ownership claim by Lizzie or Caesar Periolat. These verified legal facts 
corroborate Kittie Talbot’s statement that the entire family knew and acted upon the belief that the “1870 Trust” was revoked in 1873. 

Several legal mistakes occurred, such as how best to revoke the “1870 Trust”, what documents should have been filed, how to draft Julia Rooney’s Will, and the 
best possible resolution to the probate dispute that took nine years to finalize. For example:  

1. A written revocation of the “1870 Trust” should have been recorded with Cook County government in 1873 when William Rooney acquired full ownership. 
2. When William Rooney transferred ownership to his wife in 1885, that transfer should have specifically referred to the “1870 Trust” as revoked. An observation 

should also be made that the 1885 transfer was not “subject” to the “1870 Trust” either. 
3. The question of whether or not the “1870 Trust” was revoked should not have taken nine years to resolve. A title search by a qualified attorney would have 

resulted in the same legal argument presented above. It would not take nine years to reconstruct the transactional chronology. 
4. The building was eventually sold through a combined auction for both William Rooney’s Building and the house on Division Street. This suggests that the 

judge ordered a sale of both properties without the family having a chance to market the real estate for sale to obtain a higher market value. The court decided 
to end the case without any further delay. The court must have concluded that the Periolat family only owned an equitable fractional share. Otherwise, the 
court would have sold the house on Division and approved a deed for Franklin and Lake in favor of the Periolat family.  

5. The heirs should have agreed to sell both properties on the open market instead of allowing an auction at what must have been a much reduced valuation.  
6. Julia Rooney’s Will should have itemized all of her assets, including all real estate owned and formal declaration that the “1870 Trust” had been revoked. An 

observation should be made that the Will didn’t mention the “1870 Trust” at all. That omission further suggests that the “1870 Trust” was revoked and didn’t 
require inclusion into the Will. If the “1870 Trust” was valid, that fact should have been disclosed for peace of mind. 

7. The reality that this dispute lasted nine years raises a concern that the attorneys who handled the case may have deliberately dragged the case on for that long 
to increase their legal fees, and thus reduce the total value of Julia Rooney’s estate for the heirs. 

Michael E. Byczek further considered the quality of legal advice given to William and Julia Rooney during their lifetime. It was his conclusion that William and 
Julia Rooney had received bad legal advice, not just with regard to their estate plan. It’s possible that William and Julia Rooney represented themselves at times, 
but they most likely hired attorneys to handle certain matters: 

1. The other building on Fifth Ave is a perfect example that William Rooney trusted other parties to a transaction, including his lawyers. The sale for that building 
required the buyer to pay liens against the real estate. This did not happen. The ethical duty of an attorney would require verification that the liens were paid.  

2. One of William Rooney’s timber lots in Des Plaines was sold to a buyer who did not pay the entire sales price. William Rooney signed the deed to transfer 
ownership without full payment only to learn that the buyer immediately started cutting down the trees. William Rooney did not receive any further payments 
and asked his son-in-law William Brophy to revoke the transfer in court. A skilled attorney should have foreseen that transfer of ownership to a timber lot 
without full payment posed a risk that the trees would be cut down. 

3. William Rooney trusted his business partner and neighbor Edward Harland when constructing the two residential houses on Division Street. For this reason, he 
did not read the terms of the loan papers that he had signed. William Rooney later discovered that he had signed an agreement to repay a higher amount. The 
result was litigation and a series of subsequent deeds to sort out the disagreement. 
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Based on the verified negotiations between William Rooney and the Periolat family prior to construction in 1873, the absence of any modification to the original 
“1870 Trust”, and evaluation of Julia Rooney’s Will, Michael E. Byczek’s legal opinion is that William and Julia Rooney intended and did revoke the “1870 Trust” 
in 1873. William Rooney’s Building should have rightfully been divided into seven equal shares. It remains unclear how the proceeds were distributed. 

It is unfortunate that William Rooney’s legacy during the rebuilding efforts of the 1871 Chicago Fire ended with a court-ordered auction [Exhibit 55] for a building 
that could have could have remained in the Rooney family to this day for use by all of his descendants. 

Page  of 105 359



Exhibit 55 

 

Auction for both the William Rooney Residence at 43 E. Division and his namesake building on Franklin and Lake. 

Chicago Tribune (5/28/1893) 

Note: The advertisement shows an error that William Rooney’s Building was located on the NE corner. It was on the SE Corner of Franklin and Lake. 
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VII. Children of William Rooney and Julia Phelan 

William and Julia Rooney had eleven known children together with at least 51 grandchildren [Exhibits 56-1 through 56-11]: 

1. Alice (“Ally”) [1835 in Ireland - 1893 in Elgin, IL] married James O’Connor in Elgin, IL (1863). Their seven children were: John, William, James, Frank, 
Elizabeth, Julia, and Charles. 

2. John [about 1837 in New York) - 1923 in Chicago] married Ellen Butler in the Chicago area (About 1863). Their ten children were: William, Thomas, John, 
Edward, Bridget, Frank, Austin, Walter, James, and Mary. The 1900 census and Ellen (Butler) Rooney’s obituary suggests she had at least two other children.  

3. Hugh (About 1838 in New York or Illinois - 1881 in Chicago]. Unmarried without children. 

4. Anna (also known as Bridget) [About 1840 in or near Chicago - 1913 in Chicago] married Patrick Boucher in the Chicago area (About 1869). Their ten children 
were: Maria, Julia, Elizabeth, William, John, George, Alice, Ellen, Irene, and Margaret. 

5. Elizabeth (“Lizzie”) [1842 in or near Chicago - 1891 in Chicago] married Caesar A. Periolat in Chicago (1867). Their seven children were: Clemens, Marie, 
Julia, Ellen, John, Edward, and Charles. There appears to have been another child whose birth certificate without a name does not match the known children. 

6. Hannah [About 1844 in or near Chicago - 1923 in Chicago] married William Brophy in Chicago (1876). Their six children were: William, Walter, George, Mary, 
Robert, and Adolph. 

7. William [1845 in or near Chicago - 1917 in Chicago] married Mary Mullany (location and date of marriage unknown, possibly San Diego, CA). Their one child 
was Thomas. The 1900 census suggests that Mary (Mullany) Rooney had one deceased child. 

8. Mary [1848 in or near Chicago - 1923 in Chicago, IL] married Patrick Riley in Chicago (1881). Their three children were: Albert, Catherine, and Mary.  

9. Katherine (“Kittie”) (1849 in or near Chicago - 1899 in Chicago, IL] married Edward Talbot in Chicago (1880). Their three children were Frank, Edgar, and 
Marie. The 1885 birth certificate for their son Frank suggests that Kittie (Rooney) Talbot had three deceased children. 

10. Margaret (“Maggie”) [1851 in or near Chicago - 1935 in Detroit, MI] married John Maher in Chicago (1888). Their four children were Julia, Ellen, Catherine, 
and Margaret. 

11. Josephine [About 1856 in or near Chicago - 1879 in Chicago]. Unmarried without children. 
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Exhibit 56-1 
Alice (Rooney) O’Connor 

 

1835 Baptism - Urlingford Catholic Parish of County Kilkenny (Ireland) [56-1A] 

Godparents are John Rooney (probably, but illegible) and Kitty Phelan 

The village name is partially illegible. Upon comparison with other baptism entries, it appears to be Ardreagh.  
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1863 Marriage License for Alice Rooney and James O’Connor 

Wedding took place in Elgin (Kane County), IL [56-1B] 
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Alice (Rooney) O’Connor 1893 Death Certificate [56-1C] 
Elgin, IL 
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Alice (Rooney) O’Connor Obituary [56-1D] 
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Exhibit 56-2 
John Rooney 

 

An interesting prospective baptism [56-2A] (transcription) at the Church of the Transfiguration (Five Points) in Manhattan, NY 
The father is William Rooney and the mother is Julia Telhellan (very close to Phelan, plus this is a transcription not the actual scan) 

John Rooney appears to have used the full name of John P. Rooney in Chicago 
This could be John’s baptism and that he was baptized Patrick John, but used the name John Patrick 

It’s also possible that this is a coincidence, Hugh’s baptism and that he was really named Patrick, or another previously unknown son 
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John Rooney   
1923 Death Certificate (Chicago, IL) [56-2B] 
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John Rooney Obituaries 
Left: 56-2C (Chicago Daily News Article) 

Right: 56-2D (Top: Chicago Tribune Article), 56-2E (Middle: Chicago Tribune), and 56-2F (Bottom: Chicago Daily News) 
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Exhibit 56-3 
Hugh Rooney 

 

1881 Death Certificate for Hugh Rooney [56-3A] 
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Hugh Rooney Obituaries 
56-3B (Top: Chicago Tribune) and 56-3C (Bottom: Chicago Daily News) 

Note: Hugh’s brother William was probably living in San Diego by 1881 
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Exhibit 56-4 
Anna (Rooney) Boucher 

1913 Death Certificate for 
Anna (Rooney) Boucher 
[56-4A] 

She is listed as having 
“always” lived in Chicago. 
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Obituaries for Anna (Rooney) Boucher 

56-4B (Top: Chicago Tribune) and 56-4C (Bottom: Chicago Daily News) 

Page  of 118 359



Exhibit 56-5 
Lizzie (Rooney) Periolat 

 

1842 Baptism at St. Mary’s in Downtown Chicago [56-5A] 

Lizzie was born on June 18th, but wasn’t baptized until September 22nd (unless a mistake was made) 
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1867 Marriage Record from St. Mary’s Church in Downtown Chicago [56-5B] 

Annie Rooney was a witness (presumed to be her oldest unmarried sister just prior to her own marriage around 1868) 
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1891 Death Certificate for Elizabeth (Rooney) Periolat [56-5C] 
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Obituaries for Elizabeth (Rooney) Periolat 

56-5D (Top: Chicago Tribune) and 56-5E (Bottom: Chicago Inter Ocean) 

Page  of 122 359



Exhibit 56-6 
Hannah (Rooney) Brophy 

1876 Marriage License [56-6A] 
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Top: Marriage Record from Holy Name Cathedral [56-6B] - Mary Rooney was a witness (presumed to be her oldest unmarried sister) 
Bottom: Chicago Times Newspaper Article [56-6C] 
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1923 Death Certificate for  
Hannah (Rooney) Brophy [56-6D] 

She was listed as born in Des Plaines. 
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Obituaries for Hannah (Rooney) Brophy 

56-6E (Top: Chicago Tribune) and 56-6F (Chicago Daily News) 
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Exhibit 56-7 
William Rooney 

 

1845 Baptism at St Mary’s in Downtown Chicago [56-7A] 
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1917 Death Certificate for 
William Rooney [56-7B] 

William was living with his brother John 
in the Bridgeport neighborhood 
(Chicago) when he passed away, even 
though he had relocated to San Diego. 

Page  of 128 359



Exhibit 56-8 
Mary (Rooney) Riley 

 

1848 Baptism at St. Patrick’s in the West Loop neighborhood of Chicago [56-8A] 
Mary Rooney’s godfather was Peter Rooney 

Chicago records do not list any Peter Rooney in Chicago at that time. Therefore, it is reasonable to conclude that Peter lived on the Rooney farm. 
The most likely scenario is that Peter was William’s brother from Urard, Co. Tipperary. 
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1881 Marriage License [56-8B] 
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Marriage record from Hoy Name Cathedral [56-8C] 

The witness was Margaret Rooney (presumed to be her only unmarried sister) 
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1923 Death certificate for 
Mary (Rooney) Riley [56-8D] 

Mary’s residence was  
43 E. Division. 
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Mary (Rooney) Riley’s obituary 

Chicago Tribune [56-8E] 
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Exhibit 56-9 
Kittie (Rooney) Talbot 

 

1849 Baptism at St. Mary’s in Downtown Chicago [56-9A] 
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1880 Marriage License [56-9B] 
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Top: Church record from Holy Name Cathedral [56-9C] 
Maggie Rooney was a witness, presumed to be her youngest unmarried sister (her oldest unmarried sister Mary had already been a bridesmaid) 

Bottom: Chicago Tribune newspaper article [56-9D] 
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Kittie (Rooney) Talbot’s 1899 Death Certificate [56-9E] 
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Kittie (Rooney) Talbot’s Obituaries 

56-9F (Top: Chicago Tribune) 
56-9G (Middle: Chicago Daily News) 

56-9H (Bottom: Chicago Record) 
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Exhibit 56-10 
Maggie (Rooney) Maher 

 

1851 Baptism at St. Mary’s in Downtown Chicago [56-10A] 
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1888 Marriage License [56-10B] 
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Church record from St. Elizabeth’s Church in the Grand Boulevard neighborhood of Chicago [56-10C] 

The witnesses were Edward Talbot (husband of Kittie Rooney) and Mamie Periolat (daughter of Lizzie Rooney, presumed). 
St. Elizabeth was the Talbot family church. It is presumed that Maggie Rooney was living with her sister Kittie (Rooney) Talbot at the time. 
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1935 Death Certificate [56-10D] 

Margaret was listed as born in  
Des Plaines. 
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Obituaries for Margaret (Rooney) Maher 

56-10E (Top: Chicago Tribune) and 56-10F (Top: Chicago Daily News) 
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Exhibit 56-11 
Josephine Rooney 

 

1879 Death Certificate for Josephine Rooney [56-11A] 
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Obituaries for Josephine Rooney 

56-11B (Top: Chicago Daily Telegraph) and 56-11C (Bottom: Chicago Daily News) 

The Rooney family requested that the obituary be sent to California and New York.  
Josephine’s brother William was probably living in San Diego at this time. 

Unless a member of the family was traveling in New York, it is presumed that William and Julia Rooney still had relatives in New York from the 1830s. 
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VIII. Census Records 

The William and Julia Rooney family cannot be verified in every census throughout their lifetime in Illinois. Below is a summary of what has been verified or 
presumed accurate from analysis of the information: 

1840 Federal Census  

The Bridgeport Precinct of Cook County (The Bridgeport neighborhood of Chicago has not been annexed to the city yet) 

There is an entry for William Rooney, but the census only lists head of house with statistics. This is presumed to be the correct William Rooney because of the time 
period for the Old Settlers, when the population of Chicago is still relatively low. The demographics don’t exactly match, but are very close. 

1850 Federal Census 

Nothing found yet 

1855 Illinois State Census 

There is a William Rooney household in North Chicago (versus South and West). The census only lists head of house and demographics. It seems reasonable that 
this is the correct William and Julia Rooney family, but if so, the census taker made mistakes and/or otherwise the demographics listed don’t match. 

1860 Federal Census 

The entire family is verified on their farm in Maine (present-day Des Plaines). 

1865 Illinois State Census 

The family is verified on the farm in Maine, but there is an unknown young male with the family (could be John and Ellen’s son). 

1870 Federal Census 

The family is split up and could indicate a time period when they began a permanent transition from the farm to full-time residency in the city.  

- William and Julia not found, but there is a possible match. Hugh, Josephine, and Margaret are not listed anywhere, as of yet. 
- Kittie and Hannah (both unmarried) are living with Anna, who is married 
- Mary (unmarried) is living with Elizabeth, who is married 
- Alice (married) is living in Elgin, IL and John (married) is living in Chicago with their families 

1880 Federal Census 

- William, Julia, Kittie, Hugh, Mary, and Margaret are living at 586 Division. 
- Alice is listed as living with them, perhaps because she is visiting for an extended time (Kittie’s wedding took place a few weeks after the census). 
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1840 Federal Census 

The William Rooney family listed for the “Bridgeport Precinct” of Cook County consists of three males and one female, which is not accurate [Source 1840]. 

There are two males under 5 years old. This would be correct, since John and Hugh would both be within that age category. There is one 30-40 year old. William 
would be 29 years old, which is a reasonable mistake. 

However, the female section shows one female, 20-30 years old. Julia is about 24. Alice is about five years old, but is not listed. 

Probability suggests that this is the correct family and the missing female child is a mistake. However, the only name given is the head of the household. 
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1855 Illinois State Census 

The entry for William Rooney in “North Chicago” is a good candidate for the William and Julia Rooney family, but the demographics don’t match [Source 1855]. 

The household only consists of 4 total: 

1 male under 10 
1 male 20-30 
1 male 30-40 
1 female 10-20 

William Rooney would be 44 years old. His oldest son John would be about 18. Therefore, the demographics do not match the Rooney family. 

One possibility is that this is William Rooney’s city residence, and therefore, he is the head of household. However, other relatives could be living in his house 
while William and Julia are living on the farm at this time. It is also possible that neighbors provided the answers and did not know the entire family. It is also 
possible that the census taker took liberties because nobody was home. 
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1860 Federal Census 

The 1860 federal residential census for the “Town of Maine” in Cook County is the first fully verified census for the William and Julia Rooney family [Source 
1860A]. It was also the first census that listed full details about every member of the family, instead of just summarized demographics. 

This census is also the most accurate list of ages for each of their children. All of the children are unmarried. Each of William and Julia Rooney’s children used a 
wide-range of age-related mistakes throughout their life. The 1860 census best reflects the accurate age for each son and daughter. The following chart shows the 
age as listed in the census. Based on the age, the year of birth is estimated with a comment whether the baptism has been verified (analysis by Michael E. Byczek). 

William:	 	 	 48 	 (1812) - Baptized in 1811 
Julia (written as Johanna):	 41 	 (1819) 
Alice:	 	 	 	 22 	 (1838) - Baptized in 1835 
John:	 	 	 	 20 	 (1840) 
Hugh:	 	 	 	 18 	 (1842) 
Bridget:	 	 	 17 	 (1843)	 	 	 	  
Elizabeth:	 	 	 16 	 (1844) - Baptized in 1842 
William:	 	 	 14 	 (1846) - Baptized in 1845 
Hannah (written as Johanna):	 13 	 (1847) 
Mary:	 	 	 	 12 	 (1848) - Baptized in 1848 
Kate:	 	 	 	 10 	 (1850) - Baptized in 1849 
Margaret:	 	 	 6 	 (1854) - Baptized in 1851 
Josephine:	 	 	 4 	 (1856) 

Alice, John, and Hugh are listed as born in New York. It is confirmed that Alice was born in Ireland in 1835. The oldest children’s ages are off by about 3 years.  

The ages start becoming more reliable around the son William. He was baptized in 1845. His birth is listed as about 1846.  

William, the father, is listed as a farmer with $15,000 worth of real estate and $3,000 of personal property. Julia owns $1,800 worth of real estate. 

The eldest two sons, John and Hugh, are also working as farmers. 

Julia’s name was written as Johanna, which is the same variation used for several baptism records of her children. “Johanna” is often considered the formal  
version of “Julia”. The name “Julia” is considered a common or casual version of “Johanna”.  
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1860 Federal Agriculture Census 

The William Rooney farm is located in Maine [Source 1860B]. Refer to the discussion about the farm for details of farm production and livestock. 
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1865 Illinois State Census 

The William Rooney family (verified) is listed for Maine (Cook County) on their farm: 

This census only shows the head of household with demographics, of which there are some mistakes.  

Total: 4 male and 8 female 

1 male 50-60 - William is 54 
1 female 50-60 - Julia is about 49, which is a reasonable mistake 

John and Alice are married, so they shouldn’t be counted among the household. 

2 males 20-30 - Hugh and William 
2 females 20-30 - Anna and Elizabeth 

2 females under 10 - Only Josephine (9) should be in this column 
3 females 10-20 years - Hannah (19), Mary (17), Kittie (16), and Margaret (14) should be listed, but only 3 are shown. Possible that Margaret was made younger. 

1 male under 10 - This is unexplained 

Under the agriculture: 

Value of Livestock: 1,024 
Value of Grain Products: 460 
Value of other Agriculture Products: 410 

The John Rooney and Owen Rooney farms are listed under Elk Grove. Therefore, the 1865 Illinois State census shows all three Rooney family farms. 
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William Rooney’s farm in Maine [Source 1865A] 
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John Rooney and Owen (written as Hone) Rooney’s farms in Elk Grove [Source 1865B] 
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1870 Federal Census 

William and Julia Rooney’s children are living in different residences throughout the city. 

William, Julia, and their children Hugh, Josephine, and Margaret have not been identified. However, this is a possibility for William and Julia living alone. 
However, it cannot be verified whether these entries are a coincidence. 
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Anna, Hannah, and Kittie 

Kittie (piano teacher listed as Kate) and Hannah (dressmaker) are living with their married sister Anna Boucher in Chicago [Source 1870A] (spelled “Roomey”). 
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Elizabeth and Mary 

Mary (seamstress) is living with her married sister Elizabeth Periolat in Chicago [Source 1870B]. 
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John 

John (teamster) is married and living in Chicago [Source 1870C]. 
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Alice 

Alice is married and living in Elgin, IL (listed as Ellen) [Source 1870D]. 
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Unknown William Rooney in Chicago 

There is an older William Rooney (born 1800) living in Chicago [Source 1870E]. His wife’s name is illegible (looks like Trifana). This could be a coincidence. 
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1880 Federal Census 

William and Julia Rooney are living at 586 Division in Chicago with their unmarried children Hugh, Mary, Kittie (listed as Katie), and Maggie [Source 1880].  

Alice was listed as unmarried and living with her parents, but this was a mistake. The census taker probably thought because William and Julia Rooney’s daughter 
happened to be living with her parents on an extended trip, this must have meant she was unmarried. Kittie Rooney’s wedding took place shortly after the census. 
It is possible that her eldest sister was staying in the city for the wedding preparation. 

Josephine had recently passed away and was listed in the 1880 census mortality index. 

Hugh was listed as a “capitalist”. 
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IX. Chicago Address Chronology 

There were multiple competing Chicago City Directories published continuously from 1844 to the 1920s.  

The name William Rooney does not appear in these directories until the 1862-63 edition. None of these entries can be verified until the family is living on Division 
Street near Franklin in the early 1870s, through cross-reference to The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building on Fifth Ave. 

It is unknown whether any of the other William Rooney entries are the correct family. For instance, both William and Julia Rooney had a son named William old 
enough to live on his own by the 1860s, as did Owen Rooney. The street names and addresses reflect the original, not present-day locations.  

Year	 	 Name	 	 	 Occupation	 Address 

1862-63:	 William Roney	 	 carpenter	 bds. n.s. Sigel w of Franklin [Note: This address is near a confirmed location on Division and Franklin] 
	 	 William Ronnay	 miller	 	 bds. Fifer House 

1864-65:	 William M. Rooney	 carpenter	 h. 165 W Madison [Note: William Rooney was listed with the middle initial “M” later on Division St.] 

1865:	 	 William Rooney	 carpenter	 r. 95 Sedgwick 

1866:	 	 William Rooney	 carpenter	 r. 1 Hinsdale 
	 	 	 	 	 lab	 	 bds 638 S. Canal 

1867	 	 William Rooney	 lab	 	 bds 161 S Market 

1874-75	 William Rooney	 none	 	 r 387 Division [Note: First confirmation, due to Rooney cigar business on Fifth Ave the following year] 
	 	 	 	 	 lab	 	 ws Henry bet Centre and Blue Island avs 

1875-76	 William Rooney	 cigars	 	 r. 387 Division 
	 	 	 	 	 lab	 	 91 Henry	  
	 	 Hugh Rooney 	 	 cigars 	 	 42 5th Av, r 387 Division 

William Rooney is listed at 586 Division from 1876 through his death.  

The Rooney family is believed to have lived on both the farm and a residence in Chicago on a regular basis from the 1830s through their permanent transition in 
the 1870s. This is corroborated by the fact that their children were baptized at different churches in the city, which could provide a clue as to the location of their 
home at the time. The reason for not appearing in the city directories could reflect that nobody was home when the canvassers knocked on the door. 
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X. The Rooney Family and the Chicago Catholic Church 

William and Julia Rooney were parishioners of several different Catholic churches over their life in Chicago, including St. Mary’s in Downtown, St. Patrick’s in 
the West Loop, and Holy Name Cathedral in River North.  

The baptisms for three of their children (Anna, Hannah, and Josephine) born in the Chicago area have not been found. However, there is reference to a pioneer 
Rooney family being parishioners of a rural Catholic church located near the farm in present-day Des Plaines. 

St. Mary’s was the first Catholic church in Chicago. The first location in 1833 was near State and Lake. The second location, opened in 1836, was on the corner of 
Michigan and Madison. The third location, opened in 1843, was on the corner of Wabash and Madison. William and Julia Rooney baptized four of their children at 
St. Mary’s: Elizabeth in 1842, William in 1845, Katherine in 1849, and Margaret in 1851. Elizabeth was also married at St. Mary’s in 1867. 

St. Patrick’s (present-day location of Desplaines and Adams) was originally located on Desplaines and Randolph. William and Julia Rooney baptized their 
daughter Mary at the original location in 1848, which had recently opened in 1846. 

William and Julia Rooney were parishioners of Holy Name Cathedral (State and Superior) after the 1871 Chicago Fire, and possibly earlier. Three of their 
daughters were married at Holy Name: Hannah in 1876, Katherine in 1880, and Mary in 1881. The funeral for two of their children were held at Holy Name during 
their lifetime: Josephine in 1879 and Hugh in 1881.  

William and Julia Rooney’s funerals were also held at Holy Name Cathedral: William in May 1885 and Julia in December 1885. 
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Exhibit 57 

 

The 2nd St. Mary’s Catholic Church was located on Michigan and Madison - Left corner of the photograph (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2023) [57A] 
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The 3rd St. Mary’s Catholic Church was located on Wabash and Madison, shown in the 1857 Bird’s Eye Map in the center of this image [57B] 
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Present-day corner of Wabash and Madison [57C] (facing Wabash with the elevated train tracks taken near rear of church) [Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2023] 
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Present-day St. Patrick’s Church located on Desplaines and Adams (original was a few blocks away on Randolph) [Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024] [57D] 
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Holy Name Cathedral on State and Superior Streets (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2023) [57E] 
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XI. Age Range Analysis for the Children of William and Julia Rooney 

All eleven of William and Julia Rooney’s children used a range of ages throughout their life. This may simply reflect the life and times of that period in history. 

	 	 William Rooney	 Julia (Phelan) Rooney 

1860 Census	 48 	 (1812) 	 	 41 (1819) 
1880 Census 	 60 	 (1820) 	 	 61 (1819) 
Death (1885) 	 71 	 (1814)	 	 69 (1816) 
Obituaries 	 71/73 	 (1814 / 1812) 	 69 (1816) 
Full Obituary 	 12/25/1813	 	  
Old Settlers 	 71 	 (1814)	 	 69 (1816) 

Alice (Rooney) O’Connor 

Baptized in September 1835 - Co. Kilkenny 

1860 Census 	 22 (1838)	 [Alice was listed as born in New York] 
1870 Census 	 30 (1840) 
1880 Census 	 40 (1840)	 [Alice also listed with her parents on Division with the age of 32 (1848)] 
Death Cert 	 55 (1838) 

John Rooney 

Based on the most accurate chronology of all the children, John should have been born around 1837 in New York. 

1860 Census 	 	 20 (1840) 
1870 Census 	 	 32 (1838) 
1880 Census 	 	 37 (1843) 
Mary’s Birth (1885) 	 47 (1838) 
1900 Census 	 	 60 (May 1840) 
1910 Census 	 	 68 (1842) 
1920 Census 	 	 80 (1840) 
Death Cert (1923) 	 80 (1843) 
Obituary 	 	 85 (1838) 

Hugh Rooney 

Based on the most accurate chronology of all the children, Hugh should have been born around 1838 in either New York or Chicago. 

1860 Census 	 18 (1842)	 [listed as born in New York] 
1880 Census 	 32 (1848)	 [listed as born in New York] 
Death 	 	 38 (1843) 	 [listed as born in Illinois] 
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Anna (Rooney) Boucher 

Based on the most accurate chronology of all the children, Anna should have been born around 1840. She is the first confirmed birth in Chicago, from consensus  
of records. 

1860 Census 	 	 17 (1843) 
1870 Census 	 	 26 (1844) 
1879 (George’s Birth) 	 34 (1845) 
1880 Census 	 	 35 (1845) 
1900 Census 	 	 10/13/1847 
1910 Census 	 	 65 (1845) 
1913 Death 	 	 10/13/1849 

Elizabeth (Rooney) Periolat 

Born on 6/8/1842 according to baptism record. 

1860 Census 	 16 (1844) 
1870 Census 	 25 (1845) 
1880 Census 	 33 (1847) 
1891 Death 	 45 (1846) 

Hannah (Rooney) Brophy 

Based on the most accurate chronology of all the children, Hannah should have been born around 1844.  

1860 Census 	 	 13 (1847) 
1870 Census 	 	 21 (1849) 
1876 Marriage 	 	 22 (1854)  
1880 Census 	 	 25 (1855) 
1884 Robert's Birth 	 30 (1854) 
1887 Adolph's Birth 	 33 (1854) 
1900 Census	  	 August 1858 
1910 Census 	 	 58 (1852) 
1920 Census 	 	 56 (1864) 
1923 Death 	 	 75 (1848) 
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William Rooney 

Baptized on 3/24/1845. 

1860 Census 	 14 (1846) 
1900 Census 	 July 1845 
1910 Census 	 64 (1846) 
1917 Death 	 65 (1852) 
Gravestone 	 10/15/1847 

Mary (Rooney) Riley 

Baptized on 6/27/1848. 

1860 Census 	 	 12 (1848) 
1870 Census 	 	 20 (1850) 
1880 Census 	 	 24 (1856) 
1881 Marriage 	 	 26 (1855) 
Albert’s Birth (1882) 	 25 (1857) 
1900 Census 	 	 43 (Dec 1856) 
1910 Census 	 	 54 (1856) 
1920 Census 	 	 65 (1855) 
Death (1923) 	 	 66 (1857)  

Katherine (Rooney) Talbot 

Baptized on 12/5/1849. 

1860 Census 	 	 10 (1850) 
1870 Census 	 	 16 (1854) 
1880 Census 	 	 22 (1858) 
Marriage (1880)	 22 (1858) 
Frank’s Birth (1885) 	 27 (1858) 
Edgar’s Birth (1888) 	 26 (1862) 
Death (1899) 	 	 38 (1861) 
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Margaret (Rooney) Maher 

Baptized on 4/19/1851. 

1860 Census 	 6 (1854) 
1880 Census 	 20 (1860) 
1888 Marriage 	 27 (1861) 
1900 Census 	 2/1865 
1906 Death 	 52 (1854) 
1910 Census 	 44 (1866) 
1920 Census 	 52 (1868) 
1930 Census 	 62 (1868) 
1935 Death 	 70 (1865) 

Josephine Rooney 

Based on the most accurate chronology of all children’s ages, Josephine was born around 1856. 
  
1860 census 	 	 4 (1856) 
1880 Mortality Census	 16/18 (1861/1863) [There are two versions] 
Death (1879) 	 	 16 years 9 months (Sept 1862) 
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XII. Death of William and Julia Rooney 

William Rooney passed away on May 5, 1885 while living in the home that he built at 43 E. Division in the Gold Coast neighborhood of Chicago. He was 73 years 
old. The cause of death was listed as paralysis of the heart in his obituary and cerebral embolism on his death certificate. His wife Julia passed away on December 
13th, just a few months after her husband. Her cause of death was pneumonia. She was about 69 years old. 

William and Julia Rooney are buried at Calvary Cemetery in Evanston, IL in a family plot (Section O, Block 1, Lot 49) that they purchased in 1879 when their 
daughter Josephine passed away [Exhibit 62]. 

Buried with them at the Rooney plot are (1) their children Josephine, Hugh, and Margaret; (2) son-in-law John Maher, the husband of Margaret; and (3) 
grandchildren Adolph Brophy (son of Hannah) and Alice and Ellen Boucher (daughters of Anna).  

William and Julia Rooney’s daughters Kittie Talbot, Maggie Maher, Hannah Brophy, and Mary Riley along with their son William Rooney arranged for a 
monument to be built at the family plot. The names are not arranged alphabetically or according to age, therefore it is reasonable to conclude that the names are in 
the order of their contributions towards the monument. It is unknown whether the other children did not contribute or didn’t want their names displayed. 

Refer to Exhibit 58 for William Rooney’s death certificate and Exhibit 59 for his obituaries. 

Julia Rooney’s death certificate is shown as Exhibit 60 and her obituaries as Exhibit 61. 

Michael E. Byczek is the administrator and sponsor of William and Julia Rooney’s memorials on the Find a Grave website. He also administers the memorials for 
their children Kittie Talbot, Hugh Rooney, Josephine Rooney, and Hannah Brophy along with William Rooney’s parents Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer. Refer to 
“Citation 58” for web links. 
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Exhibit 58 

 

William Rooney Death Certificate 
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Exhibit 59 

       
   

Newspaper Obituary Articles 

Left: Chicago Tribune [59A] 
Right: Chicago Inter Ocean [59B] 

Page  of 180 359



 

 

 

 

Top: Chicago Evening Journal Newspaper Obituary Article [59C] 
Standard obituaries (top to bottom): Chicago Tribune [59D], Chicago Inter Ocean [59E], and Chicago Daily News [59F] 
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Exhibit 60 

 

Julia (Phelan) Rooney Death Certificate 
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Exhibit 61 

 

 

 

Obituaries (top to bottom): Chicago Tribune [61A], Chicago Inter Ocean [61B], and Chicago Daily News [61C] 
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Exhibit 62 

      

The William and Julia Rooney family plot at Calvary Cemetery [All four photo credits: Michael E. Byczek, 2016] [62A] 
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Plot and Ownership Information [62B] 
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XIII. Rooney and Phelan Families in Ireland 

William Rooney was the son of Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer, who were farmers in Urard, Co. Tipperary (Ireland). He was baptized on December 26, 1811 at the 
Catholic Church in the Parish of Gortnahoe. Baptism records in Ireland from that time period did not list date of birth. William’s family, after his death, thought 
that he had been born on Christmas Day in 1813. It was common for babies to be baptized on the same or following day of their birth. It is reasonable to conclude 
that William was born on Christmas Day and baptized a day later. The discrepancy between the years 1811 and 1813 could be a mistake made after his death. Hugh 
and Alice Rooney had at least nine children with only their date of baptisms listed on the records [Exhibit 63]: 

John 	 	 (9/24/1810) 
William 	 (12/26/1811) 
James 	 	 (12/5/1813) 
Peter 	 	 (1/3/1815) [*] 
Nancy & Ellen 	(3/17/1817) [Twins] 
Edmund 	 (12/26/1819) 
Margaret 	 (4/8/1822) 
Catherine 	 (7/27/1829) [**] 

[**] The 1829 baptism is illegible. However, Catherine appears to have been born around 1829, and her baptism has not been otherwise identified. Therefore, the 
1829 baptism is presumed to be Catherine. It is possible that there are other children, including the correct baptism for Catherine. 

[*] Peter was baptized in the nearby Parish of Ballingarry. The reason is unclear, perhaps while visiting family. 

There is not much known about Julia Phelan’s family. The godmother of her eldest child, Alice Rooney born in 1835, was Kitty Phelan. Therefore, it is presumed 
that Julia had a sister Catherine. This is also presumed to be the reason why William and Julia Rooney’s daughter Katherine was called as “Kittie”. 

William Rooney’s brother Edmund married Catherine Phelan/Whalen in Co. Kilkenny in 1854 [Exhibit 69]. It is unknown whether Edmund’s wife may have been 
the same Kitty Phelan as Alice Rooney’s godmother or whether this was just a coincidence. The maiden name of Edmund’s wife has been spelled both as Phelan 
and Whalen. Julia Rooney’s maiden name was also spelled as Whalen on occasion. 

There is reason to believe that Owen Rooney from Mount Prospect is John, the oldest son of Hugh and Alice Rooney from Co. Tipperary. 

Owen and Anne Rooney (Mt. Prospect) asked James Rooney to be the godfather for one of their children [Exhibit 68]. There was not any James Rooney known in 
Chicago at the time, suggesting he was living on the farm. It is highly likely that James Rooney who knew Owen was the son of Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer. 

William and Julia Rooney asked Peter Rooney to be the godfather for their daughter Mary [Exhibit 56-8]. It is highly likely that Peter was William’s brother. The 
only other known Peter Rooney in Chicago at the time was Owen Rooney’s son, who would have been a very young boy.  

Catherine Rooney, the daughter of Hugh and Alice, is confirmed to have traveled to Chicago [Exhibit 66]. She married William Gannon at St. Mary’s in 
Downtown Chicago in 1853. There are indications that the Gannon family farm was adjacent or otherwise near Owen Rooney’s farm in Elk Grove at the time. 
John Rooney was the witness to their marriage. It is unknown whether this was Owen Rooney or William and Julia’s son John, who would have been about 16 
years old. William and Catherine’s first two children were born in Chicago prior to the Gannon family relocating to a farm in Iowa.  
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Catherine (Rooney) Gannon was associated with a Michael and Ellen Gannon family in Chicago [Exhibit 67]. There is a baptism that suggests Ellen’s maiden 
name was Rooney. It is unknown whether Ellen (Rooney) Gannon may have been the daughter of Hugh and Alice Rooney from Co. Tipperary. This would suggest 
that two Rooney sisters may have married two Gannon brothers. Similarly, it is possible that two Rooney brothers married two Phelan sisters. 

Edmund Rooney passed away in Ireland in 1876. His widow and children traveled to Iowa to join their aunt and sister-in-law Catherine (Rooney) Gannon. It is 
most likely that Edmund’s family passed through Chicago on their journey to the Gannon farm in Iowa. It is reasonable to believe that they reunited with William 
and Julia Rooney on Division Street. 

Genealogical analysis of records indicate that both Rooney and Dwyer were well-known families in the Urard, Co. Tipperary area. There is a suggestion that 
William Rooney’s maternal grandfather was a member of the Dwyer family who owned mines in County Tipperary [Exhibit 64]. There is also reference to the 
“Rooney Cross” in Urard that was used as a geographic marker on the roads [Exhibit 65]. This suggests that the Rooney family held a prominent status in the 
village to have such a marker named for them. There were multiple Rooney and Dwyer families living in and near the Gortnahoe Parish, including those who were 
godparents for the children of Hugh and Alice Rooney. 

Records suggest that Hugh Rooney’s name may have been interchanged with John, such as one name being crossed out and the other written in its place. The 
reason remains unclear. It is also possible that Hugh’s father was known as Hugh Rooney Sr. William and Julia Rooney’s two oldest sons were John and Hugh. 

It is unknown when or where William Rooney married Julia Phelan. Their eldest known child, a daughter Alice, was baptized on September 19, 1835 at the 
Catholic Church for the Urlingford Parish in County Kilkenny. The family was living in Ardreagh. The Gortnahoe Parish in Co. Tipperary is adjacent to the 
Urlingford Parish in Co. Kilkenny. It is presumed that William Rooney and Julia Phelan were married in that area shortly before the birth of their daughter Alice.  

Both Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer appear to be members of large families near Urard in County Tipperary. While it is not known where either were born or 
where/when their marriage took place, it is highly likely that they are originally from the same area. 

Land records for County Tipperary consistently show Alice Rooney was associated with Hugh Rooney and John Rooney, including one name being crossed out in 
favor of the other. There are also three Rooney families that appear in sequence. Those names are Hugh Jr, Hugh Sr, and Owen Rooney. It is possible that Hugh 
Rooney Jr is William’s father, Hugh Sr was his grandfather, and Owen was his brother prior to settling in Chicago. Refer to Exhibit 71 for an overview and the 
following analysis for representative documents that describe the Hugh and Alice Rooney farm. 

Neither Hugh nor Alice Rooney’s death can be verified. There are two death records for Alice Rooney, both in Urard, about the same age and same time (1866 and 
1876). Government death records did not begin until the 1860s. Land records show more than one Hugh Rooney. Therefore, it is difficult to determine when 
William Rooney’s father disappeared from the records. It is presumed that the correct death record for Alice (Dwyer) Rooney in 1866 because the informant was 
Edmund Rooney, also from Urard [Exhibit 70]. The best estimate for Hugh Rooney’s death is 1856-1866. Both are presumed to have been buried at the Gortnahoe 
Catholic Parish cemetery or other nearby graveyard. 

There is a high likelihood, but unverified at present, that William Rooney’s grandfather may have been Hugh Rooney, Sr. The land records suggest that William’s 
eldest brother John was named Owen and initially received a portion of the Hugh and Alice Rooney farm. When Owen Rooney presumedly traveled to Chicago, 
the land reverted back to Hugh and Alice. After Hugh Sr passed away, Hugh Jr acquired full ownership of these three Rooney farms. More research is needed. 

There are multiple references to Hugh Rooney in Urard, such as his status as a juror [Exhibit 72] and voter [Exhibit 73]. 

While the exact location or boundaries of Hugh and Alice Rooney’s farm cannot be determined at present, the approximate location is analyzed in Exhibit 74. It is 
important to observe that the names Hugh Jr, Hugh Sr, John, Owen, and Alice are eventually merged into a single farm under the singular name Hugh Rooney. 
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Exhibit 63 

There are several discrepancies amongst the baptisms for the children of Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer, primarily spelling variations: 

Child	 	 Father	 	 Mother		 	 Residence	 Location of Baptism (Parish) 

John 	 	 Hugh Rooney 	 Alicia Dwyer	 	 Urard	 	 Gortnahoe 
William 	 Hugh Rooney 	 Alice Dwyer	 	 Urard	 	 Gortnahoe 
James 	 	 Jno Rooney 	 Alicia Dwyer	 	 Rathbeg	 Gortnahoe 
Peter 	 	 Hugh Rooney 	 Allicia Dwyer	 	 Lisnamrock	 Ballingarry 
Nancy + Ellen 	 Hugh Rowny 	 Ally Dwyer	 	 Illegible	 Gortnahoe 
Edmund 	 Hugh Rony 	 Alice Dwyer	 	 Urard	 	 Gortnahoe 
Margaret 	 Hugh Rony 	 Alley Dwyer	 	 Urard	 	 Gortnahoe 
_ Rony 		 Hugh Rony 	 Elisa Drew	 	 Illegible	 Gortnahoe 

Page  of 190 359



 

 

Top: Baptism of John Rooney [63A] 

Bottom: Baptism of William Rooney [63B] 
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Top: Baptism of James Rooney [63C] - Godparents appear to be James Dwyer and Catherine Rooney 

Bottom: Baptism of Peter Rooney [63D] 
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Top: Baptism of twins Ellen and Nancy Rooney [63E] - It appears that their godmother was Ellen Rooney 

Bottom: Baptism of Edmund Rooney [63F] 
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Top: Baptism of Margaret Rooney [63G] 

Bottom: Baptism of an illegible child that is presumed to be Catherine Rooney [63H] 
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Exhibit 64 

The biography of Edmund Tobin in Chicago suggests that he was the first cousin once removed of William Rooney. Edmund Tobin’s maternal grandmother was 
William Rooney’s maternal aunt. The following observations are necessary to explain what might otherwise be perceived as discrepancies. 

1. This biography refers to two Dwyer sisters in Co. Tipperary. One was married to Joseph Fitzgerald and later Edward Leahy. The other married John Rooney. 
William Rooney’s father appears to have used both names of Hugh and John. 

2. The biography refers to a Rooney who came to Chicago at a “very early date”. This reference of “very early” can only refer to William Rooney’s status as an 
Old Settler. It is presumed that the narrator of this biography knew about several members of the Rooney/Dwyer family who settled in Chicago and that 
William was designated an “Old Settler” of the city. The biography should not be taken literally that Alice and Hugh themselves traveled to Chicago. 

3. The Rooney family described in this biography came to Chicago “very early” and settled on Division Street. This can only refer to William and Julia Rooney’s 
house at 43 E. Division. 

4. The biography further explains that the Rooney family on Division Street bought land from the Government and their estate contained several hundred acres, 
where their descendants still lived. This can only refer to the William and Julia Rooney “Des Plaines Farm” and “Mount Prospect Farm”, where their son John 
still owned at the time this biography was written. 
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Exhibit 65 

During the 1860s and 1870s there was an Edmund/Edward Rooney who was involved with government road construction contracts in and around Urard. 

The projects described sections of road and refer to a marker in Urard as “Rooney’s Cross”, which does not appear to still exist. 

It is presumed that somebody named Rooney erected a wayside cross as an intersection marker on the main road that went through Urard. There are two primary 
intersections in Urard. The Rooney family must have held a prominent status in Urard, or were otherwise well-known in the village for such a designation. 

 

Clonmel Chronicle - 4/27/1861 [65A] 
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Tipperary Free Press - 4/29/1862 [65B] 
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Exhibit 66 

 

1853 Marriage of William Gannon and Catherine Rooney at St. Mary’s Catholic Church in Downtown Chicago [66A] 

John Rooney was a witness 
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Published biography of William Gannon [66B] 
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1855 Illinois State Census that shows Owen Rooney’s farm was near, if not adjacent, to the William and John Gannon farms in Elk Grove [66C] 

Page  of 201 359



Exhibit 67 

 

1854 Baptism of John Gannon, son of William and Catherine Gannon, at St. Mary’s whose godparents are Michael and Ellen Gannon [67A] 

William Gannon had a brother Michael 
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1852 Baptism of John Gannon, son of Michael Gannon and Ellen Rooney, at St. Patrick’s Church in Chicago [67B] 

The godfather was Richard Gannon. William Gannon had a brother Richard. 
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Exhibit 68 

 

July 23, 1848 Baptism for James Rooney, son of Owen Rooney and Anne Dorsey, at St. Patrick’s Church in Chicago 

The godfather was James Rooney. This name does not appear in the Chicago City Directories, suggesting he lived on one of the Rooney farms. 

William and Julia Rooney’s daughter Mary was baptized at the same church on June 27th with Peter Rooney as godfather (less than one month apart) 
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Exhibit 69 

 

1854 Marriage of Edmund Rooney and Catherine Phelan - Ballycallan Catholic Parish in County Kilkenny 
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Exhibit 70 

 

1866 Death Certificate for Alice Roney, a widow, living in Urard [70A] 

The witness was Edmund Rooney, also from Urard. Because of the witness, it is presumed to be the correct death certificate for Alice (Dwyer) Rooney. 
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1876 Death Certificate for Alice Roney, a widow, living in Urard [70B] 

The witness was William Roney, also from Urard 

It is unknown whether there were two Alice Rooney widows living in Urard, or whether this is a duplicate death certificate that may have been filed in error 
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1. Hugh and Alice Rooney Farm - Representative Land Records 

1831 Tithe Defaulters: 	 	 Owen, Hugh, and Hugh Sr Roony are the only three farmers with the Rooney surname [71A] 

1842 Rate Book 	 	 	 Owen, Hugh, and Hugh Sr Rooney are consecutive entries [71B] 

1846 Tenure Book [71C]		 (1) 	 Hugh Rowney Jr crossed out as John Jr. 
	 	 	 	 	 	 Alice Rowney 
	 	 	 	 	 	 John Rowney leasing from Hugh and Alice Rowney 

	 	 	 	 	 (2) 	 Hugh Rowney Sr crossed out as just Hugh 
	 	 	 	 	 	 Hugh Rowney Sr subleasing two parcels 

	 	 	 	 	 (3) 	 Hugh Rowney has part of another subdivision 

1846 House Book [71D]		 Version A: 	 (1) 	 Alice Rowney 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Hugh Rowney Jr 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 John Rowney 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 (2) 	 Hugh Rowney Sr 
	 	 	  
	 	 	 	 	 Version B: 	 (1) 	 Alice Rowney 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Hugh Rowney Jr crossed out as John Rowney Jr 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 John Rowney 

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 (2) 	 Hugh Rowney with Sr added 

1848 House Book [71E]	 	 Same as 1846 House Book Version B 

1849 Field Book [71F] 	 	 (1) 	 Hugh Rooney Jr and Alice Rooney 
	 	 	 	 	 	 Hugh Rooney and Alice Rooney 
	 	 	 	 	 	 John Rooney 

	 	 	 	 	 (2) 	 Hugh Rooney Sr 

1850 Griffiths [71G]	 	 (1) 	 John Rooney Jr 
	 	 	 	 	 	 Alice Rooney 
	 	 	 	 	 	 John Rooney leasing from Alice Rooney and John Rooney 

	 	 	 	 	 (2) 	 Hugh Rooney Sr 
	 	 	 	 	 	 Two sublots leased from Hugh Rooney Sr 

Note: The years and record descriptions (i.e. house versus field books) are based on best efforts to identify the chronology and purpose of each document. 
Page  of 208 359



Exhibit 71 - Land Description 

There is a consistent pattern in the land records of three segments of land. Regardless of why Hugh Jr was crossed out, it is fair to presume the land divided into 
three segments under the name Alice is where William Rooney was born. It is also fair to presume that the land could have originally belonged to his grandfather 
Hugh Sr, since the earliest documents list the names as consecutive. It is also fair to presume that William’s grandfather took over other land, of which two sublots 
were leased out. 

There are two distinct groupings of land that Michael E. Byczek described as “Three Segments - Alice” and “Three Segments - Hugh Sr”. 

Three Segments - Alice 

	 	 	 	 Type 	 	 	 Grade (1846) 	 Grade (1848)	 	 Dimensions [2] 	    	 Possible Acreage A-R-P (1849) [1] 

Sublot A (Hugh Jr / John) 	 House 	 	 	 3C+ 	 	 2C 	 	 	 29.6 x 15.6 x 5.0 	 8-2-30 
	 	 	 	 Shed Cow House 	 4C- 	 	 3C- 	 	 	 12.6 x 7.0 x 4.0 		 2-2-0 

Sublot B (Alice) 	 	 House 	 	 	 3C- 	 	 2B- 	 	 	 31.6 x 16.6 x 5.6 	 4-1-0 
	 	 	 	 Stable 	 	 	 3C 	 	 2C+ 	 	 	 9.6 x 15.6 x 5.6 		 3-0-0 
	 	 	 	 Piggery 	 	 4C- 	 	 3C- 	 	 	 8.6 x 8.0 x 3.6 	 	 0-2-0 

Sublot C (John) 	 	 House 	 	 	 3C- 	 	 2C- 	 	 	 19.6 x 14.6 x 5.0 	 0-3-39 

Three Segments - Hugh Sr 

Sublot A (Hugh Sr) 	 	 House 	 	 	 2B 	 	 Same 	 	 	 39.6 x 17.6 x 7.0 	 27-0-32 
	 	 	 	 Cow House 	 	 2B 	 	 2C+ 	 	 	 57.0 x 16.6 x 6.0 	 4-0-0 
	 	 	 	 Piggery 	 	 A- 	 	 2B 	 	 	 7.6 x 11.0 x 5.0 
	 	 	 	 Quarry 

Sublot B (Burk) 	 	 House 	 	 	 3C 	 	 2C+ 	 	 	 20.6 x 12.0 x 5.0 	 0-0-19 

Sublot C (Kelly) 	 	 House 	 	 	 3C+ 	 	 2C 	 	 	 28.0 x 16.0 x 5.6 	 0-0-26 
	 	 	 	 House return (?) 	 2B 	 	 2C+ 	 	 	 10.6 x 13.6 x 5.6 
	 	 	 	 Piggery 	 	 2C+ 	 	 Same 	 	 	 6.0 x 11.6 x 4.0 

Assessment: The grade classification changed for most of the structures from 1846 to 1848. It’s possible that a different classification scheme was used. One 
version was found online, but it’s not known if reliable. According to the changes in classification, both the state of repair, age, and construction method/material 
changed. This may reflect a different method to classify structures. 

[1] The 1849 Field Book shows a list of lot dimensions without descriptions that probably correspond to each purposes of the land (i.e. House). 
[2] It is assumed that the dimensions are listed in Irish measurements, since it appears that the acreage corresponds to Irish versus English. 
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Generalized Grade Classifications (according to online sources). 

Dwellings 

1 - Slated dwelling houses built with stone or brick and lime and mortar 
2 - Thatches houses built with stone or line and mortar 
3 - Thatched houses having stone walls with mud or puddle mortar; dry stone walls pointed, or mud walls of the best kind 
4 - Urban: Basement stories of a slate-roof house used as dwellings 

Offices 

1 - Slated offices built with stone, or brick walls with good lime mortar 
2 - Thatched offices built with stone or brick walls and lime mortar 
3 - Thatches offices having stone walls with mud or puddle mortar, dry stone walls pointed, or good mud walls 
4 - Thatched offices built with stone walls 

Newly Built 

A + 	 Built or ornamented with cut stone, and of superior solidity and finish 
A 	 Very substantial building and finish, without cut stone ornament 
A - 	 Ordinary building and finish or either of the above when built 20-25 years prior 

Medium Age 

B +	 Medium but not new, but in sound order and in good repair 
B 	 Medium, slightly decayed by age, but in good repair 
B - 	 Medium, deteriorated by age, and not in perfect repair 

Older than 25 years 

C + 	 Old but in good repair 
C 	 Old and out of repair 
C - 	 Old and dilapidated, scarcely habitable 
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Maps 

It is not presently possible to identify the Rooney farm from the Griffiths Map. 

The Map with lot numbers do not match with the official Griffiths index or the Valuation Books from the 1840s. 

The Griffiths Index is supposed to match the corresponding map. However, the lot numbers do not correspond to the property descriptions. For instance, one 
property listed as 19 acres is four times larger than a lot listed as 15 acres. 

According to the 1850 Griffiths, the three segment property (Alice) with lot number 36 is 19 acres whereas the three segment subdivision (Hugh Sr) with lot 
number 54 is 42 acres. However, lot 36 is about ten times the size of lot 54. 

Also, Griffiths lists Urard as having 67 lots. However, the corresponding map only has 60 numbered lots. 

The Valuation Books from the 1840s constantly cross lot numbers out and refer to the Hugh Sr subdivision as formerly being lot #67, suggesting there is an older 
map that the Valuation Books are based upon. 

There is also uncertainty with the location of Urard in County Tipperary. It is possible that the Urard village as it existed during the Rooney time period may not 
exactly match present-day boundaries. 

The 1850 Griffiths Map shows Urard near the border with Urlingford Parish in County Kilkenny. Gortnahoe (Tipperary) and Urlingford (Kilkenny) are adjacent. 
The modern day map shows Urard in a different location, but not that far away. It is presumed that the Griffiths Map is accurate, and that at some point the village 
boundaries may have changed. 
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1831 Tithe Defaulters 
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Rate Books 

There are multiple Rate Books, but only the 1842 edition for the Fennor Parish (civil parish) has been found online as of present. 

There are only three Rooney entires, listed consecutively: Owen, Hugh, and Hugh Sr.  

Consecutive entry suggests the three individuals are associated with the same or adjacent land. An observation should be made about the three Rooney farms in 
Mount Prospect and Des Plaines. William and Julia Rooney may have been trying to recreate the family arrangement in Urard. 

There are several pages for Urard. The Rooney family appears at lines 168, 169, and 170 [They are leasing the land from Fitzgerald, who owns most of Urard] 

This version of the Rate Books uses both Irish and English measurements. 

It appears that the difference is that 1 Irish acre = 1.62 English acres (according to online sources). 

A R P refers to acre - rood - perch. 

It appears that the Statute Measure is equivalent to U.S. measurement. 

Hugh Sr had 31 acres while Hugh Jr and Owen had equal amounts of 10 acres. This could suggest that Hugh Sr is the patriarch or head of the family. 

Two possible scenarios are: Hugh Jr split his land in half for his son Owen, or Hugh Sr gave two of his sons (John and Owen are brothers) equal amounts. This 
could further explain why William and Julia Rooney arranged for their eldest son John to acquire a portion of their farm in 1863. William Rooney may have been 
following a Rooney tradition where the father splits the family farm in half for his oldest son. 

Owen and Hugh have a 5 net annual value while Hugh Sr is 14. 

According to this financial breakdown, Hugh Sr has three times the net annual value of each smaller Rooney plot. Hugh Sr also has more expenses and repairs, 
probably because it’s a larger operation. 
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Valuation Books 

There are a series of valuation books that appear to have been either a precursor to Griffiths Valuation (1850) or were the actual documents used to finalize 
Griffiths. 

Four such books are described in this biography for the Rooney family in Urard: 

Tenure Book 	 1846 [undated, so it’s unknown whether it was written before or after the 2-10-1846 House Book] 
House Book 	 2-10-1846 
House Book 	 5-12-1848 
Field Book 	 2-28-1849 

These documents have multiple entries crossed out. 

Some of the crossed out portions pertain to Hugh and John, as if the names are interchangeable or the land has changed hands. It is assumed that whoever was 
compiling the information was using existing records and had to keep changing the names each time they visited the land (suggesting Hugh and John were 
interchangeable or, perhaps, co-owners). 

Other items that are crossed out are the lot numbers, which create the discrepancies with the Griffiths lot map to identify the location of the land. 

The 1842 Rate Book (pre-famine) appears to show Owen, Hugh, and Hugh Sr leasing three adjacent parcels of land. 

The 1846-1849 Valuation Books (post-famine) appear to reflect this same configuration, with the additional indication that Hugh Sr took over another farm. 

These books also indicate that Owen is not involved with the land anymore. It appears to show that Hugh and Alice now have two adjacent parcels of 
land which are adjacent to Hugh Sr. This would suggest that when Owen vanished from the records, Hugh and Alice took over the land (perhaps suggesting a 
parent-child relationship). There are indications that Owen Rooney in Chicago arrived around 1843, which could correspond to the difference between the 1842 
and 1846 land records in County Tipperary. The fact that Owen Rooney appeared in Chicago at about the same time an individual with that same name disappeared 
from the Co. Tipperary land records suggests this is the same person. 
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1846 Tenure Book 
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One portion of the land - Currently marked lot 37. Formerly marked 61, 62, and 63 but that could also be position number of the ledger 
It appears to show that Hugh Rooney is now listed as John, but that Hugh and Alice are one unit (suggesting they are married) 

Hugh and Alice are equal owners of the first segment, while they lease the second segment to John (this is presumed to be Owen’s share that reverted back) 
The 1842 Rate Book showed two parcels containing 6 acres. Therefore, combined they are 12 acres (as listed here) 
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Hugh Rooney Senior is crossed out 
This parcel of land is currently listed as lot 52 (illegible) with three subdivisions containing a total of 19 acres (matches with 1842 Rate Book) 

Hugh has the first segment, while he is leasing out the other two segments to Burk and Kelly. 
Note: Matthew Burk is crossed out to read Thomas Burk while Peter Brennan is crossed out to show Edward Kelly. 
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There is a new entry for Hugh Rooney, which shows lot 54 (old lot 67 is written in) 
It appears that old lot 67 was subdivided into lots 54 (as above) with another portion in the name of Hugh Rooney 

The names of Patrick Cahill and another are crossed out with Hugh Rooney written in 
This land total is less than one acre 

A note is made that Hugh Rooney has all of Pat Cahill’s land with reference to lot 78 (illegible) 
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1846 House Book 
Version 1 

 

Four entries on the 2nd page corresponding (three segments plus the new subdivision) 
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This is the three segment property - Alice owns part b, Hugh Jr (crossed out with John added) has part a, and John has part c 
Part B: House in 3C grade (31.6 x 16.6 x 5.6), Stable in 3C- grade (9.6 x 15.6 x 5.6) and Piggery in 4C- grade (8.6 x 8.0 x 3.6) 

Part A: House in 3C+ grade (29.6 x 15.6 x 5.0), Shed Cow House in 4C- grade (12.6 x 7.0 x 4.0) 
Part C: House in 3C- grade (19.6 x 14.6 x 5.0) 

It would appear that Part A is more valuable (13) compared to Part B (8 and 6) and Part C (4 and 6) 
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This is the newly added subdivided portion 
Hugh Sr has Part A 

House in 2B grade (39.6 x 17.6 x 7.0), cow house in 2B grade (57.0 x 16.6 x 6.0) and Piggery with new wall (?) in A- Grade (7.6 x 11.0 x 5.0) 

It appears that this is brand new property that is significantly more valuable than the three segment portion above. 
Hugh is subleasing Parts B and C to Burk and Kelly, so he also is the primary occupier of this land from Fitzgerald. 
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1846 House Book 
Version 2 

 

The first parcel of land with three segments on the first page with the subdivision on the 2nd page. 
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It would appear that this is the original book that predated the earlier version 
This is the three segment parcel of land, and it shows Hugh Jr without being crossed out 

However, it shows John, not Hugh as the other entry 
Alice and Hugh Jr are both referred to as #62 while John is #63, indicating that however this was compiled, Alice and Hugh Jr are associated with each other 
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This is the subdivided parcel, with all three names listed as #65. 
Note, that Peter Brennan is listed, whereas he is crossed out in the version above. 

For some reason, the piggery is crossed out, perhaps suggesting it was being built and was finished for the version listed above. 
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1848 House Book 

 

The three segments involving Alice are on the left page 
The divided land follows immediately, as if the land is adjacent 
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The segments for lot 37, again with Hugh Jr crossed out and John added 
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Lot 54 subdivision - More changes (decline) for Hugh Sr: House the same grade, cow house in 2C+ grade (formerly 2B), and Piggery in 2B grade (formerly A-) 
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1849 Field Book 

 

The three segment land with Alice on the 2nd page 
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The three segment subdivision on first page (consecutive except for one entry between the previous segment (with Alice)) 
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This book has a different format and breaks down the combined land into smaller segments (that match the building descriptions) 
It appears that the total acreage is about 18 plus, which corresponds to the original 19 acres going back to the 1842 Rate Book (Hugh Sr portion in 1842) 

This book also refers to “waste”, perhaps a garbage dump. The lots are written as 62 and 63 then crossed out as 61 and 62. 
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The subdivision portion: Referred to as lot 65 with 76 written in pencil (there was a earlier comment about lot 67 - perhaps an error) 
Hugh Sr is listed as having waste at houses and quarry 

This book refers to Hugh Sr having a breakdown consisting of a total of 31 acres and the other two (Burke and Brennan) having a very small patch 
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1850 Griffiths 

 

 

Top: The three segments with Alice 
Bottom: The three segment subdivision for Hugh Sr 

Note: The three segment with Alice is listed as 19 acres while the Hugh Sr segments have 42 acres. 

The 1842 Rate Book showed an initial segment of 6, 6, and 19 as if the two 6 acres segments were joined. 
The 1849 field book showed only 19 acres and that Hugh Sr had 31 acres. 

This could indicate that the missing 12 acres from Alice’s segments were added to Hugh Sr’s 31 acres for approximately 42 acres 

Alice Rooney is associated with John Rooney, Junior. This could be another indication that the names Hugh and John are interchanged in relation to Hugh Senior 
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1856 Encumbered Land Sale 

The Fitzgerald Family auctioned off, perhaps, all of Urard in 1856. Hugh Rooney was listed as one of the land holders [71H]. 

The Auction was divided into two lots, 1 and 2. It appears that the two lots are roughly the north and south portions of Urard. 

Hugh Rooney is listed under lot 2, which corresponds to the general area of the Griffiths Map, despite having the wrong lot numbers. 

There is only one Rooney (Hugh) among the list of names. He is listed with 62 acres, but it’s unknown whether this is the Irish or English form of measurement. 

The 1850 Griffiths showed Hugh Jr (John Jr) and Alice had 19 acres and Hugh Sr had 42 acres. If the lands were combined, it would be about 61 acres. 

Since there is only one Hugh Rooney (only one Rooney at all), it’s possible that Hugh Sr is dead and Hugh Jr took over all the land. This could indicate that 
William Rooney’s father was still living as of 1856. 

This could be the best estimate of Hugh Rooney’s death, since the most probable death certificate for his wife Alice is 1866 as a widow. 

Hugh Rooney’s farm is located in Lot 2, as that identifier was used for the auction. This represents the best geographic location of the Rooney farm, because it 
narrows down the possibilities when comparing Griffiths lot numbers with the map index. Lots #36 and #54 from Griffiths is within Lot 2 as used for the 1856 
auction. 
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Exhibit 72 

 

There is a single Hugh Rooney from Urard who was identified as a juror in 1846. It is unknown how he was selected to be a juror. 

Hugh Rooney referred to as a freeholder farmer 

List of Jurors printed in the Publication “Accounts and Papers of the House of Commons” for 1846 - Book referred to as the Session for 1/22 - 8/28/1846 
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Exhibit 73 

 

It appears that land holders (freeholders) were allowed to vote, but had to declare their intentions 

There is a single Hugh Rooney from Urard who declared himself to vote in 1847 

Hugh Rooney identified as a freeholder farmer with yearly value of 10 pounds (or shillings, hard to read) 

Newspaper Article - Voter Declaration (Tipperary Vindicator - 10/13/1847) [73A] 
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There is also a Hugh Rooney from the general Gortnahoe Region (without a village name) who joined in a political meeting in 1844 

Tipperary Vindicator - 12/18/1844 [73B] 
Page  of 247 359



Exhibit 74 
Land Maps 

The Griffiths Land Index refers to map numbers to locate each farm. There is also an overlay tool to view present-day locations. However, there is uncertainty as to 
the accuracy of the map lot numbers. The following maps show prospective lot boundaries based on the information provided through the Griffiths search tool. The 
maps may not be accurate, but are a good estimate to visualize where Hugh and Alice Rooney’s farm would have been approximately located. 

 

The best verification of where the farm was located is using the Catholic parish boundaries. William Rooney was baptized in the Gortnahoe Parish of Co. 
Tipperary, while his daughter Alice was baptized in the Urlingford Catholic Parish of Co. Kilkenny. The map above [74A] shows that these two Catholic parishes 
are adjacent. Hugh and Alice Rooney were living in Urard within the Gortnahoe Parish in 1811. William and Julia Rooney were living in Ardreagh within the 
Urlingford Parish in 1835. The only way to verify the locations of Urard and Ardreagh was the fact that each was situated within that particular parish boundaries. 
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Present-day Urard is considered a Townland in the Fennor Civil Parish located between Urlingford and Gortnahoe [74B] 
It is unclear whether this was the same Urard boundaries as when William Rooney was born in 1811 
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Google Maps show that there is a present-day Urard further southwest than Gortnahoe in the opposite direction than Urlingford [74C] 
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Location of Urard in the context of Ireland as a country [74D] 
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The map that accompanied Griffiths shows Urard with lot numbers [74E] 
Urard is the section with the “OR” in “FENNOR” 

Urlingford is along the top of the image 
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Zoom of north half of Urard [74F] 
The name Urard is visible halfway between the OR of FENNOR and the bottom of the image 
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Zoom of south half of Urard [74G] 
Lots 36 (middle of image) and 54 (slightly below) are the best candidates for the Rooney farm 
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Lots 36 and 54 [74H] 
There appears to be a discrepancy in how the lot numbers correspond to the Griffiths Index. Therefore, the map may not match the lot numbers. 

The road intersection north of lot 56 (at the ‘a’ corner) shows a circle in the top corner. This is the best candidate for where the Rooney Cross was located. 
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Search tool overlay that shows the present-day location of each Griffiths lot number [74I] 
Emphasis is on lots 36 and 54 
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Present-day aerial view of what could have been the Hugh and Alice Rooney farm [74J] 
Emphasis must be made that the lot numbers do not appear to perfectly match the map that accompanied the Griffiths Index 
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A second map overlay showing the same lot numbers [74K] 
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The map marker shows lot 36 [74L] 
The road intersection to the southwest, which is the best candidate for the Rooney Cross (may not exist in present-day) and very near the possible farm location 
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Aerial view of Urard [74M] 
The Catholic Church where William Rooney was baptized in 1811 was located in Gortnahoe on the bottom-left of the image (Rathbeg also visible) 

William and Julia Rooney were living in Ardreagh (near the top-right of the image) in 1835 shortly after their marriage 
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XIV. Rooney and Phelan Relatives in Chicago 

There is reason to believe that William Rooney’s brothers John, Peter, and James and his sisters Catherine and Ellen joined him in Chicago. There is a suggestion 
that his parents also came to Chicago, but that is less likely. The known records suggest that both Hugh and Alice Rooney passed away while living in Urard.  

It is also reasonable to speculate that when William Rooney’s sister-in-law Catherine (Phelan) Rooney and her children joined Catherine (Rooney) Gannon in 
Iowa, they probably stopped in Chicago to reunite with William and Julia Rooney. This is especially true if Catherine and Julia were relatives, and perhaps even 
sisters.  

There was at least one Phelan family associated with both Catherine (Phelan) Rooney and Catherine (Rooney) Gannon in Iowa. The exact family relationship is 
unknown, but if they were also related to Julia (Phelan) Rooney, it is reasonable to believe that they also stayed in Chicago to reunite with the Rooney family prior 
to settling in Iowa. 

As mentioned, Edmund Tobin settled in Chicago and appears to have been William Rooney’s first cousin once removed. 

There is a high likelihood that Kittie Rooney’s marriage to Edward H. Talbot reveals a direct or indirect family relation or acquaintance through their common 
County Tipperary origins. Edward’s parents were Thomas Talbot and Hannah McDonald/McDonnell who were married in Taunton, MA in 1852. Thomas Talbot 
was born in Ballinlonty within the Drom and Inch Catholic Parish. Exhibit 74A shows the proximity between the Rooney and Talbot family churches in  
Co. Tipperary. There is a possibility that Hannah (McDonald/McDonnell) Talbot was also from Co. Tipperary. 

Lizzie (Rooney) Periolat’s daughter Julia was baptized at Holy Family Church in 1872 [Exhibit 75A]. The baptism record is slightly illegible, but appears to show 
that the godparents were Edward Talbot and Catherine Rooney. This baptism took place eight years before Kittie and Edward were married. There is little doubt 
that Lizzie would ask one of her sisters, Kittie, to be a godmother versus another Rooney in Chicago with the same name. While there was more than one Edward 
Talbot, the fact that Kittie Rooney would later marry a husband with that name, suggests that Kittie and Edward knew each other at least eight years prior to their 
wedding through the Rooney family.  

Anna (Rooney) Boucher’s son George was baptized at St. Pius V Church in 1879 [Exhibit 75B]. The godparents were Thomas and Hanora Talbot. Edward Talbot’s 
mother Hannah was also known as Hanora. The church was located on 18th and Ashland while the Talbot family lived near 18th and Wentworth. The baptism took 
place a year prior to Kittie and Edward’s marriage in 1880.  

Kittie Rooney’s father was born in the Gortnahoe Catholic Parish while Edward Talbot’s father was born in the nearby Drom and Inch Catholic Parish. It is very 
likely that William Rooney and Thomas Talbot were at least acquainted with each other’s families in County Tipperary and later reunited in Chicago. 

William and Julia Rooney’s family were also involved with two other families (Sanders and Wright) in Chicago over the years. Both families remained very close 
with John and Ellen Rooney in the Bridgeport neighborhood. While the exact family relationship is unknown, it is highly likely that they were related. 

Records show that Patrick Sanders married Mary Walsh/Welch at St. James in Chicago in 1859. Their son James was baptized at St. Mary’s in Downtown in 1868 
[Exhibit 76A]. His godmother was Bridget A. Rooney (highly likely and presumed to be the daughter of William and Julia Rooney). Their daughter Margaret 
Sanders was baptized at St. Mary’s in 1869 [Exhibit 76B]. Her godfather was William Rooney without any further identifying details. Margaret Sanders later 
married Charles Rooney, who was the grandson of Owen Rooney from Mt. Prospect. Other members of Owen and Anne Rooney’s family were also associated 
with the Patrick and Mary Sanders family over the years.  
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Patrick Sanders was a Chicago alderman who assisted William Rooney during construction of his namesake building on Franklin and Lake after incurring costs 
related to improvements made to the public street. Patrick Sanders later owned a plumbing company and was a creditor in Julia Rooney’s probate case. William 
and Julia Rooney’s son John, and his wife Ellen, were very close to the Sanders family. Their family plots are adjacent to each other at Calvary Cemetery. When 
Mary Sanders passed away in 1901, a comment was made that the pallbearers were her Rooney cousins. An unverified claim has been made through user-
submitted online genealogy that the mother of Mary (Walsh/Welch) Sanders was Julia or Johanna Rooney. It is unknown how William Rooney was related to Mary 
Sanders, but there appears to have been a rather strong Rooney family connection. 

The Andrew Wright and Bridget Ryan family was also associated with William and Julia Rooney. Their son Joseph Wright was baptized at St. Thomas in Chicago 
in 1873 [Exhibit 77A]. The godparents were Hugh Roney and Mary Roney. It is presumed to be the son and daughter of William and Julia Rooney. Their son 
Andrew Wright was baptized at Nativity in Bridgeport in 1882 [Exhibit 77B]. His godfather was John Rooney, presumed to be the son of William and Julia 
Rooney.  

Michael E. Byczek’s great-grandmother Marie Talbot, the daughter of Kittie Rooney and Edward Talbot, lived with her uncle John Rooney after her father passed 
away. John Rooney built a family home at 2970 Archer in the Bridgeport neighborhood [Exhibit 78]. It is believed that Marie Talbot remained with her uncle from 
1908 until her marriage to Martin Flanagan in 1922. During this time, another relative also lived in the John Rooney household. Catherine Wright was identified as 
a cousin alongside Marie Talbot. At one point, John and Augustus Wright also lived at 2970 Archer. These seem to have all been Wright siblings. The exact family 
connection between the Rooney and Wright families remains unknown, but appears to have been more significant than mere acquaintances.  
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Exhibit 75 




75A: Julia Periolat’s baptism in 1872 that shows Edward Talbot (slightly illegible) and Catherine Rooney as godparents 
The best interpretation of the handwriting is “Edward Talbot and Catherine Rooney” 




75B: George Boucher’s baptism in 1879 that shows Thomas and Hanora Talbot as godparents 
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Exhibit 76 




76A: Baptism of James Sanders at St. Mary with Bridget A. Rooney as godmother 




76B: Baptism of Margaret Sanders at St. Mary with William Rooney as godfather 
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Exhibit 77 




77A: Baptism of Christopher Wright at St. Thomas the Apostle with Hugh and Mary Roney as godparents 




77B: Baptism of Andrew Wright at Nativity with John Rooney as godfather 
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Exhibit 78 




2970 Archer in the Bridgeport neighborhood of Chicago that was built by John Rooney in 1896 [78A] 
Marie Talbot lived with her uncle from at least 1908 through 1922, alongside another Rooney relative Kathryn Wright [Photo Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2022] 
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Building Permit - Chicago Chronicle (7/19/1896) [78B] 

The address for the building permit was 2972 Archer. The present-day address is 2970 Archer. 
There is not an address that corresponds to 2972 Archer, so it is presumed to have just been the number used for the architect plans 
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About the Biographer, Michael E. Byczek 

Michael E. Byczek has been a licensed Illinois attorney since May 2007 and real estate broker since April 2003. He is 6th generation Chicagoan (5th born in the 
city) and lifelong resident of the Bridgeport neighborhood with a Chicago lineage dating back to 1835 as the 3x-great-grandson of William and Julia Rooney. 

He has a background in both computer science and engineering as a student at the Illinois Institute of Technology (Electrical and Computer Engineering) and 
graduate of the University of Maryland (B.S. Computer and Information Science, summa cum laude). He graduated from The John Marshall Law School in 
Chicago (J.D., cum laude) in 2007. Real estate brokerage training was completed through the Chicago Association of Realtors. 

Michael was one of the first attorneys in the United States to develop legal apps for mobile devices beginning with Apple iOS in 2008 followed by Android in 
2011. He continued developing legal apps for different platforms over the years and launched a digital and print book series in 2024.  

Several I.T. certifications have been awarded as a macOS and Linux system administrator. Legal focus has been technology, intellectual property (patent, 
trademark, and copyright), estate plans, and real estate.   

Profile: https://michaelbyczek.pro  
Law: https://byczeklaw.com 
Brokerage: https://byczekbrokerage.com  

All Major Social Media Platforms: @michaelbyczek, @byczeklaw, and @byczekbrokerage 

Email: michael@byczek.pro 

DNA Genealogy 

Michael E. Byczek performed a DNA test through ancestry.com in 2024. As of December 15, 2024 he is a DNA match to the descendants of Kittie Talbot  
(in addition to his own direct lineage through Marie Talbot), Lizzie Periolat, Maggie Maher, and John Rooney (children of William Rooney and Julia Phelan). 

He is also a DNA match to descendants of Edmund Rooney and Catherine Phelan/Whalen (son and daughter-in-law of Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer). 

These are the only verified Rooney DNA matches as of December 15, 2024. 
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Michael E. Byczek (West Loop neighborhood of Chicago) [79A] [Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2024] 
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Michael E. Byczek at the William and Julia Rooney Residence located at 43 E. Division in Chicago (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2017) [79B] 
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Michael E. Byczek at the William and Julia Rooney family plot at Calvary Cemetery (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2016) [79C - this and below] 
Note: Michael E. Byczek’s height is 5 foot 11 inches - The monument is over 12 feet tall 
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Michael E. Byczek and the dedication by his 2x-great-grandmother Kittie (Rooney) Talbot on her parent’s monument (Credit: Michael E. Byczek, 2016) 
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Appendix I: Representative William and Julia Rooney Real Estate Transactions 

Representative real estate transactions, both transcriptions and actual documents, are described in the following appendixes. Michael E. Byczek prepared the 
transcriptions from the actual legal documents filed with the Cook County Recorder of Deeds. A summary is provided to explain the chronology of transactions 
and may contain transcription errors, especially where the documents were illegible. This chronology of transactions serve as an informal legal title search of the 
properties for genealogical purposes. Transactions are only included from 1871 until the death of both William and Julia Rooney in 1885 [Citation Appendix]. 

1. 43 E. Division - Chicago, IL 
2. The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building - Chicago, IL 
3. William Rooney’s Building - Chicago, IL 
4. Des Plaines Farm (NW and SW Quarters of Section 7) 
5. Mt. Prospect Farm - NE Quarter of Section 12 
6. Mt. Prospect Farm - SE Quarter of Section 12 
7. Owen Rooney’s Farm in Mt. Prospect 
8. Timber Lots - Section 9 
9. Timber Lots - Section 21 
10. Eight residential lots near 57th and State - Chicago, IL 
11. Lake Street in the West Loop - Chicago, IL 
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1. 43 E. Division - Chicago, IL 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

73018 11/1/1875  

[Filed 
2/19/1876]

Edward Harland and wife 
Hannah (Town of Lake 
View) 

-> 

Julia Rooney, wife of 
William Rooney (Chicago)

$2,500 - 
Deed

West 50 feet of lot 1 of the subdivision of the N half of sublot of Block 1 of 
the south half of fractional 3-39-14 described as:  

Commencing at a point 20 feet and 9 inches east of the west line of Lot 1 
on the south line of Division Street running thence east on said south line 
of Division St 20 feet and 9 inches. Thence south 5 degrees and 12 minutes 
east 36 feet to the south line of Lot 1, thence west along the south line 25 
feet, thence north 5 degrees and 12 minutes west 36 feet to a point 50 feet 
south of Division St., thence west 4 feet and 3 inches to the center of the 
party or division wall between the two brick dwelling houses now standing 
on the said west 50 feet, thence north 5 degrees and 12 minutes west and 
running through the center of party wall 50 feet to the place of beginning.  

Also the undivided one half part of the 8 feet 6 inches strip lying next east 
and adjoining the north part of the tract above and running 50 feet in depth 
from the south line of Division St also granting to Rooney the right to use, 
without cost, within 4 years the east wall of a barn now standing on the rear 
of the lot next west and adjoining the lot for a party wall for a barn or out 
building should she elect to do so within that time
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73092 11/1/1875  

[Filed 
2/21/1876]

Julia Rooney and husband 
William (Chicago) 

-> 

Henry George (Chicago) as 
trustee with Edward George 
as successor trustee

$3,750 Loan William Rooney is indebted to Edward Harland $3,750 secured by 6 
promissory notes payable to Harland at his office in Chicago with interest 
10%  

One note being for $2,500 and payable in five years and the other 5 notes 
for $250 each and payable in one, two, three, four, and five years.  

William Rooney together with John P. Rooney is indebted to Harland in the 
further sum of $1,050 on three promissory notes payable at his office and 
dated 12/31/1875. One of notes being $500 with interest until paid at rate 
of 10% per annum and payable 10/1/1876, another being for $500 with 
interest after 12/31/1876 at rate of 10% and due 10/1/1877 and the third for 
$50 at 10% and due one year after. All of notes being given to Harland for 
payment on the property described below and for money to finish building 
thereon.  

Same description as original deed  

In case of default, right sell at door of any building being used as a court 
house in city of Chicago. If any court appoints a new trustee, $30 shall be 
taken from the proceeds for attorney fees.

438473 9/20/1882 John Young and wife Martha 
(Chicago) 

-> 

William Rooney (Chicago)

$35 - 
Quitclaim

Except the west 25 feet, the west 50 feet (except street) of Lot 1 in North 
half of Block 1 in Canal Trustee subdivision of south fractional quarter of 
3-39-14  

Note: The two documents preceding this one in the book are for Edward 
Harland receiving what appears to be large tract of land on State St 
(perhaps between house and State). Therefore, this document between 
William Rooney and Young must be related to Harland, in order for these 
documents to have been filed in succession.

435753 11/29/1882 Edward Harland and wife 
Hannah (Chicago) 

-> 

Julia Rooney (Chicago)

$105 - Deed Commencing at a point 20 feet east of the west line of Lot 1 on the south 
line of Division St, thence east 9 inches, thence south 5 degrees 12 minutes 
east 50 feet, thence east 4 feet and 3 inches, thence south 5 degrees and 12 
minutes east to the north line of a brick barn, thence west along the north 
line of said barn 5 feet, thence north 5 degrees 12 minutes west parallel to 
the west line of lot to the place of beginning.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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437145 11/29/1882 Julia Rooney and husband 
William (Chicago) 

-> 

Edward Harland (Chicago)

$105 - Deed Commencing at point 50 feet south 5 degrees 12 minutes east of a point on 
the south line of Division St 41 feet and 6 inches east of the west line of 
Lot 1, thence east 8 feet and 6 inches, thence south 5 degrees 12 minutes 
east 36 feet to the south line of Lot, thence east lone south line of Lot 8 feet 
and 6 inches thence north 5 degrees 12 minutes west 36 feet to the place of 
beginning being a strip of ground 8 feet and 6 inches wide on the east side 
of the south 36 feet of the west 50 feet of lot 1.

437146 11/29/1882 Julia Rooney, wife of 
William, and Edward 
Harland

Agreement Julia Rooney and Edward Harland are owners as tenants in common of a 
strip of land 8 feet and 6 inches wide off from the east side of west 50 feet 
of lot 1  

It is desired that strip of ground shall be perpetually reserved for a private 
alley to the joint use of said parties.

438472 12/13/1882 Edward Harland and wife 
Hannah 

-> 

Julia Rooney

$105 - Deed Commencing at point 20 feet east of west line of Lot 1 on the south line of 
Division St. thence east 9 inches, thence south 5 degrees and 12 minutes 
east 50 feet, thence east 4 feet and 3 inches, thence south 5 degrees 12 
minutes east 17 feet to the north line of a brick barn, thence west along 
north line of barn 5 feet, thence north 5 degrees 12 minutes west 67 feet 
parallel to the west line of Lot to the place of beginning. 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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447521 1/25/1883 Thomas Moulding and wife 
Sarah (Chicago) 

-> 

Julia Rooney

Quitclaim For $1 and the purpose of removing any supposed claim of Moulding by 
virtue of suit Moulding vs Edward Harland pending in Circuit Court of 
Cook County, All that part of lot 1 in Knauss subdivision of the north half 
of Block 1 in the Canal Trustee's subdivision of the south fraction of 
3-39-14 described as: 

Commencing at a point 20 feet east of the west line of Lot 1 on the south 
line of Division Street thence east on said south line of Division St 21 feet 
and 6 inches. Thence south 5 degrees and 12 minutes east 86 feet to the 
south line of Lot 1, thence west along the south line 16 feet and 6 inches to 
east line of a brick barn, thence north 5 degrees 12 minutes west 19 feet to 
the north line of barn, thence west 5 feet, thence north 5 degrees 12 
minutes west 67 feet to the place of commencement.  

Also undivided one half of strip of ground 8 feet and 6 inches in width and 
86 feet in depth lying immediately east of the and adjoining the real estate.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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447522 2/1/1883 William Rooney and wife 
Julia (Chicago) 

-> 

Lyman Baird (Chicago) as 
trustee + William H. Bradley 
as successor

$3,100 - 
Trust Deed

William and Julia Rooney indebted to the legal holder of promissory note 
for $3,100  

Five years with interest of 6% per annum to be paid half yearly on the first 
of each of the months February and August and 8 percent after due (?). Ten 
coupon notes payable in city of New York, NY to who the holder may 
appoint, or Bank of America in NY. If not paid within 20 days or any tax 
assessment not paid for 90 days, at option of holder, the entire amount shall 
become due  

Commencing at point 20 feet east of west line of Lot 1 in Knauss 
subdivision on the south line of Division Street since the widening of the 
the street, thence south 5 degrees 12 minutes east 67 feet to the north line 
of brick barn thence east along north line of barn 5 feet to east line thereof 
thence south 5 degrees 12 minutes east along east line of barn 19 feet to 
south line of Lot 1 thence east on south line of Lot 1 16 feet and 6 inches 
thence North 5 degrees and 12 minutes west 86 feet to the south line of 
Division St, thence west 21 feet and 6 inches to place of beginning. Also 
undivided one half of strip of ground 8 feet and 6 inches in width and 86 
feet in depth lying immediately east of the and adjoining the real estate. 
More specifically described as: commencing at point 41 feet and 6 inches 
east of west line of Lot 1 on the south line of Division St since widening of 
the same, thence south 5 degrees and 12 minutes east 86 feet to the south 
line of Lot 1 thence east 8 feet and 6 inches thence north 5 degrees and 12 
minutes west 86 feet to the south line of Division St thence west 8 feet and 
8 inches to place of beginning.  

Julia Rooney must pay all taxes and furnish once a year on demand proper 
receipts. Julia Rooney shall also keep all buildings insured, and in case of 
fire, Julia Rooney shall do all things required by the policies to make the 
amounts due and payable.  

Deed is an assignment of leases in case of default. William and Julia 
Rooney appoint Lewis H. Boutell (illegible) or any other attorney to 
perform legal acts. He is also secondary successor trustee.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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448945 2/14/1883 Edward J. George, successor 
in trust (Henry P. George, 
trustee, deceased) 

-> 

Julia Rooney and William 
Rooney

Quitclaim Quitclaim rights through Trust Deed dated 11/1/1875.  

Same description as the original Trust Deed with reference to the 
conveyance to Julia Rooney by Edward and Hannah Harland on 11/1/1875.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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	 	 Document #73018 that transferred ownership to Julia Rooney in 1875 

	 	 Zoom views shown on following pages 
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2. The William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building - Chicago, IL 

Document # Date Parties Amount Summary

105086 5/10/1873 

Recorded 
on 
5/27/1873. 

William and 
Julia 
Rooney  

->  

Lyman 
Baird

Trust Deed  

$7,500  

William Rooney is indebted to Francis Bradley (of cook county)  

Bond has penal sum of $15,000.  

Appears that the date sum had to be paid back was 5/10/1876.  

10% interest per centum per annum paid half yearly on 5/10 and 11/10. Six 
coupons.  

Payment made in New York to Bank of America (default appointment).  

Description:  

Begin at east line (of lot 1 block 32) 34 feet north of south east corner of lot 
thence north along east line 18 and 3/4 feet, thence west on line parallel with 
south line of lot 40 and 3/4 feet, thence south on line parallel with east line of lot 
18 and 3/4 feet, thence east on a line parallel with south line of lot 40 and 3/4 
feet to place of beginning.  

Otherwise described as:  

south 18 and 3/4 feet of north 56 and 1/4 feet of south half of east half of lot 1 

Comprises tract of land on west side of Fifth Ave 18 and 3/4 feet and extends 
west 40 and 3/4 feet.  

Successors to Bradley: William H. Bradley then Lewis H. Boutell (both cook 
county). 
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109791 6/10/1873 

Recorded 
6/19/1873

Lyman 
Baird  

->  

William 
Rooney

Quitclaim 
Deed  

William Rooney and wife executed deed of trust on 3/11/1870 (month is 
illegible).  

South third of the north 56 feet 3 inches of south half of east half of lot 1 in 
block 32 original town of Chicago.  

Trust deed has been fully paid and bond cancelled. 

298113 10/28/1880 

Recorded 
on 
11/19/1880 

William and 
Julia 
Rooney  

->  

Aaron C. 
Goodman

Quitclaim 
Deed  

$1  

Full property description.  

Goodman from City of Hartford (County of Hartford) in Connecticut.  

Subject to Trust Deed #105086  

Note: This document is the basis for the 1885 auction. Under the 1873 Trust 
Deed, the loan went into default in 1876. It's possible there was an unrecorded 
agreement regarding the outstanding balance. However, based on what was 
recorded, the loan would have been four years in default in 1880. It would 
appear that Goodman was supposed to take over payment. Yet, in 1885 the 
property was auctioned with William and Julia Rooney being in default. 

610254 3/9/1885 

Recorded 
on 
3/17/1885 

Thomas 
Allen  

->  

William 
Rooney

Quitclaim Allen acquired title interest through a deed of trust executed by Benjamin 
Hadduck on 4/26/1866.  

South third of north 56 feet 3 inches of south half of east half of lot 1 in block 
32.  

Document # Date Parties Amount Summary
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610255 3/9/1885 

Recorded 
on 
3/17/1885 

Aaron C. 
and Annie 
M. 
Goodman  

->  

George L. 
Warner

Quitclaim  Goodman from City of Hartford in County of Hartford (Connecticut).  

Warner from Chicago.  

Description same as above that refers to Fifth Ave 

610256 3/14/1885 

Recorded 
on 
3/17/1885 

George L. 
and 
Elizabeth S. 
Warner  

->  

Washington 
Porter

Special 
Warranty 
Deed  

$11,500  

Full property description  

Subject to all taxes and assessments subsequent to 1884 and all special 
assessments under which the improvements have not been made.  

All parties from Chicago 

Document # Date Parties Amount Summary
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624016 4/11/1885 

Recorded 
on 
5/12/1885

Lyman 
Baird  

->  

Washington 
Porter

Deed  

$10,889.13  

William and Julia Rooney through trust deed #105086 secured payment through 
Lyman Baird bond for $15,000 conditioned on payment to Francis Bradley the 
sum of $7,500 on 5/10/1876 with interest.  

Trust deed provided that upon 20 days notice, Lyman Baird shall publish in 
newspaper and hold at auction sale of the property.  

Document states that the legal holder of the bond applied to Baird to have the 
property sold.  

On 3/19/1885, Baird published in the Chicago Daily Evening Journal that the 
property would be sold at public auction on 4/11/1885 at 10 am at east main 
door of the court house on Clark St.  

Notice was published daily for 20 successive days in the newspaper with the 
first date being 3/19/1885 and the last on 4/10/1885.  

Washington Porter was highest bidder in amount of $10,889.13.  

Baird under authority of 1873 Trust Deed conveyed property to Washington 
Porter.  

Full property description. 

Document # Date Parties Amount Summary
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3. William Rooney’s Building - Chicago, IL 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

137015 3/14/1870  

[Filed 
11/21/1873]

Caesar A. 
Periolat and 
wife Elizabeth 
(Chicago) 

-> 

William Rooney 
(Town of 
Maine)

$3,000 - 
Deed

Lots 3, 5, 7, 10, 14, 16, 19, and 22 in Periolat's subdivision in south 147 feet on lot 
number 4 in the School Trustee's subdivision 16-38-14  

Also undivided one third part of west 20 feet of north 70 feet of lot number 4 block 32 
Original Town.  

Also one third part of east half of lot 14 block 20 Carpenter's Addition to Chicago  

Originally recorded as #45821 on 3/22/1870 in Book 581 of Deeds page 471

219063 3/15/1870  

[Filed 
4/22/1879]

Declaration of 
Trust by 
William Rooney

Trust On 3/14/1870 Caesar A. Periolat and wife Elizabeth transferred to William Rooney for 
$3,000  

1. Lots 3, 5, 7, 10, 14, 16, 19, and 22 in Periolat's Subdivision in the south 147 feet on Lot 
4 in the School Trustees Subdivision of 16-38-14  

2. 1/3 interest in the west 20 feet of the north 70 feet of Lot 4 Block 32 Original Town of 
Chicago  

3. 1/3 interest of the east half of lot 14 Block 20 Carpenter's Addition to Chicago  

The real estate is held on trust to (1) repay myself the $3,000 loaned to Periolat with 
interest at 10% per annum from this date for three years either by sale or mortgage at my 
option, (2) right to hold the proceeds of the sale and the premises themselves until sold for 
any purpose in trust for the use of Elizabeth Periolat (wife of Caesar) for life and after her 
death, the benefit of their children.  

William Rooney shall deduct each year from the rent and profit (if any), or sale/mortgage, 
the money needed for repairs, taxes, and special assessments.

Page  of 292 359



137014 9/28/1870  

[Filed 
12/12/1873]

Clemens F. 
Periolat and 
wife Mary Jane 
Frances 
(Chicago) 

-> 

William Rooney 
(Cook County)

$7,000 - 
Deed

undivided one third part of west 20 feet of north seventy feet of lot 4 in block 32 in the 
original town of Chicago and being further described as being lot 3 in the Assessor's 
subdivision of lots 4 and 5 in Block 32 Old Town as recorded in Book 162 of Maps  
page 6. 

Originally filed 10/7/1870 in Book 633 of Deeds page 237.

51300 6/29/1872 Peter Periolat 
and wife Annie 

-> 

C F Periolat

$2,500 Peter Periolat and wife Annie convey to 1/3 interest to C F Periolat (corner lot ...) subject 
to mortgage of $3,000 (Charles Durand?)  

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

Page  of 293 359



96819 3/3/1873 Memorandum of 
Agreement of 
Samuel Cole 
(first party) and 
William Rooney 
and C. F. 
Periolat (second 
party combined)

Agreement Cole is the owner of lots 2 and 4 of subdivision of lots 4 and 5 of block 32 original town.  

Rooney/Periolat are owner of sublot 3 of the subdivision of lots 4 and 5 of block 32 
original town.  

Cole is about to erect a building on his property and at his expense build a brick party 
wall with stone foundation running the entire distance of the line separating the 
properties. Plan of the property is attached as exhibit A.  

Further agreed that when the second party decides to erect a building, the second party 
may use the party wall in exchange for payment.  

If the parties cannot agree as to the cash value, they will choose a disinterested person to 
do so.  

If the second party decides to enlarge their building, the same rules apply.  

If anything happens requiring repair (such as building destroyed by fire), both parties 
shall share equal cost.  

If Rooney/Periolat should happen to build first, then Cole will be bound by the same 
terms.

101030 Undated 
(probably 
about time 
recorded - 
5/8/1873

Agreement 
between 
Clemens F. 
Periolat and 
William Rooney

Agreement Periolat conveys 1/3 interest in SE corner Lake/Franklin for $500. Rooney is to assure 
payment of mortgage dated 9/27/1871 in favor of Charles E. Durand payable 5 years 
bearing 10 percent payable semi-annually. Rooney also agrees to pay all liens, back taxes, 
and special assessments except one third of a special assessment made in 1869 for 
opening Franklin Street and also 1/3 of amount to be paid to Erhard of Joliet in settlement 
of debt that Erchard claims to hold against property. Periolat agrees to pay 1/3 of those 
two amounts. Periolat also agrees to give Rooney a good warranty deed of his 1/3 interest 
on condition that the $500 be paid three years from 6/1/1873.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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110715 5/22/1873 Clemens F. 
Periolat and 
wife Mary 

-> 

William Rooney

$500 - Deed Undivided 1/3 part of sublot 3 in lot 4 block 32 original town being on the SE corner of 
Lake and Franklin and being 20 feet front on Lake by 70 feet on Franklin subject to  
taxes/assessments of 1873 and all the taxes/assessments except 1/3 of special assessment 
by City of Chicago in 1869 for opening Franklin St that Periolat agrees to pay.  

Also subject to a mortgage dated 9/27/1871 given by Periolat to Charles E. Durand and 
due five years from that date that Rooney assumes and agrees to pay.

190671 9/15/1874 William Rooney 

-> 

Lazarus 
Silverman

Document William Rooney certifies that Silverman on that day cashed 8 orders (illegible) Shepherd 
of $100 each (illegible) 223 Lake Street for months of September-December 1874 and 
January-April 1875 and guarantee payment of said orders at maturity and Rooney further 
agrees that Silverman has a good/valid lien on premises until orders fully paid.  

SE corner of Lake and Franklin, being 20 feet and nine inches on Lake Street and 70 feet 
and 14 inches on Franklin Street with a brick building thereon.  

Rooney agrees to assign the lease to Silverman and he continues to keep possession until 
fully paid and shall have a lien on property for the amount above.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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48453 8/23/1875 Public Sale for 
nonpayment of 
taxes and special 
assessments on 
10/16/1872

Document Real estate sold:  

sublot 3 of lots 4 and 5 of block 32 (original town of Chicago)  

On 10/23/1872 the following was sold:  

1. south half of lot 7 of block 100 in School Section Addition to Chicago  
2. improvements and lease hold interests in the north half of lot 8 of block 113 in School 
Section Addition  
3. south half of lot 12 of block 122 in School Section Addition  
4. lot 43 of block 125 in School Section Addition  
5. Improvements and leasehold interest on lot 20 of block 142 in School Section Addition  

On 10/25/1872 the following real estate was sold  

1. Lots 9 and 10 of block 1 in Poyntzs Subdivision of South 20 acres of West half NE 
quarter of Section 28-39-14  
2. Lot 7 of block 1 of Adam Murrays Addition to Chicago  
3. Lots 62, 63, and 64 all in block 5 in C H Walkers subdivision of that part south of north 
30 acres (illegible) of east half and SE quarter of Section 28-39-14  
4. Improvements on lots 21, 27, 34, 38 in block 6 and the improvements in lots 15, 20, 
and 10 in block 7 all in Uhlick and Muhlkes Addition to Chicago  

Looks like City of Chicago was granted the real estate subject to redemption.

72457 1/26/1876 William Rooney 
and wife Julia 
(Chicago) 

-> 

Eiskiel Phelps 
(illegible)

$11,000 
Loan

William Rooney indebted to J. Williamson of Philadelphia Pennsylvania for $11,000 to be 
paid three years at 8% per annum. To be paid on January and July 26th payable at Grand 
National Bank of Philadelphia.  

West 20 feet of the North 70 feet of Lot 4 of Block 32 (original town of Chicago) known 
as 223 Lake Street.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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192687 8/8/1878 William Rooney 
and wife Julia 
(Chicago) 

-> 

John Mattocks 
(Chicago)

$12,200 
Loan

$12,200 promissory note payable to Charles E. Durand (5 years) with 8% interest per 
centum per annum  

8 coupons payable on 2/8 and 8/8 in amount of $488  

The west 20 feet of the north 70 feet of lot number 4 in block number 32 in "original town 
of Chicago" being otherwise described as lot number 3 in the assessor division of lots 
number 4 and 5 in block 32 old town and lots number 5, 6, and 8 and block 36 of old town 
Chicago as recorded in Book 102 of Maps on page 6.

238680 9/27/1879 Public Sale for 
nonpayment of 
taxes

Document Auction: 9/12/1877 (or 1879 as illegible)  

Sublot 3 in lots 4 and 5 in Block 32 (original town)  

Convey onto Daniel J. Hubbard the real estate subject to redemption

444426 9/27/1879  

[Filed 
1/19/1883]

Daniel J. 
Hubbard and 
wife Sarah Alice 
(Englewood) 

-> 

Mary Carbine 
Bluhm 
(Milwaukee 
County, 
Wisconsin)

$1,420 
Quitclaim

Sublot 3 of lots 4 and 5 in block 32 (original town of Chicago)

601373 1/27/1885 William Rooney 
(Chicago) 

-> 

Julia Rooney 
(Chicago)

$1 Sublot 3 or Lots 4 and 5 in Block 32 (Original Town) 

** Note ** Document # looks like 601373 versus 601873

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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Document #601373 where William Rooney transferred ownership to his wife Julia Rooney in 1885 (relevant portion of documents) 

Continued on following page 
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4. Des Plaines Farm (NW and SW Quarters of Section 7) 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

33486 4/26/1863  

[Filed 
6/10/1875]

Charles 
Follanshee and 
wife Sally 
(Chicago)  

->  

William 
Rooney 
(Chicago)

$893.75 - 
Lien 
Release

All land in NW quarter of 7-41-12 (35.25 acres) on the SW side of an adjoining Deer 
Grove Road and also adjoining land formerly sold to Rooney from Follansbee in the NW 
quarter of section 7

33485 6/1/1875 William 
Rooney and 
wife Julia 
Rooney 
(Chicago)  

->  

Lyman Baird 
(Cook County)

$3,500 Lien William Rooney is indebted to Francis Bradley (Cook County) for $3,500 with the penal 
sum of $7,000  

This document, William Rooney makes payment of $3,500 to be paid on 6/1/1878  

Payments due in June and December for six payments (10% per centum per annum)  

Payments payable to whoever Bradley appoints in New York, or in default, Bank of 
America in New York  

Real Estate in Town of Maine:  

That part of the east 80 acres of the fractional SW quarter 7-41-12 which lies north and east 
of that land conveyed to the Illinois and Wisconsin Railroad by Charles Follansbee on 
8/27/1853 (Recorded in Book 100 of Deeds Page 570) containing 56 and 94/100 acres  

** Presumedly, William Rooney's land being conveyed is the 56 acres, meaning that 
Follansbee land was 24 acres (representing total of 80 acres) **  

Also the NW fractional quarter of section 7 that lies south and west of Deer Grove Road 
containing 80 and 75/100 acres.
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111448 11/11/1876 Cook County 
Sheriff Francis 
Agnew  

->  

Samuel Bliss 
and William 
Topliff

$646.45 - 
Court 
Judgment

Bliss and Topliff are plaintiffs (in Superior Court of Cook County) against William Rooney 
(defendant) for $646.45 dated 8/12/1876  

Real estate as described in 33485 sold to Samuel Bliss through notice on Criminal Court 
for highest bid of $686.09.  

Real estate must be redeemed by 2/11/1878 or Bliss receives Deed to the property

165606 1/12/1878 Samuel Hoard 
and wife 
Sofkronia (?) 
(Chicago) 

->  

William 
Rooney 
(Chicago)

$100 - Deed Town of Maine: part of the SW fractional quarter of 7-41-12 lying west of the east 80 acres 
and north of the Chicago and Northwestern Railway containing about 18 acres

179163 2/11/1878 Sheriff  

->  

Julia Rooney

Redemption "Redemption" of Samuel Bliss (above) judgment, which was assigned to Andrew J. 
McDuffe (certificate of purchase)  

McDuffee assigned the certificate of purchase to Julia Rooney [* Not quite a redemption, 
because the certificate was reassigned, not explicitly paid *]  

** The deed to Julia only refers to: that part of the NW fractional quarter of section 7 which 
lies south and west of the Deer Grove Road and containing 80 and 75/100 acres, without 
any mention of the 56 acres (This could just be a mistake, but on paper, Julia may not have 
obtained the entire real estate back) **

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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179001 3/11/1878 William 
Rooney and 
wife Julia 
(Chicago)  

->  

John Seegers 
(Cook County)

$5,900 - 
Deed

Town of Maine:  

that part of the SW quarter of 7-41-12 lying north of the Chicago and North Western 
Railroad right of way containing 76 and 65/100 acres  

William Rooney must enter the property after 4/1/1879 and remove the dwelling house, 
which remains the property of William Rooney.  

Also one acre off of the east end of the NW fractional quarter of section 7 lying south of the 
Dundee and Rand Road or highway.

179164 5/3/1878 John Seegers  

->  

William 
Rooney

Agreement John Seegers bought from William Rooney land described in 12/11/1877 (Chicago) and 
agreed to pay $6,860.25  

** Doesn't say what property, and doesn't appear to have anything to do with Des Plaines 
farm, based on amount and date (could just be estimate versus actual) **  

** This could indicate that there is an unknown property that William also sold to Seegers, 
which location is unknown **  

Seeger has paid the sum of $785.25 leaving balance of $6,075  

There is an incumbrance of $3,500 that Lyman Baird is Trustee for the sum of $4,100.  

There are also judgments against William Rooney attached to that land and unpaid taxes  

William Rooney delivers deed to that land to Seegers and Seegers agrees to pay the 
judgments and taxes subtracted from the remaining balance of $6,075 within six months 
with 8% interest per annum unless the judgments and taxes are greater than the balance 
(Rooney must pay the excess).

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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185651 6/1/1878 Lyman Baird 
(Trustee of the 
City of 
Chicago)  

->  

William 
Rooney 
(Chicago)

$1 
Quitclaim

Rights of the Trust Deed by William Rooney and wife (6/1/1875) with document number 
33485  

East 80 acres of fractional SW quarter of 7-41-12 which lies north and east of the land 
conveyed to Illinois and Wisconsin Railroad by Charles Follansbee 8/27/1853, the piece 
herby conveyed containing 56 and 94/100 acres.  

Also that part of NW fractional quarter of section 7 that lies south and west of Deer Grove 
Road containing 80 and 75/100 acres.

185647 6/12/1878 John Seegers  

->  

William 
Rooney

Agreement William Rooney acknowledges that existing agreement with Seegers (#179164) has been 
satisfied

185650 6/22/1878 Cook County 
Sheriff  

-> 

William 
Rooney

Certificate 
of 
Redemption

The following real estate was sold at auction on 12/17/1877 based on order from Circuit 
Court dated 11/19/1877 (illegible) for a judgment from the November 1876 term.  

Joseph McDuffe referred to as Plaintiff  

The redemption refers to the original property description from the Samuel Bliss judgment 
[* See note about reassignment to Julia Rooney *]  

William Rooney repaid the original purchase price (auction) plus interest of 10% per 
annum.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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192686 8/8/1878 Julia Rooney 
(in her own 
right) and 
husband 
William 
(Chicago)  

->  

John Mattocks 
(Chicago)

$12,200 
Loan

$12,200 promissory note payable to Charles E. Durand (5 years) with 8% interest per 
centum per annum  

8 coupons payable on 2/8 and 8/8 in amount of $488  

** Exact same details (other than ordering of Julia and William's names) as Franklin/Lake 
and Block 36 document **  

The NW fractional quarter of 7-41-12 except the portion of said quarter lying north of 
center of Dundee Road containing 90 and 90/100 acres

549211 3/27/1884 Adam S. Glos 
wife Emilie 
(Elmhurst)  

->  

Julia Rooney 
(Chicago)

$213 - 
Quitclaim

Except east one acre the south forty five acres of NW fractional quarter 7-41-12

535372 3/29/1884 Lyman Baird 
and Francis 
Bradley

Lien 
Discharge - 
$1

Discharge lien through judgment rendered in their favor against Ellen Geary, David Geary, 
and William Rooney. Transcript entered as number 1611 in Circuit Court on 9/13/1880, 
only against the following property, not any other property.  

NW fractional quarter 7-41-12 except portion lying north of center of Dundee Road, what 
being conveyed containing 90 and 90/100 acres.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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535373 4/4/1884 Julia Rooney 
and husband 
William 
(Chicago)  

->  

John C. 
Seegers (Cook 
County)

$7,200 - 
Deed

NW fractional quarter of 7-41-12 except portion lying north of center of Dundee Road 
containing 90 and 90/100 acres

535371 4/4/1884 John Mattocks 
(Trustee)  

->  

Julia Rooney 
and husband 
William

Quitclaim Quitclaim rights of Trust dated 8/8/1878  

The NW fractional quarter of 7-41-12 except what is lying north of center of the Dundee 
Road, containing 90 and 90/100 acres.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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Document #33486 from 1863 (refiled in 1875), which was a lien release for land in the NW quarter 
Zoom views are shown on the following pages 
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5. Mount Prospect Farm (NE Quarter of Section 12) 

Document Date Parties Amount Notes

252517 5/1/1863  

[Filed 
1/13/1880]

John Rooney and 
wife Ellen (Town of 
Maine) 

-> 

J. L. Willmarth (town 
of Stamford, County 
of Bennington, 
Vermont)

$1,710.61 Lien John Rooney indebted to Willmarth for $1,710.61 secured to be paid by 4 
promissory notes payable as:  

one note $430.89 payable on 11/1/1864  
one of $426.39 payable in one year to current date  
one of $426.39 two years  
one of $426.39 three years  

all drawing interest of 10% per annum with interest payable at end of each year  

All of Lots 1 and 2 of the NE quarter 12-41-11 except 24 acres sold to Owen 
Rooney in the SW corner of this quarter - About 130 acres  

Also 3 and 87/100 acres described as:  
-> part of the east half of the NW quarter of Section 16 in Town of Maine  
-> Start at post on east line of said quarter distance south of the NE corner 6 
chains and 63 links  
-> south with the east line 9 chains and 7 links to post.  
-> a maple 20 inches in diameter bears south 84 degrees west 19 links  
-> an elm 30 inches in diameter bears south 64.5 degrees east distance of 46 links  
-> south 87.5 degrees west along William Johnston's line two chains to a post  
-> north 29.75 degrees west 9 chains and 50 links to a post  
-> elm (ten inches) diameter bears north 47.5 degrees west distance of 46 links  
-> north 82.25 east 6 chains and 75 links to place of beginning  

Containing about 134 acres (total)  

In case of default, Willmarth shall advertise a sale for 20 days in a newspaper 
published in City of Chicago or by posting written or printed notices in four 
places in the county, auction shall take place at the north door of the Courthouse 
Chicago.  

Originally filed as document 66143 on 5/5/1863
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35683 6/11/1866  

[Filed 
6/23/1875]

John Rooney and 
wife Ellen Rooney 
(Town of Maine) 

-> 

Homer Willmarth 
(Town of Barrington)

$675 - 
Warranty Deed

-> Begin at SE corner of NE quarter of 12-41-11 and go west 15 chains to a post  
-> Then north 10 chains to a post  
-> Then east 15 chains to a post  
-> Then south 10 chains to place began  
-> Total of 15 acres

167091 6/21/1875  

[Filed 
1/25/1878]

Homer Willmarth 
(Town of Barrington) 

-> 

William Rooney 
(Chicago)

Agreement $672.34 - Articles of Agreement that when William Rooney makes payment, 
Homer Willmarth will convey by Warranty Deed (payable in one year at 10% per 
centum per annum)  

-> Same description as 35683

397462 12/1/1876  

[Filed 
5/23/1882]

Homer Willmarth and 
wife Mary Willmarth 
(Barrington) 

-> 

John Rooney (Town 
of Maine)

$775.05 - Deed -> Same as usual 15 acre description with Willmarth

114462 12/7/1876 John Rooney and 
wife Hellen/Nelly 
Rooney (Town of 
Maine) 

-> 

Homer Willmarth 
(Town of Barrington)

$775 - 
Mortgage

(payable in two years at 10% interest annum)  

-> Same description as 35683  

-> Note in margin that Willmarth released the mortgage on 8/27/1878 for 
payment in full

Document Date Parties Amount Notes
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168694 2/7/1878 John Rooney and 
wife Ellen Rooney 
(Town of Elk Grove) 

-> 

Michael O'Connor 
(Chicago)

$7,500 - 
Appears to be a 
lien

All of Lots 1 and 2 of the NE quarter 12-41-11 except 24 acres sold to Owen 
Rooney in the SW corner of this quarter - About 130 acres  

Also 3 and 87/100 acres described as  
-> part of the east half of the NW quarter of Section 16 in Town of Maine  
-> Start at post on east line of said quarter distance south of the NE corner 6 
chains and 63 links  
-> south with the east line 9 chains and 7 links to post a maple 20 inches in 
diameter  
-> bear south 84 degrees west 19 links to an elm 30 inches in diameter  
-> bearing south 64.5 degree distance of 46 links  
-> south 87.5 degrees west along William Johnston's line two chains to a post  
-> north 29.75 degrees west 9 chains and 50 links to a post elm (ten inches) 
diameter  
-> bear north 47.5 degrees west distance of 46 links  
-> north 82.25 east 6 chains and 75 links to place of beginning  

Except 15 acres of SE corner of NE quarter deeded to Homer Willmart on 
6/11/1866 and recorded 6/23/1875 and subject to mortgage of $1,700.10 dated 
5/1/1863 payable to Willmarth recorded 5/5/1863 

185707 2/8/1878 Michael O'Connor 
and wife Margaret 
O'Connor (Chicago) 

-> 

John Rooney (Town 
of Elk Grove)

$6,500 - Deed -> Same Description as 168694

Document Date Parties Amount Notes
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235234 5/1/1878  

[Filed 
9/2/1879]

John Rooney and 
wife Nelley (Town of 
Maine) 

-> 

Homer Willmarth 
(Town of Barrington)

Promissory 
Note for 
$1,429.34

Payable in two years drawing interest at 8% per annum payable at end of year 
after 9/1/1878  

All of Lots 1 and 2 of the NE quarter 12-41-11 except 24 acres sold to Owen 
Rooney in the SW corner of this quarter - About 130 acres  

Also: Begin at SE corner of NE quarter of 12-41-11 and go west 15 chains to a 
post  
-> Then north 10 chains to a post  
-> Then east 15 chains to a post  
-> Then south 10 chains to place began  
-> Total of 15 acres  

Total of about 145 acres

195004 8/27/1878 William Rooney and 
wife Julia Rooney 
(Chicago) 

-> 

Homer Willmarth 
(Barrington)

$1 - Quit Claim 
Deed

-> Same Description as 35683 -> Comment that William and Julia Rooney 
quit claim their interest from the 6/21/1875 agreement

336747 5/2/1881 John Rooney and 
wife Ellen Rooney 
(Chicago) 
[Mortgagors] 

-> 

Homer Willmarth 
(Barrington)

$3,826.36 - 
Mortgage

(payable in five years at 7% per annum)  

-> Same description as deed to Michael O'Connor, except refers to 115 acres and 
also mentions the same information about Owen Rooney and 24 acres  
-> Along with same description of the William/Julia 15 acres  
-> Total of 130 acres

Document Date Parties Amount Notes
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Document #195004 where William and Julia Rooney released their interest from a previous financial arrangement with their son John Rooney 

Continued on following page (relevant portions of documents) 
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6. Mount Prospect Farm (SE Quarter of Section 12) 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

175811 1/17/1878 Bridget Anna Boucher 
formerly Bridget Anna 
Rooney and husband 
Patrick Boucher 
(Chicago) 

-> 

Julia Rooney 
(Chicago, wife of 
William)

$1 - Deed Commencing at the NE corner of the SE quarter of 12-41-11 and running thence 
west on the north line of SE quarter 14 and 95/100 chains, thence south 4 and 
93/100 chains to the line of the right of way of Chicago and North Western Rail 
Road thence south easterly along line of right of way 17 and 30/100 chains to the 
east line of Section, thence north along section line 13 and 56/100 chains to place 
of beginning containing 13 and 82/100 acres, otherwise described as the east 14 
chains and 95 links of the east half of the SE quarter of section 12 lying north of 
the Chicago and North Western Rail Road.

179002 3/11/1878 Julia Rooney in her 
own right and William 
Rooney, her husband 
(Chicago) 

-> 

John C. Seegers (Town 
of Maine)

$1,000 - Deed Commencing at the NE corner of the SE quarter of 12-41-11 and running thence 
west on the north line of SE quarter 14 and 95/100 chains, thence south 4 and 
92/100 chains to the line of the right of way of Chicago and North Western Rail 
Road thence south easterly along line of right of way 17 and 30/100 chains to the 
east line of Section, thence north along section line 13 and 56/100 chains to place 
of beginning containing 13 and 32/100 acres, otherwise described as the east 14 
chains and 95 links of the east half of the SE quarter of section 12 lying north of 
the Chicago and North Western Rail Road.
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	 Document #179002 where Julia Rooney, in her own right, and her 	 	
	 husband William Rooney sold their remaining land in Section 12  
	 in 1878 (other than the farm owned by their son John). 

	 Zoom views are shown on the following pages. 
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7. Owen Rooney’s Farm in Mt. Prospect 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

161084 4/7/1874 Edward Bourke 

-> 

Ezra C. 
Eggleston

Articles of 
Agreement

Bourke shall after Eggleston make payment, convey warranty deed  

land described as "two flucid fields" (illegible) in "north end" (illegible) of lot 2 of the 
NW quarter of 12-41-11 lying on both sides of the Chicago and Northwestern RR track 
and supposed to contain 41 acres  

Eggleston agrees to pay $150 per acre as follows: $25 down, $975 within 30 days and 
balance in annual payments of $1,000 until paid with interest on payments due in one 
year to be 9% with interest at 7% per centum per annum and to pay all tax assessments.

161085 4/7/1874 Owen Rooney 

-> 

Ezra C. 
Eggleston

Articles of 
Agreement

Rooney shall after Eggleston make payment, convey warranty deed  

Land described as lot 1 of the NW quarter 12-41-11  

also 24 acres in the NE quarter being a farm occupied by Owen Rooney  

"containing 100 acres" (don't know if this refers to the total amount of land combined)  

Eggleston agrees to pay $100 per acre as follows: $25 down, $75 six days after, $900 
within 30 days, $1,500 one year after with 9%, and balance four years with interest 7% 
per centum per annum and to pay all tax assessments.
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169758 4/7/1874 Owen Rooney 
and wife Anne 

-> 

Ezra C. 
Eggleston

$10,400 - Deed E half of NW quarter of 12-41-11  

Also part of NE quarter Beginning at the SW corner of NE quarter running N on quarter 
section line 7 and 80/100 chains to the southerly line of the right of way of the Chicago 
and Northwestern RR, thence S 58 degrees E along southerly line to the south line of 
quarter section thence W along south line 13 and 65/100 chains to place of beginning  

Also part of NE quarter described as: Beginning on the W line of quarter section at 
intersection of line with northerly line of right of way of Chicago and Northwester RR 
running thence N on quarter section line 13 chains thence S 58 degrees E parallel to RR 
12 and 70/100 chains thence E 3 chains thence S 14 and 90/100 chains to northerly line 
of RR, thence N 58 degrees W along northerly line to place of beginning  

except taxes and assessments subsequent to year 1873

169799 4/7/1874 Ezra C. 
Eggleston 
(Chicago) 

-> 

Trust (Patrick 
W. Snowhook - 
Trustee in 
Chicago)

$9,400 Loan Promissory Notes payable to Owen Rooney for part payment of following real estate  

1. Sum of $1,500 (payable in one year at 9% per annum)  

2. Sum of $7,900 (payable in four years at 7% annum)  

1. East fractional half of the NW quarter of 12-41-11  

2. And also part of the NE quarter of the said section beginning at SW corner of the NE 
quarter  
-> Running north on quarter section line seven and 80/100 chains to the southerly line of 
the right of way of Chicago and Northwestern Rail Road  
-> Then south 58 degrees east alone southerly line to the south line of said quarter 
section  
-> Then west along south line 13 and 65/100 chains to the place of beginning  

3. Also part of NE quarter of section 12 beginning on the west line of said quarter 
section at intersection of said line with northerly line of right of way of Railroad  
-> Then north on the quarter section line 13 chains  
-> Then south 58 degrees east parallel with railroad 12 and 70/100 chains  
-> Then east three chains  
-> Then south 14 and 90/100 chains to the northerly line of railroad  
-> Then north 58 degrees west along said north line to place of beginning

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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166488 4/27/1874 Edward/
Edmund Burke 
and wife Annie 

-> 

Owen Rooney

$10 - Quitclaim East half of the NW quarter of 12-41-11 reserving the right of way for the RR as it now 
passes through the land

170031 5/3/1874 Ezra C. 
Eggleston 
(Chicago) 

-> 

Owen Rooney 
and wife Anne 
in joint tenancy 
(Town of Elk 
Grove)

$1,333 - Deed part of NE quarter of 12-41-11 described as:  

Beginning at the SW corner of NE quarter running N on quarter section line 7 and 
80/100 chains to the southerly line of the right of way of the Chicago and Northwestern 
RR, thence S 48 degrees E along southerly line to the south line of quarter section 
thence W along south line 13 and 65/100 chains to place of beginning, containing 5 and 
33/100 acres.  

Also the E 8 acres of that part of NE quarter described as:  

Beginning on the W line of quarter section at intersection of line with northerly line of 
right of way of Chicago and Northwester RR running thence N on quarter section line 
13 chains thence S 58 degrees E parallel N said RR 12 and 71/100 chains thence E 3 
chains thence S 14 and 90/100 chains to northerly line of RR, thence N 58 degrees W 
along northerly line to place of beginning. the west line of said 8 acres to run N and S

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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185164 6/15/1878 Owen 
Rooney's 
children 
purchased at 
auction

$2,500 Looks like Owen's children bought property at auction from the Eggleston Subdivision 
of Mt. Prospect (6/10/1878 - auction)  

$2,500 (Peter Rooney, William Rooney, James Rooney, Joseph Rooney, Michael 
Rooney, Edward Rooney, and Mary McBride  

Notice published in Chicago Legal News 4/20/1878 - 5/11/1878  

Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 12, and 32 in Block 21 of Mt Prospect (E. E. Eggleston's Subdivision 
of the NW Quarter and part of the NE Quarter of Section 12 Township 41.  

South 33 rods of the east half of the SW Quarter of Section 34 Township 42 North 
Range 11.  

East half of the NW Quarter of Section 12 except right of way of railroad and as 
designated on plot of Mt. Prospect.  

Lots 34, 35, 36, 37, and 38 in Block 12  

Block 17  

Piece of land described as: Commence at SE corner of NW Quarter Section 12 running 
west along south line of Quarter section 754 and 84/100 feet hence north to southerly 
line of railroad, thence south easterly along southerly line to east line of quarter thence 
south along east line of quarter to place of beginning.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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8. Timber Lots - One lot in Section 9 (“Lot 14”) 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

26553 11/13/1874 William Rooney and wife 
Julia (Chicago) 

-> 

Constantine Bender 
(Township of Maine)

$950 (Deed) Lot 14 in section 9-41-12 commencing at the NE corner of SW quarter 
south ten chains and 55 links south five degrees and thirty minutes west 
7 chains and 70 links thence north 11 chains and 70 links thence east 7 
chains and 60 links to place of beginning containing 8 and 1/2 acres.

77611 3/20/1876 John Forsythe and wife 
Eliza W. (Chicago) 

-> 

William Rooney (Chicago)

$5 - Quitclaim Quitclaim to William Rooney - Lot 14 in the SW quarter 9-41-12

375137 5/16/1876  

[Filed 
2/13/1882]

John Conant and wife 
Anne (?) (Wisconsin) and 
Betsey M. Conant, Marcy 
(?) Conant, Melissa W. 
Conant (his wife), and 
Coretta (?) Conant 
(Rockford, County of 
Winnebago) 

-> 

William Rooney (Chicago)

$20 - 
quitclaim

Lot 14 in the SW quarter 9-41-12  

Described as: commencing at the NE corner of SW quarter, thence south 
10 and 55 chains thence south 85 degrees West 7 and 70 chains, thence 
north 11 and 70 chains, thence east 7 and 60 chains to place of beginning

427254 9/30/1882 Adam Glos and wife 
Emilie (Elmhurst, DuPage)

$61 - 
Quitclaim

Quitclaim to William Rooney (Chicago) all interest in lot 14 SW quarter 
of 9-41-12.
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425203 10/7/1882 William M. Brophy 
(Special Commissioner) 

-> 

William Rooney (Chicago)

Commissioner
Deed

On 9/20/1882 Superior Court of Cook County on the Chancery side 
entered decree in William Rooney v. Constantine and Louise Bender that 
Bender deliver a quit claim deed. They failed to do so, thus Brophy 
through power and authority appointed by the Superior Court entered 
this quit claim deed for $1.  

Lot 14 in SW quarter of 9-41-12

425647 10/11/1882 Affidavit - Mrs. Betsy M. 
Conant, widow of 
Augustus Conant

Document States that John Conant, Marcy Conant, and Caretta Conant (not sure of 
first names) executed a quit claim deed of lot 14 in SW quarter of 
9-41-12 to William Rooney dated 5/16/1876 and that they were the only 
surviving children of Augustus Conant. On that date, John Conant and 
his wife Amy (illegible) executed the deed, Marcy and his wife Melisa, 
executed the deed. Caretta was unmarried.

430753 11/3/1882 Lyman Baird and Francis 
Bradley (Chicago) 

-> 

William Rooney (Chicago)

Discharge of 
Lien

$1 paid to William Rooney to release and discharge from any lien upon 
the premises through transcript of judgment filed in Circuit Court of 
Cook County 9/13/1880 as number 1611 (but not a discharge against any 
other property owned by William Rooney at the date of judgment)  

lot 14 of the SW quarter of 9-41-12

431346 10/20/1882 William Rooney and wife 
Julia (Chicago) 

-> 

Frederick Wegner (Town 
of Maine)

$510 (Deed) Lot 14 of SW 1/4 of 9-41-12 containing 8.5 acres.

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary
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9. Timber Lots - One lot in Section 21 (“9 acre lot”) 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

46043 12/19/1861  

[Filed 
7/29/1872]

William Rooney (Town 
of Maine) and wife 

-> 

John B. Poyer (Town of 
Maine)

$60 - 
Deed

west half of NE quarter of Section 21 in Town of Maine:  

commencing at a post (illegible) east of NW corner of said west half 7 chains and 90 
links (7.90) and south six degrees west two chains and 57 links (2.57) from which 
point a red oak 12 inches in diameter bears north 81 degrees east distance 22 links 
and running from thence south 83.75 degrees east 5 chains and 62 links (5.62) thence 
south 13 chains and five links (13.05) to SE corner of land owned by Thomas Boyce 
thence west 7 chains and 13 links (7.13) thence north six degrees east 14 chains and 
60 links (14.60) to place of beginning  

9 acres (more/less)  

Originally filed as document 73908 on 12/10/1863
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10. Eight residential lots near 57th and State - Chicago, IL 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

143140 12/13/1873 Bernard Engel and 
wife Sophie 
(Chicago) 

-> 

William Rooney 
(Chicago)

$400 - Quitclaim Lots 3, 5, 7, 10, 14, 16, 19, and 22 in Periolat's subdivision of south 147.5 feet 
of lot 4 in 16-38-14

161426 4/6/1874 William Rooney 
and wife Julia 
(Chicago) 

-> 

William Kimball 
(Chicago), as 
trustee, and James 
Fake (?) as 
secondary trustee

$2,200 Promissory 
Note

Promissory note payable to the order of John K. Chase (Massachusetts, 
County of Middlesex)  

Due 5 years for sum of $2,200 with semi-annual payments at 10% per annum 
and evidenced by 10 interest notes for $110 each due in 6, 12, 18, 24, 30, 36, 
42, 48, 54, and 60 months payable at the Bescott (?) National Bank in the City 
of Lowell, Massachusetts.  

Town of Lake: Lots 3, 5, 7, 10, 14, 16, 19, and 22 in Periolat's subdivision of 
south 147.5 feet of lot 4 in school trustee's subdivision of 16-38-14
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11. Lake Street in the West Loop - Chicago, IL 

Document 
# Date Parties Amount Summary

27434 4/18/1872 William Rooney and wife 
Julia (Chicago) 

-> 

Clemens F. Periolat 
(Chicago)

$1,400 - Deed East half of Lot 14 in Block 20 of Carpenter's Addition to 
Chicago

114292 9/10/1872 William Rooney and wife 
Julia (Town of Maine) 

-> 

Clemens F. Periolat

$1,400 - Deed East half of lot 14 in block 20 of Carpenter's Addition to Chicago
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Appendix II - Copy of Julia Rooney’s Original Will 



The original hand written Will, probably in the hand of her attorney, was four pages long [Citation Appendix II-A] 
Julia Rooney signed the last page 

Zoom views are shown below 
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.    


Old Settler Newspaper Tributes for Julia Rooney’s Death with arrival date of 1837 

Left: Chicago Inter Ocean - 4/29/1886 [Citation Appendix II-B] 
Right: Chicago Tribune - 5/20/1886 [Citation Appendix II-C] 
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Next Steps in Genealogical and Biographical Research 

Michael E. Byczek has identified the following research items as the most important next steps to fully document William and Julia Rooney’s biography: 

1. Date and location of William Rooney and Julia Phelan’s marriage. 
2. Date and location of Julia Phelan’s birth along with her parental information. 
3. Date of their arrival in the United States, such as a ship passenger list (only one has been found for a William and Judith Rooney without children, or any other 

identifying information). 
4. Their residences in New York (and possibly other states) prior to permanent settlement in Chicago. 
5. Date and location of baptism for their son John Rooney, including verification of whether the record found in Manhattan is accurate. 
6. Date and location of baptism for their son Hugh Rooney, since his birth took place around the time of permanent transition between New York and Illinois. 
7. Dates and location of baptisms for their daughters Anna, Hannah, and Josephine in Chicago or the suburbs. 
8. More precise date of William and Julia Rooney’s initial arrival in Chicago. 
9. When and where William Rooney became a U.S. citizen, and therefore his wife through their marriage. 
10. Complete inventory of all real estate owned by William and Julia Rooney, before and after the 1871 Chicago Fire, including how many buildings they 

constructed. 
11. Whether the case file still exists for William Rooney’s 1850 federal land patent claim that was denied. A claim required details about the family and land. 
12. Whether court records still exist to determine exact distribution of assets from the real estate auction during Julia Rooney’s probate proceedings. 
13. William and Julia Rooney were each asked to write their biographies three times: (A) the 1876 Centennial, (B) The Old Settler’s Club, and (C) the Mosher 

Memorial “time capsule”. If these biographies are found (six total - three each), the documents are expected to reveal very specific family information about 
early life in Chicago. 

14. Whether the William and Julia Rooney family can be found in missing census years, including the agriculture editions. 
15. Complete chronology of Chicago addresses from the 1830s through the 1870s, including the existence of rental properties versus ownership records. 
16. Verification for which of William Rooney’s siblings joined him in Chicago. 
17. A complete record of all Rooney and Phelan immediate or close relatives in Chicago, New York, and elsewhere in the United States. 
18. A more precise chronology for the marriages of William and Julia Rooney’s children (those for which records have not been found outside Chicago or prior to 

the 1871 Fire) and identities/timelines for all their grandchildren. 
19. William and Julia Rooney’s grandson Judge John Rooney was a regular guest speaker at historical events in Mt. Prospect and Elk Grove. It is unknown 

whether transcripts or detailed notes exist from these presentations. 
20. Judge John Rooney referred to a priest in Ireland with the Rooney surname who he wanted to visit during his honeymoon to Europe. It is unknown whether 

this was a curiosity or known blood family relationship. 
21. Date and location of Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer’s marriage (William Rooney’s parents). 
22. Whether the location of both Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer’s birth can be determined, which does not seem possible at present. 
23. Verification for Hugh and Alice Rooney’s death and location of their burials. 
24. More information about whether William Rooney’s father Hugh Rooney was also called John, or whether these are two different individuals. 
25. A more precise location of the Rooney farms in Urard, Co. Tipperary, and the relationship between each owner (i.e. Hugh Sr versus Hugh Jr). 
26. Verification of the Dwyer mines in Co. Tipperary. 
27. Information about the Rooney Cross in Urard, Co. Tipperary, such as by whom and when it was built. 

Michael E. Byczek intends to post relevant updates to this biography on his website prior to formal registration of a second edition. 
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Copyright Notice and List of Sources 

Michael E. Byczek claims full copyright authorship for all text, compilation, and editing in this biography. All text, including analysis of historical records, was 
written entirely by him. 

Michael E. Byczek further claims full copyright for all photographs used throughout this biography that he created, which are described in the general format 
“Credit: Michael E. Byczek” or otherwise cited as “Byczek, Michael E.” for authorship in the list of sources. 

Copyright is not claimed for any third-party images or documents, other than compilation or arrangement of these records as part of genealogical and historical 
research for a biography, such as textual analysis of the third-party resources. 

Michael E. Byczek’s father, Michael M. Byczek, registered a federal copyright for a summary of his own family genealogy in 2012 (Michael M. Byczek Family 
Genealogy. TX0007522662. 2012-05-18). 

This biography of William and Julia Rooney, written and compiled by Michael E. Byczek, is an extensive research effort that expands upon that earlier 
genealogical narrative. 

List of Sources 

[Exhibit 1] Cabinet card portrait of William Rooney. Mosher, C. D. (Charles Delevan), 1829-1897. Chicago History Museum, ICHi-050498. https://
images.chicagohistory.org/asset/20280/ [Online access verified on 11/7/2024]. Image used for this biography is the low quality version saved from the website. 

[Exhibit 2] Portrait of Julia Rooney, wife of William Rooney, Chicago, Illinois, late 19th century. Chicago History Museum, ICHi-070000; Charles D. Mosher, 
photographer. https://images.chicagohistory.org/asset/31580/ [Online access verified on 11/7/2024]. Image used for this biography is the low quality version saved 
from the website. 

[Exhibit 3] Signatures of William and Julia Rooney 

Michael E. Byczek personally obtained access to original paper court files related to William and Julia Rooney’s ownership of their home at 43 E. Division in 
Chicago, IL through the Cook County Clerk of Court Archives in 2006. He made photocopies of these documents, in person, which are now part of his personal 
genealogical collection. The signatures are from a joint statement by William and Julia Rooney during litigation with Edward Harland concerning the construction 
of the two houses on Division Street. The joint statement included a copy of the agreement between William Rooney and Edward Harland that is quoted in this 
biography.  

Another case file obtained regarding William Rooney’s real estate was a court case for one of his timber lots in Des Plaines, which is quoted in this biography. 

[4] Early Chicago, 1833-1871. A selection of documents from the Illinois State Archives. Illinois Secretary of State. https://www.ilsos.gov/departments/archives/
teaching_packages/early_chicago/home.html [Online access verified on 11/4/2024] 

[Exhibit 4] Actual items from the Michael E. Byczek Genealogy Collection:  

Andreas, A. T. History of Chicago; from the earliest period to the present time - Volume I: Ending with the year 1857. The A. T. Andreas Company, Chicago. 1884. 
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Andreas, A. T. History of Chicago; from the earliest period to the present time - Volume III: From the Fire of 1871 until 1885. The A. T. Andreas Company, 
Chicago. 1886. Pages 392-401. 
	  
[4A] Byczek, Michael E. “History of Chicago, in three volumes by A.T. Andreas”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[4B] Byczek, Michael E. “William Rooney and the Old Settlers of Chicago, page 397 - Andreas History of Chicago, v3”. Photograph. 2024. 

[Exhibit 5] Actual item from the Michael E. Byczek Genealogy Collection: 
	  
Blanchard, Rufus. Discovery and Conquests of the North-West with the History of Chicago. R. Blanchard & Company, Wheaton. 1879. Pages 735-742. 

[5A] Byczek, Michael E. “1879 Book - Discovery and Conquests of the Northwest”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[5B] Byczek, Michael E. “William Rooney and the Old Settlers of Chicago, Page 740 - Discovery and Conquests of the Northwest”. Photograph. 2024. 

[Exhibit 6] Old Settler Death Tributes 

[6A] The Inter Ocean Fri, May 22, 1885 - Page 5. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/34470342/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024]. 
	  
[6B] Chicago Tribune Fri, May 22, 1885 - Page 3. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349270685/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024]. 
	  
[6C] The Calumet Club Seventh Annual Reception to the Old Settlers of Chicago - Lane, Ebenezer, Family. Papers, [Box #8, Folder #3], Hanna Holborn Gray 
Special Collections Research Center, University of Chicago Library. https://www.lib.uchicago.edu/collex/collections/lane-ebenezer-family-papers/ (online access 
verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[6D] Order of Exercises and Corrected Lists for the Eighth Annual Reception to the Old Settlers of Chicago Tendered by the Calumet Club - Refer to citation for 
Exhibit 6C 

[Exhibit 7] Actual items from the Michael E. Byczek Genealogy Collection: 

Fergus, Robert. Fergus’ Directory of the City of Chicago, 1839. (Fergus Printing Company, Chicago. 1876). Page 29. 

Fergus, Robert. Directory of the City of Chicago Illinois, for 1843. (Fergus Printing Company, Chicago. 1896). Page 86. 

[7A] Byczek, Michael E. “1839 and 1843 Commemorative Chicago Directories”. Photograph. 2024.  
	  
[7B] Byczek, Michael E. “Page 29 from the 1839 Commemorative Fergus Chicago Directory”. Photograph. 2024. 
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[8A] Chicago Tribune Fri, May 21, 1880 - Page 6. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349865483/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024]. 
	  
[8B] The Inter Ocean Fri, May 21, 1880 - Page 3. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/35076591/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 9] Actual items from the Michael E. Byczek Genealogy Collection: 

Kirkland, Joseph. The Story of Chicago. Dibble Publishing Company, Chicago. 1892. Photo insert marked page 129 and before book page 129.  

Kirkland, Joseph. The Story of Chicago, Second Edition. Dibble Publishing Company, Chicago. 1892. Photo insert marked page 129 and before book page 129. 

[9A] Byczek, Michael E. “The Story of Chicago, 1st and 2nd Editions”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[9B] Byczek, Michael E. “William and Julia Rooney’s Photos printed in The Story of Chicago, 1st Volume”. Photograph. 2024. 

[Exhibit 10] Actual item from the Michael E. Byczek Genealogy Collection: 
	  
The Inland Printer - A Technical Journal Devoted to the Art of Printing, Volume XI. April to September 1893. The Inland Printer Company (Chicago). [Anonymous 
reprint of a book in the public domain]. Photo insert prior to beginning of the May 1893 Edition and after page 116.   

[10A] Byczek, Michael E. “Inland Printer, Volume XI”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[10B] Byczek, Michael E. “William Rooney’s Photo printed in the Inland Printer”. Photograph. 2024. 
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Mosher, C.D. Catalogue of the names and occupations of prominent persons who have sat for memorial photographs for Mosher's memorial offering to Chicago. 
1885.  
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Chicago, 1885. Family Search. https://www.familysearch.org/search/catalog/502906 (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[11A] Julia Rooney - Microfilm Item 16 (image #318) [Digital version above] 
	  
[11B] William Rooney - Microfilm Item 16 (image #319) [Digital version above] 
	  
[11C] Chicago Tribune Sat, Feb 28, 1885 - Page 7. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349819237/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024]. 
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December 20, 2024]. 
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[14] Currey, J. Seymour. Chicago: Its History and Its Builders, Volume II. The S. J. Clarke Publishing Company, Chicago. 1912. Page 205. 

Digitalized Version: Google Books. https://www.google.com/books/edition/Chicago/LRxCDh9V870C?hl=en&gbpv=0 (online access verified on December 20, 
2024) 

[Exhibit 15] The Chicago Evening Mail Chicago, Illinois - Thursday, July 11, 1872. Page 4. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/
668318427 ) [online access verified on December 20, 2024].   
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[16A] Palmatary, J. T, Christian Inger, Herline & Hensel, and Braunhold & Sonne. Chicago. Chicago, Braunhold & Sonne, 1857. Map. Retrieved from the Library 
of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/75693204/ (online access verified on December 16, 2024) 
	  
[16B] Insurance Map of Chicago 1868-69. Plate 8. (Publisher: D.A. Sanborn). Retrieved from the Norman B. Leventhal Map & Education Center Collection at the 
Boston Public Library (https://collections.leventhalmap.org/search/commonwealth:ht250120r) [online access verified on December 18, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 17] Chicago Tribune Sat, Jan 18, 1868 - Page 4. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/465934597/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 18] Birds Eye Maps 

[18A] Poole Brothers. Bird's-eye-view of the business district of Chicago. Chicago, 1898. Map. Retrieved from the Library of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/
75693212/ (online access verified on December 12, 2024) 
	  
[18B] Rand, McNally & Co.'s bird's-eye views and guide to Chicago. Rand, McNally & Company (Chicago and New York, 1893). Page 133. 

Digitalized Version: Internet Archive. https://archive.org/details/randmcnallycosbi00lawr (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 

[Exhibit 19] Atlas of Chicago Volume 1 1891. Plate 70. (Publisher: Rascher Insurance Map Publishing Co.). Retrieved from the Chicago Public Library (https://
www.chipublib.org/) through the online resource titled “Illinois Fire Insurance Maps online (FIMo)”. [online access verified on December 18, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 20] Actual Photos of Fifth Ave 

[20A] Boucher, Jack E. 1. Wells and Lake Sts. crossing. Randolf St. Station is visible in lower center, - Union Elevated Railroad, Randolph-Wells Street Station, 
Randolph & Wells Streets, Chicago, Cook County, IL. Photograph. 1971. From Library of Congress. Historic American Buildings Survey/Historic American 
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Engineering Record/Historic American Landscapes Survey. https://www.loc.gov/pictures/item/il0387.photos.060838p/ (online access verified on December 16, 
2024) 

[20B] Boucher, Jack E. 2. Randolf St. Station seen from the crossing of Wells and Lake Sts. - Union Elevated Railroad, Randolph-Wells Street Station, Randolph 
& Wells Streets, Chicago, Cook County, IL. Photograph. 1971. From Library of Congress. Historic American Buildings Survey/Historic American Engineering 
Record/Historic American Landscapes Survey. https://www.loc.gov/pictures/item/il0387.photos.060839p/ (online access verified on December 16, 2024) 

[Exhibit 21] 
	  
[21A] The Lakeside Annual Directory of the City of Chicago. 1875-76. Page 851. Donnelley, Loyd and Company. https://www.fold3.com/image/80066539/rollo-
charles-e-p-851-us-city-directories-for-chicago-illinois-1843-1916 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[21B] The Lakeside Annual Directory of the City of Chicago. 1875-76. Page 1159. Donnelley, Loyd and Company. https://www.fold3.com/image/78231391/
brachvogel-charles-p-1159-us-city-directories-for-chicago-illinois-1843-1916 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 

[Exhibit 22] Insurance Maps of Chicago, Illinois Volume One South 1906; Revised to April 1950. Plate 13. (Publisher: Sanborn Map Co.). Retrieved from the 
Chicago Public Library (https://www.chipublib.org/) through the online resource titled “Illinois Fire Insurance Maps online (FIMo)”. [online access verified on 
December 18, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 23] Byczek, Michael E. “Present-day location of the William Rooney and Peter Ryan Building in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2022. 

[Exhibit 24] Byczek, Michael E. “William Rooney’s Building on the SE Corner of Franklin and Lake in Chicago, IL”. Collection of Photographs. 2017. 

[Exhibit 25] Rand, McNally & Co.'s bird's-eye views and guide to Chicago. Rand, McNally & Company (Chicago and New York, 1893). Page 167. 

Digitalized Version: Internet Archive. https://archive.org/details/randmcnallycosbi00lawr (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 

[Exhibit 26]  

[26A] The Lakeside Annual Directory of the City of Chicago. 1877-78. Page 845. Donnelley, Lloyd and Company. www.familysearch.org/library/books/idviewer/
844684 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 

[26B] The Inter Ocean Fri, Jun 13, 1873 - Page 4. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/38404291/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024] 

[Exhibit 27] City of Chicago Government Resources 

[27A] Chicago Historic Resources Survey, An inventory of architecturally and historically significant structures (online search tool). City of Chicago. https://
webapps1.chicago.gov/landmarksweb/web/historicsurvey.htm (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[27B] Lake-Franklin Group. City of Chicago, Chicago Landmarks. https://webapps1.chicago.gov/landmarksweb/web/landmarkdetails.htm?lanId=1351 (online 
access verified on December 17, 2024) 

Page  of 343 359



[Exhibit 28] Actual items from the Michael E. Byczek Genealogy Collection: 

Sinkevitch, Alice. AIA Guide to Chicago. A Harvest Original Harcourt Brace & Company. 1993. Page 87. 

Sinkevitch, Alice. AIA Guide to Chicago, 2nd Edition. A Harvest Original Harcourt, Inc. 2004. Page 87. 
	  
Sinkevitch, Alice and Peterson, Laurie McGovern. AIA Guide to Chicago, Third Edition. University of Illinois Press. 2014. Page 87. 

[28A] Byczek, Michael E. “AIA Guide to Chicago, 1st - 3rd Editions”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[28B] Byczek, Michael E. “William Rowney Building, page 87 from the AIA Guide to Chicago, 1st Edition”. Photograph. 2024. 

[Exhibit 29] Lake-Franklin Group Landmark Publication - Originally obtained (around 2006-2007) by Michael E. Byczek from the City of Chicago through email 
communication about the spelling of William Rooney’s name.  

Digitized version: City of Chicago Landmark Designation Reports. Internet Archive. https://archive.org/details/CityOfChicagoLandmarkDesignationReports/
LakeFranklinGroup/ (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 30] Thall, Bob. Lake Street, Lake St at Franklin St. Photograph. Date unknown. Retrieved from the Ryerson and Burnham Art and Architecture Archive. 
Art Institute of Chicago. https://artic.contentdm.oclc.org/digital/collection/mqc/id/38733/rec/23 (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 31] Byczek, Michael E. “The William and Julia Rooney Family Residence located at 43 E. Division in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2017. 

[Exhibit 32] Pre-Renovation Photographs 

[32A] Michael E. Byczek saved the image dated in the year 2000 on the Cook County Assessor’s Office website around the year 2006. The photograph has since 
been replaced with a current image. https://www.cookcountyassessor.com/ 
	  
[32B] Byczek, Michael E. “The William and Julia Rooney Family Residence located at 43 E. Division in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2007. 

[Exhibit 33] Chicago Tribune Sun, Aug 15, 1875 - Page 8. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349741083/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 34] 
	  
[34A] Robinson's Atlas of the City of Chicago Illinois Volume Three 1886. Plate 12. (Publisher: E. Robinson). Retrieved from the Chicago Public Library (https://
www.chipublib.org/) through the online resource titled “Illinois Fire Insurance Maps online (FIMo)”. [online access verified on December 18, 2024]. 
	  
[34B] Insurance Maps of Chicago, Volume Two 1892. Plate 204. (Publisher: Rascher Insurance Map Publishing Co.). Retrieved from the Chicago Public Library 
(https://www.chipublib.org/) through the online resource titled “Illinois Fire Insurance Maps online (FIMo)”. [online access verified on December 18, 2024]. 
	  
[34C] Insurance Maps of Chicago, Illinois Volume Two 1910. Plate 100. (Publisher: Sanborn Map Co.). Retrieved from the Chicago Public Library (https://
www.chipublib.org/) through the online resource titled “Illinois Fire Insurance Maps online (FIMo)”. [online access verified on December 18, 2024]. 
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[Exhibit 35] Refer to citation for Exhibit 27A 

[Exhibit 36] The Bon-Ton Directory 

Harris & Morrow. The Bon-Ton Directory : Giving the names in alphabetical order, addresses and hours of reception of the most prominent and fashionable ladies 
residing in Chicago and its suburbs. Chicago. Blakely, Brown & Marsh, Printers. 1879-80. Page 133. 

Digitized Version: The Internet Archive. https://archive.org/details/bontondirectoryg79harr/bontondirectoryg79harr/ (online access verified on December 16, 2024) 

[Exhibit 37] Screenshot taken by Michael E. Byczek showing the legal grid-based map of Des Plaines and Mount Prospect - Illinois Public Land Survey System 
(PLSS) Boundaries. Illinois Geospatial Data Clearinghouse. https://clearinghouse.isgs.illinois.edu/data/reference/illinois-public-land-survey-system-plss-
boundaries (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 38] Flower, W. L, and Edward Mendel. Map of Cook County, Illinois. Chicago: S. H. Burhans & J. Van Vechten, 1861. Map. Retrieved from the Library 
of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/2013593074/ (online access verified on December 16, 2024) 

[Exhibit 39] Flower, W. L. Map of Cook County, Illinois. Chicago, Ill.: S.H. Burhans & J. Van Vechten, . Chicago: engraved, printed, colored & mounted by Edw. 
Mendel, 1862. Map. Retrieved from the Library of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/2013593075/ (online access verified on December 16, 2024) 

[Exhibit 40] Van Vechten, J. Van Vechten's map of Cook Du Page Countie's also the norther portion of Lake County, Indiana. Chicago: J. Van Vechten, 1870. Map. 
Retrieved from the Library of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/2013593087/ (online access verified on December 16, 2024) 

[Exhibit 41] L.M. Snyder & Co. Snyder's real estate map of Cook County, Illinois: indexed. Chicago: L.M. Snyder & Co, 1886. Map. Retrieved from the Library 
of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/2013593088/ (online access verified on December 16, 2024) 

[Exhibit 42] Snyder, F. M. Snyder's real estate map of Cook and Dupage Counties, Illinois. Chicago, Illinois: F.M. Snyder, 1890. Map. Retrieved from the Library 
of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/2013593076/ (online access verified on December 16, 2024) 

[Exhibit 43] Rondonell, Max. Snyder's real estate map of Cook, Du Page and part of Will counties, Illinois. Chicago, Illinois: William L. Mitchell, 1898. Map. 
Retrieved from the Library of Congress, https://www.loc.gov/item/2013593089/ (online access verified on December 16, 2024) 

[Exhibit 44] Illinois Historical Aerial Photography. Illinois Geospatial Data Clearinghouse. Filename: 0bwq05089 (Photograph taken 1938). https://
clearinghouse.isgs.illinois.edu/data/imagery/1937-1947-illinois-historical-aerial-photography (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 

[Exhibit 45] Actual items from the Michael E. Byczek Genealogy Collection: 

Kleespies, Gavin W. Images of America - Lost Mount Prospect. Arcadia Publishing. 2006. Pages 112-113. 
	  
Kleespies, Gavin W. and Murphy, Jean Powley. Images of America - Mount Prospect. Arcadia Publishing. 2003. Page 15.  

[45A] Byczek, Michael E. “Mount Prospect History Books”. Photograph. 2024. 
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[45B] Byczek, Michael E. “Page 15 from the Book: Mount Prospect - Rooney House”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[45C] Byczek, Michael E. “Page 113 from the Book: Lost Mount Prospect - Original House”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[45D] Byczek, Michael E. “Page 113 from the Book: Lost Mount Prospect - Current House”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[Exhibit 46] The Daily Herald Thu, Feb 08, 1962 - Page 127. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/44558989/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 47] Arlington Heights Daily Herald Suburban Chicago - Tuesday, February 24, 1970. Page 34. Retrieved from http://newspaperarchive.com (https://
dailyherald.newspaperarchive.com/arlington-heights-daily-herald-suburban-chicago/1970-02-24/page-34/) [online access verified on December 20, 2024] 

[Exhibit 48] Chicago Tribune Sun, Jun 18, 1916 - Page 18. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/354931932/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 49] The Daily Herald Fri, Jan 10, 1930 - Page 16. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/37224170/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 50] 
	  
[50A] The Daily Herald Fri, Aug 04, 1933 - Page 11. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/37236080/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024]. 
	  
[50B] The Daily Herald Fri, Jul 28, 1933 - Page 1. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/37235962) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 51] Block 36 
	  
[51A] Byczek, Michael E. “William Rooney’s Ownership of Block 36 on Randolph in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2022. 
	  
[51B] Robinson's Atlas of the City of Chicago Illinois Volume Three 1886. Plate 1. (Publisher: E. Robinson). Retrieved from the Chicago Public Library (https://
www.chipublib.org/) through the online resource titled “Illinois Fire Insurance Maps online (FIMo)”. [online access verified on December 18, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 52] West Loop 
	  
[52A] Byczek, Michael E. “William Rooney’s Real Estate on Lake St in the West Loop neighborhood of Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2023. 
	  
[52B] Robinson's Atlas of the City of Chicago Illinois Volume Four 1886. Plate 9. (Publisher: E. Robinson). Retrieved from the Chicago Public Library (https://
www.chipublib.org/) through the online resource titled “Illinois Fire Insurance Maps online (FIMo)”. [online access verified on December 18, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 53] Rascher's Map of Chicago Suburbs Vol. 1 1885. Plate 33. (Publisher: Central Map, Survey, and Publishing Co.). Retrieved from the Chicago Public 
Library (https://www.chipublib.org/) through the online resource titled “Illinois Fire Insurance Maps online (FIMo)”. [online access verified on December 18, 
2024]. 
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[Exhibit 54] Julia Rooney's Probate Executor Bond - Michael E. Byczek personally obtained access to original paper court files related to Julia Rooney’s probate 
through the Cook County Clerk of Court Archives in 2006. He made photocopies of these documents, in person, which are now part of his personal genealogical 
collection. This includes the Executor Bond and joint statement made by Kittie Talbot and Anna Boucher regarding construction of their father’s namesake 
building on Franklin and Lake. 

[Exhibit 55] Chicago Tribune Sun, May 28, 1893 - Page 24. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349910875/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 56-1] Alice (Rooney) O'Connor 
	  
[56-1A] Baptism - Urlingford; County of Kilkenny; Diocese of Ossory. Baptisms, Aug. 1835 to Nov. 1835. Catholic Parish Registers at the NLI. https://
registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000635348_139 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[56-1B] Marriage License - "Illinois, County Marriages, 1810-1940", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:KF23-7YJ : Sat Mar 09 
21:28:54 UTC 2024), Entry for James O'Connor and Alice Rooney, 1863. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-1C] Death Certificate - Michael E. Byczek obtained a genealogical copy of Alice O’Connor’s death certificate directly from Kane County government.  
	  
[56-1D] Obituary - Elgin Every Saturday. January 14, 1893. Michael E. Byczek obtained a copy of the obituary from a genealogy volunteer in Elgin, IL at the Gail 
Borden Public Library. 

"Illinois, Kane County, Elgin, Gail Borden Public Library District, Local Newspaper Obituary Digital Index, 1922-2017," , FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/
ark:/61903/1:1:WGS7-T9ZM : 26 September 2019), Mrs. Alice Connor, 1893; citing Death, Kane, Illinois, United States, source recordb11110296, possibly other 
reference information, Name of Archive, Location of Archive; FHL microfilm. Gail Borden Public Library District, Elgin, Illinois. [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024] 

[Exhibit 56-2] John Rooney 
	  
[56-2A] Baptism - Patrick Rooney in 1837 New York Roman Catholic Parish Baptisms. Retrieved from Findmypast (https://www.findmypast.com/transcript?
id=US/NY/CATH/PR/BAP/PH2/00530937&tab=this) [online access verified on December 20, 2024] 
	  
[56-2B] Death Certificate - "Illinois, Cook County Deaths, 1871-1998", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:Q2MC-H384 : Sat Aug 31 
09:35:29 UTC 2024), Entry for John Rooney and William Rooney, 26 Feb 1923. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-2C] Obituary Article: Chicago Daily News. March 1, 1923. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 
	  
[56-2D] Obituary Article : Chicago Tribune Tue, Feb 27, 1923 - Page 14. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/355115103/) 
[online access verified on December 20, 2024] 
	  
[56-2E] Obituary: Chicago Tribune Tue, Feb 27, 1923 - Page 23. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/355115197/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024] 
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[56-2F] Obituary: Chicago Daily News. February 28, 1923. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 

[Exhibit 56-3] Hugh Rooney 

[56-3A] Death Certificate - "Illinois, Cook County Deaths, 1871-1998," database, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N7HY-3MN : 8 March 
2018), Hugh Rooney, 04 Dec 1881; citing , Cook, Illinois, United States, source reference 14347, record number 314, Cook County Courthouse, Chicago; FHL 
microfilm 1,031,438. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-3B] Obituary: Chicago Tribune Mon, Dec 05, 1881 - Page 8. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349573818/) [online 
access verified on December 20, 2024] 
	  
[56-3C] Obituary: Chicago Daily News. December 6, 1881. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 

[Exhibit 56-4] Anna (Rooney) Boucher 
	  
[56-4A] Death Certificate - "Illinois, Cook County Deaths, 1871-1998", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:Q2M7-PF9V : Sun Mar 10 
23:08:22 UTC 2024), Entry for Anna B Boucher and William Roomey, 02 Jan 1913. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-4B] Obituary: Chicago Tribune Fri, Jan 03, 1913 - Page 18. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/355165731/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024] 
	  
[56-4C] Obituary: Chicago Daily News. January 3, 1913. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 

[Exhibit 56-5] Elizabeth (Rooney) Periolat 
	  
[56-5A] Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:S3HT-
DHG9-SYH?cc=1452409&wc=M66G-13D%3A40147601%2C40290401 : 20 May 2014), St Mary of the Assumption Parish (Chicago: Old, Wabash) > Baptisms, 
marriages 1833-1863 > image 217 of 482; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-5B] Marriage Church Record - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/3:1:S3HT-DHG9-SHC?cc=1452409&wc=M66P-CWG%3A40147601%2C40287801 : 20 May 2014), St Mary of the Assumption Parish (Chicago: Old, 
Wabash) > Marriages 1859-1906 > image 86 of 232; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-5C] Death Certificate - "Illinois, Cook County Deaths, 1871-1998", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N7K5-QYC : Thu Mar 07 
15:20:42 UTC 2024), Entry for Elizabeth A Periolat, 17 Nov 1891. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-5D] Obituary: Chicago Tribune Sun, Nov 15, 1891 - Page 16. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349505148/) [online 
access verified on December 20, 2024] 
	  
[56-5E] Obituary: The Inter Ocean Fri, Nov 13, 1891 - Page 7. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/33945365/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024] 

[Exhibit 56-6] Hannah (Rooney) Brophy 
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[56-6A] Marriage License - "Illinois, Cook County Marriages, 1871-1969", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N7DS-3ZS : Sun Mar 10 
08:20:50 UTC 2024), Entry for William M Brophy and Hannah B Rooney, 1876. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-6B] Marriage Church Record - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/1:1:QVMN-BDRD : Fri Mar 08 23:24:37 UTC 2024), Entry for William M Brophy and Hannah B Rooney, 21 Jun 1876. (online access verified on 
December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-6C] Chicago Times. June 25, 1876. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 
	  
[56-6D] Death Certificate - "Illinois, Deaths and Stillbirths, 1916-1948", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N342-KYS : Sun Mar 10 
03:58:32 UTC 2024), Entry for Hannah B. Brophy and Wm. Rooney, 2 January 1923. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-6E] Obituary: Chicago Tribune Thu, Jan 04, 1923 - Page 19. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/355012864/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024] 
	  
[56-6F] Obituary: Chicago Daily News. January 4, 1923. Michael E. Byczek obtained a printed copy from microfilm at the Chicago Public Library, main branch 
(date retrieved unknown). 

[Exhibit 56-7] William Rooney 
	  
[56-7A] Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:S3HT-
DHG9-SQS?cc=1452409&wc=M66G-13D%3A40147601%2C40290401 : 20 May 2014), St Mary of the Assumption Parish (Chicago: Old, Wabash) > Baptisms, 
marriages 1833-1863 > image 240 of 482; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-7B] Death Certificate - "Illinois, Deaths and Stillbirths, 1916-1948", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N3CG-YL6 : Tue Jul 30 
01:07:15 UTC 2024), Entry for William Rooney and Wm Rooney, 28 Jun 1917. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 56-8] Mary (Rooney) Riley 
	  
[56-8A] Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch(https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/3:1:S3HY-6SM9-TYG?cc=1452409&wc=M66P-HPN%3A40280601%2C40413901 : 20 May 2014), St Patrick Parish (Chicago: Old, Adams St) > 
Baptisms 1846-1856 vol 1 > image 19 of 206; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-8B] Marriage License - "Illinois, Cook County Marriages, 1871-1969", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N7XC-ZLD : Thu Mar 
07 21:33:39 UTC 2024), Entry for Patrick W. Riley and Mary Ann Rooney, 1881. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-8C] Marriage Church Record - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/1:1:QVMN-BFCZ : Fri Mar 08 22:43:28 UTC 2024), Entry for Pk M Riley and Mary Ann Rooney, 09 Nov 1881. (online access verified on December 17, 
2024) 
	  
[56-8D] Death Certificate - "Illinois, Cook County Deaths, 1871-1998", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:Q2MC-CK3H : Sat Jul 20 
21:28:12 UTC 2024), Entry for Mary I Riley and John Rooney, 27 May 1923. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
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[56-8E] Obituary: Chicago Tribune Mon, May 28, 1923 - Page 10. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/355159807/) [online 
access verified on December 20, 2024] 

[Exhibit 56-9] Katherine (Rooney) Talbot 
	  
[56-9A] Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:S3HT-
DHG9-3MT?cc=1452409&wc=M66G-13D%3A40147601%2C40290401 : 20 May 2014), St Mary of the Assumption Parish (Chicago: Old, Wabash) > Baptisms, 
marriages 1833-1863 > image 267 of 482; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-9B] Marriage License - "Illinois, Cook County Marriages, 1871-1969", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N76X-WZ2 : Fri Mar 08 
18:09:28 UTC 2024), Entry for Edward Talbot and Kittie A. Rooney, 1880. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-9C] Marriage Church Record - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925", FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/1:1:QVMN-BP7Q : Mon Mar 11 00:01:54 UTC 2024), Entry for Edward Talbot and Kittie A Rooney, 23 Jun 1880. (online access verified on December 17, 
2024) 
	  
[56-9D] Chicago Tribune Sun, Jun 27, 1880 - Page 12. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349878613/) [online access verified 
on December 20, 2024] 
	  
[56-9E] Death Certificate - "Illinois, Cook County Deaths, 1871-1998," database, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N78C-JTP : 8 March 
2018), Katherine H. Talbot, 19 Sep 1899; citing , Cook, Illinois, United States, source reference cn 18993, record number 97, Cook County Courthouse, Chicago; 
FHL microfilm 1,033,072. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-9F] Obituary: Chicago Tribune Wed, Sep 20, 1899 - Page 5. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349398126/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024] 
	  
[56-9G] Obituary: Chicago Daily News. September 20, 1899. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 
	  
[56-9H] Obituary: Chicago Record. September 20, 1899. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 

[Exhibit 56-10] Margaret (Rooney) Maher 
	  
[56-10A] Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:S3HT-
DHG9-SCZ?cc=1452409&wc=M66G-13D%3A40147601%2C40290401 : 20 May 2014), St Mary of the Assumption Parish (Chicago: Old, Wabash) > Baptisms, 
marriages 1833-1863 > image 279 of 482; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-10B] Marriage License - "Illinois, Cook County Marriages, 1871-1969", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N7DX-N3X : Thu Jul 
18 16:37:33 UTC 2024), Entry for John Maker and Maggie Rooney, 29 Sep 1888. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-10C] Marriage Church Record - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/3:1:S3HT-DC1S-CQX?cc=1452409&wc=M66G-8NP%3A39886501%2C39985301 : 20 May 2014), St Elizabeth Parish (Chicago: 41st St) > Marriages 
1882-1915 > image 7 of 57; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
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[56-10D] Death Certificate - Michigan Department of Community Health, Division for Vital Records and Health Statistics; Lansing, Michigan; Death Records. 
Ancestry.com. Michigan, U.S., Death Records, 1867-1952 [database on-line]. Provo, UT, USA: Ancestry.com Operations, Inc., 2015. https://www.ancestry.com/
search/collections/60872/records/911922?tid=199843913&pid=152610468397&ssrc=pt (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[56-10E] Obituary: Chicago Tribune Tue, Dec 31, 1935 - Page 12. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/354867873/) [online 
access verified on December 20, 2024] 
	  
[56-10F] Obituary: Chicago Daily News. December 31, 1935. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 

[Exhibit 56-11] Josephine Rooney 
	  
[56-11A] Death Certificate - "Illinois, Cook County Deaths, 1871-1998," database, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N7Z9-MM5 : 8 March 
2018), Josephine Rooney, 11 Jun 1879; citing , Cook, Illinois, United States, source reference 3522, record number 980, Cook County Courthouse, Chicago; FHL 
microfilm 1,031,422. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[56-11B] Obituary: Chicago Daily Telegraph Thu, Jun 05, 1879 - Page 4. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/756129605/) 
[online access verified on December 20, 2024] 

[56-11C] Obituary: Chicago Daily News. June 5, 1879. Michael E. Byczek obtained a printed copy from microfilm at the Chicago Public Library, main branch 
(date retrieved unknown).  

[Source 1840] "United States, Census, 1840", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:XHBJ-X47 : Fri Mar 08 05:11:03 UTC 2024), Entry 
for Wm Booney, 1840. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Source 1855] Illinois State Archives; Springfield, Illinois; Illinois State Census, 1855; Archive Collection Number: 103.008; Roll Number: 2188; Line: 11. 
Ancestry.com. Illinois, U.S., State Census Collection, 1825-1865 [database on-line]. Lehi, UT, USA: Ancestry.com Operations Inc, 2008. https://
www.ancestry.com/search/collections/1079/records/913171 (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Source 1860A] "United States, Census, 1860", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:MXCM-83L : Mon Jul 08 05:02:34 UTC 2024), 
Entry for William Rooney and Johanna Rooney, 1860. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Source 1860B] "Illinois, Non-Population Census Schedules, 1850-1880," images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:3QS7-994R-77CH?
cc=2287447&wc=MV29-4W5%3A1058016601%2C1058018001 : 21 May 2014), 1860 Agriculture > Cook > image 56 of 96; citing NARA microfilm publication 
T1133 (Washington, D.C.: National Archives and Records Administration, n.d.). [online access verified on December 19, 2024] 

[Source 1865A] "Illinois, State Census, 1865", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:XCKC-RFY : Sat Jul 06 15:38:22 UTC 2024), Entry 
for Wm Rooney, 1865. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Source 1865B] "Illinois, State Census, 1865", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:XCKC-R9Y : Tue Jul 09 10:17:43 UTC 2024), Entry 
for Hone Raney, 1865. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 
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[Source 1870A] "United States, Census, 1870", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:M67J-1N3 : Tue Mar 05 07:18:56 UTC 2024), Entry 
for Patrick Boutcher and Anna Boutcher, 1870. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Source 1870B] "United States, Census, 1870", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:M67J-XQ7 : Sun Jul 14 06:34:16 UTC 2024), Entry 
for Caeser Pulett and Elizabeth Pulett, 1870. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Source 1870C] "United States, Census, 1870", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:M64P-637 : Tue Mar 05 07:58:09 UTC 2024), Entry 
for John Rooney and Ellen Rooney, 1870. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Source 1870D] "United States, Census, 1870", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:M6W4-NVF : Fri Jul 19 09:53:37 UTC 2024), Entry 
for Jas Oconnor and Ellen Oconnor, 1870. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Source 1870E] "United States, Census, 1870", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:M64R-NB8 : Tue Mar 05 07:45:36 UTC 2024), 
Entry for William Rooney and Rooney, 1870. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Source 1880] "United States, Census, 1880", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:MXJQ-MF8 : Sat Mar 09 07:26:07 UTC 2024), Entry 
for William Rooney and Julia Rooney, 1880. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Exhibit 57] Churches 
	  
[57A] Byczek, Michael E. “Present-day Second Location of St. Mary’s Church on Michigan and Madison in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2023. 
	  
[57B] Refer to citation for Exhibit 16A 
	  
[57C] Byczek, Michael E. “Present-day Third Location of St. Mary’s Church on Wabash and Madison in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2023. 
	  
[57D] Byczek, Michael E. “St. Patrick’s Church in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[57E] Byczek, Michael E. “Holy Name Cathedral in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2023. 

[Citation 58] Find a Grave Online Memorials 

Find a Grave, database and images (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/101026719/william-rooney: accessed December 21, 2024), memorial page for William 
Rooney (1811–1885), Find a Grave Memorial ID 101026719, citing Calvary Catholic Cemetery, Evanston, Cook County, Illinois, USA; Maintained by Michael E. 
Byczek (contributor 48832837). 

Find a Grave, database and images (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/101027149/julia-rooney: accessed December 21, 2024), memorial page for Julia Phalen 
Rooney (1816–1885), Find a Grave Memorial ID 101027149, citing Calvary Catholic Cemetery, Evanston, Cook County, Illinois, USA; Maintained by Michael E. 
Byczek (contributor 48832837). 

Find a Grave, database and images (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/276036883/katherine-talbot: accessed December 21, 2024), memorial page for 
Katherine “Kittie” Rooney Talbot (1849–1899), Find a Grave Memorial ID 276036883, citing Calvary Catholic Cemetery, Evanston, Cook County, Illinois, USA; 
Maintained by Michael E. Byczek (contributor 48832837). 
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Find a Grave, database and images (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/101027435/josephine_a-rooney: accessed December 21, 2024), memorial page for 
Josephine A Rooney (1856–1879), Find a Grave Memorial ID 101027435, citing Calvary Catholic Cemetery, Evanston, Cook County, Illinois, USA; Maintained 
by Michael E. Byczek (contributor 48832837). 

Find a Grave, database and images (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/276412021/hannah-brophy: accessed December 21, 2024), memorial page for Hannah 
Rooney Brophy (1843–1923), Find a Grave Memorial ID 276412021, citing Calvary Catholic Cemetery, Evanston, Cook County, Illinois, USA; Maintained by 
Michael E. Byczek (contributor 48832837). 

Find a Grave, database and images (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/101027313/hugh-rooney: accessed December 21, 2024), memorial page for Hugh 
Rooney (1838–1881), Find a Grave Memorial ID 101027313, citing Calvary Catholic Cemetery, Evanston, Cook County, Illinois, USA; Maintained by Michael E. 
Byczek (contributor 48832837). 

Find a Grave, database and images (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/276121553/hugh-rooney: accessed December 21, 2024), memorial page for Hugh 
Rooney (1780–1860), Find a Grave Memorial ID 276121553, citing Church of the Sacred Heart Graveyard, Gortnahoo, County Tipperary, Ireland; Maintained by 
Michael E. Byczek (contributor 48832837). 

Find a Grave, database and images (https://www.findagrave.com/memorial/276121454/alice-rooney: accessed December 21, 2024), memorial page for Alice 
Dwyer Rooney (1780–1866), Find a Grave Memorial ID 276121454, citing Church of the Sacred Heart Graveyard, Gortnahoo, County Tipperary, Ireland; 
Maintained by Michael E. Byczek (contributor 48832837). 

[Exhibit 58] William Rooney Death Certificate - "Illinois, Cook County Deaths, 1871-1998," database, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/1:1:N7VW-C4D : 8 March 2018), William Rooney, 05 May 1885; citing , Cook, Illinois, United States, source reference cn 63257, record number 45, Cook 
County Courthouse, Chicago; FHL microfilm 1,030,909. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 59] William Rooney Obituaries 
	  
[59A] Article - Chicago Tribune. May 6, 1885. Michael E. Byczek obtained a printed copy from microfilm at the Chicago Public Library, main branch (date 
retrieved unknown). 
	  
[59B] The Inter Ocean Wed, May 06, 1885 - Page 2. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/34469820/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024] 
	  
[59C] Article - Chicago Evening Journal. May 6, 1885. Michael E. Byczek obtained a printed copy from microfilm at the Chicago Public Library, main branch 
(date retrieved unknown). 
	  
[59D] Chicago Tribune Thu, May 07, 1885 - Page 8. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349266981/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024] 
	  
[59E] The Inter Ocean Thu, May 07, 1885 - Page 8. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/34469868/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024] 
	  
[59F] Chicago Daily News. May 8, 1885. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 
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[Exhibit 60] Julia Rooney Death Certificate - "Illinois, Cook County Deaths, 1871-1998," database, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:N7WQ-
BMK : 9 March 2018), Julia Rooney, 13 Dec 1885; citing , Cook, Illinois, United States, source reference cn 74807, record number 91, Cook County Courthouse, 
Chicago; FHL microfilm 1,030,912. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 61] Julia Rooney Obituaries 
	  
[61A] Chicago Tribune Tue, Dec 15, 1885 - Page 8. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349827579/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024] 
	  
[61B] The Inter Ocean Tue, Dec 15, 1885 - Page 8. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/34349071/) [online access verified on 
December 20, 2024] 
	  
[61C] Chicago Daily News. December 16, 1885. Retrieved from genealogybank.com (date retrieved unknown). 

[Exhibit 62] Calvary Cemetery 
	  
[62A] Byczek, Michael E. “The William and Julia Rooney Family Plot at Calvary Cemetery in Evanston, IL”. Collection of Photographs. 2016. 
	  
[62B] Michael E. Byczek and his father Michael M. Byczek have requested copies of grave ownership and burial records directly from Calvary Cemetery in 
Evanston, IL (in-person and through written request) starting in 1993. This is an ongoing research effort as more graves are located. 

[Exhibit 63] Hugh Rooney and Alice Dwyer's Children 
	  
[63A] Baptism of John Rooney - Gortnahoe; County of Tipperary; Diocese of Cashel and Emly. Baptisms, May 1810 to Oct. 1810. Catholic Parish Registers at the 
NLI. https://registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000632725_017 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[63B] Baptism of William Rooney - Gortnahoe; County of Tipperary; Diocese of Cashel and Emly. Baptisms, Sep. 1811 to Dec. 1811. Catholic Parish Registers at 
the NLI. https://registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000632725_021 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[63C] Baptism of James Rooney - Gortnahoe; County of Tipperary; Diocese of Cashel and Emly. Baptisms, Aug. 1813 to Dec. 1813. Catholic Parish Registers at 
the NLI. https://registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000632725_029 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[63D] Baptism of Peter Rooney - Ballingarry; County of Tipperary; Diocese of Cashel and Emly. Baptisms, Nov. 1814 to Jan. 1815. Catholic Parish Registers at 
the NLI. https://registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000632641_010 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[63E] Baptism of twins Ellen and Nancy Rooney - Gortnahoe; County of Tipperary; Diocese of Cashel and Emly. Baptisms, Dec. 1816 to Mar. 1817. Catholic 
Parish Registers at the NLI. https://registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000632725_041 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[63F] Baptism of Edmund Rooney - Gortnahoe; County of Tipperary; Diocese of Cashel and Emly. Baptisms, Dec. 1819 to Feb. 1820. Catholic Parish Registers at 
the NLI. https://registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000632725_054 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
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[63G] Baptism of Margaret Rooney - Gortnahoe; County of Tipperary; Diocese of Cashel and Emly. Baptisms, Feb. 1822 to May 1822. Catholic Parish Registers 
at the NLI. https://registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000632725_065 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[63H] Baptism of Catherine Rooney - Gortnahoe; County of Tipperary; Diocese of Cashel and Emly. Baptisms, June 1829 to July 1829. Catholic Parish Registers 
at the NLI. https://registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000632725_104 (online access verified on December 18, 2024) 

[Exhibit 64] Biography of Edmund D. Tobin 

Calumet Book & Engraving Company. Album of genealogy and biography, Cook County, Illinois : with portraits. Chicago. Calumet Book & Engraving Co. 1897. 
Pages 626-27.  

Digitized Version: Album of genealogy and biography, Cook County, Illinois : with portraits. Family Search. https://www.familysearch.org/library/books/records/
item/397828-album-of-genealogy-and-biography-cook-county-illinois-with-portraits (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 65] Rooney's Cross 
	  
[65A] Clonmel Chronicle - April 27, 1861. Retrieved from Findmypast. https://www.findmypast.com/search-newspapers (online access verified on December 19, 
2024). 
	  
[65B] Tipperary Free Press - April 29, 1862. Retrieved from Findmypast. https://www.findmypast.com/search-newspapers (online access verified on December 19, 
2024). 

[Exhibit 66] Marriage of William Gannon and Catherine Rooney 
	  
[66A] Marriage Church Record - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/3:1:S3HT-DHG9-S2S?cc=1452409&wc=M66G-13D%3A40147601%2C40290401 : 20 May 2014), St Mary of the Assumption Parish (Chicago: Old, 
Wabash) > Baptisms, marriages 1833-1863 > image 137 of 482; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 
2024) 
	  
[66B] Biography of William Gannon 

Portrait and Biographical Record of Jasper, Marshall and Grundy Counties, Iowa. Biographical Publishing Co., Chicago. 1894. Pages 390-91.  

Digitalized Version: Google Books. https://www.google.com/books/edition/Portrait_and_Biographical_Record_of_Jasp/41rf1CdQicYC?hl=en&gbpv=0 (online 
access verified on December 17, 2024). 

[66C] Illinois State Archives; Springfield, Illinois; Illinois State Census, 1855; Archive Collection Number: 103.008; Roll Number: 2189; Line: 21. Ancestry.com. 
Illinois, U.S., State Census Collection, 1825-1865 [database on-line]. Lehi, UT, USA: Ancestry.com Operations Inc, 2008. https://www.ancestry.com/search/
collections/1079/records/918988 (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Exhibit 67] Michael and Ellen Gannon 
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[67A] John Gannon Baptism (son of William and Catherine) - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch 
(https://familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:S3HT-DHG9-SVH?cc=1452409&wc=M66G-13D%3A40147601%2C40290401 : 20 May 2014), St Mary of the 
Assumption Parish (Chicago: Old, Wabash) > Baptisms, marriages 1833-1863 > image 304 of 482; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online 
access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[67B] John Gannon Baptism (son of Michael and Ellen) - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://
familysearch.org/ark:/61903/3:1:S3HY-6SMS-9FC?cc=1452409&wc=M66P-HPN%3A40280601%2C40413901 : 20 May 2014), St Patrick Parish (Chicago: Old, 
Adams St) > Baptisms 1846-1856 vol 1 > image 75 of 206; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 68] James Rooney Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch(https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/3:1:S3HY-6SM9-YWC?cc=1452409&wc=M66P-HPN%3A40280601%2C40413901 : 20 May 2014), St Patrick Parish (Chicago: Old, Adams St) > 
Baptisms 1846-1856 vol 1 > image 20 of 206; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 69] Marriage of Edmund Rooney and Catherine Phelan - Ballycallan; County of Kilkenny; Diocese of Ossory. Marriages, Apr. 1852 to Feb. 1855. 
Catholic Registers at the NLI. https://registers.nli.ie/pages/vtls000635296_100 (online access verified on December 18, 2024).  

[Exhibit 70] Alice Rooney Death Certificate 
	  
[70A] Death of Alice Roney in 1866. Department of Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, Sport and Media. (https://civilrecords.irishgenealogy.ie) https://
civilrecords.irishgenealogy.ie/churchrecords/details-civil/97f25222527770?b=https://civilrecords.irishgenealogy.ie/churchrecords/civil-perform-search.jsp?
namefm=Alice&namel=rooney&exact=&name2fm=&name2l=&location=&yyfrom=&yyto=&type=B&type=M&type=D&century=&decade=&sort=&pageSize=
100&ddBfrom=&mmBfrom=&yyBfrom=&ddMfrom=&mmMfrom=&yyMfrom=&ddDfrom=&mmDfrom=&yyDfrom=&ddPfrom=&mmPfrom=&yyPfrom=&dd
Bto=&mmBto=&yyBto=&ddMto=&mmMto=&yyMto=&ddDto=&mmDto=&yyDto=&ddPto=&mmPto=&yyPto=&locationB=&locationM=&locationD=&locati
onP=&keywordb=&keywordm=&keywordd=&keywordp=&event=D&district=Urlingford&submit=Search (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[70B] Death of Alice Roney in 1876. Department of Tourism, Culture, Arts, Gaeltacht, Sport and Media. (https://civilrecords.irishgenealogy.ie) https://
civilrecords.irishgenealogy.ie/churchrecords/details-civil/7306807724539?b=https://civilrecords.irishgenealogy.ie/churchrecords/civil-perform-search.jsp?
namefm=Alice&namel=rooney&exact=&name2fm=&name2l=&location=&yyfrom=&yyto=&type=B&type=M&type=D&century=&decade=&sort=&pageSize=
100&ddBfrom=&mmBfrom=&yyBfrom=&ddMfrom=&mmMfrom=&yyMfrom=&ddDfrom=&mmDfrom=&yyDfrom=&ddPfrom=&mmPfrom=&yyPfrom=&dd
Bto=&mmBto=&yyBto=&ddMto=&mmMto=&yyMto=&ddDto=&mmDto=&yyDto=&ddPto=&mmPto=&yyPto=&locationB=&locationM=&locationD=&locati
onP=&keywordb=&keywordm=&keywordd=&keywordp=&event=D&district=Urlingford&submit=Search (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 71] Hugh and Alice Rooney Farm 
	  
[71A] The 1831 Tithe Defaulters. Findmypast. https://search.findmypast.com/search-world-records/the-1831-tithe-defaulters (online access verified on December 
19, 2024) 
	  
[71B] Thurles Poor Law Union, “Fennor Rate Book 1842,” Tipperary Archive, accessed December 19, 2024, https://www.tippstudiesdigital.ie/items/show/440. 
	  
[71C] "Ireland, Valuation Office Books, 1831-1856", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:QVM2-G611 : Thu Mar 07 12:17:09 UTC 
2024), Entry for Allice Rowney. (online access verified on December 19, 2024).  
	  
[71D] 
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Version A: "Ireland, Valuation Office Books, 1831-1856", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:QVML-RS3L : Fri Mar 08 13:06:09 UTC 
2024), Entry for Allice Rowney, 1846. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

Version B: "Ireland, Valuation Office Books, 1831-1856", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:QVML-RSF5 : Sun Mar 10 14:27:46 
UTC 2024), Entry for Allice Rowney, 1846. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 
	  
[71E] "Ireland, Valuation Office Books, 1831-1856", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:QVML-R3FS : Sun Mar 10 21:38:13 UTC 
2024), Entry for Allice Rowney, 1848. (online access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[71F] "Ireland, Valuation Office Books, 1831-1856", , FamilySearch (https://www.familysearch.org/ark:/61903/1:1:QVM2-J7PH : Sun Mar 10 21:55:03 UTC 
2024), Entry for Alice Rooney, 1849. (online access verified on December 19, 2024). 

[71G] Griffiths Valuation. AskAboutIreland.ie and the Cultural Heritage Project. https://www.askaboutireland.ie/griffith-valuation/index.xml?
action=doNameSearch&Submit.x=23&Submit.y=14&familyname=rooney&firstname=&countyname=TIPPERARY,+SOUTH+RIDING (online access verified on 
December 18, 2024) 

[71H] Landed Estates Court Rentals 1850-1885. Findmypast. https://search.findmypast.com/search-world-records/landed-estates-court-rentals-1850-1885 (online 
access verified on December 19, 2024) 

[Exhibit 72] Accounts and Papers of the House of Commons. Volume 42. 1846. Page 393. Great Britain. Parliament. House of Commons. Retrieved from Google 
Books. https://www.google.com/books/edition/Accounts_and_Papers_of_the_House_of_Comm/E3RbAAAAQAAJ?hl=en&gbpv=0 (online access verified on 
December 19, 2024) 

[Exhibit 73] 
	  
[73A] Tipperary Vindicator. October 13, 1847. Retrieved from Findmypast. https://www.findmypast.com/search-newspapers (online access verified on December 
19, 2024). 
	  
[73B] Tipperary Vindicator. December 18, 1844. Retrieved from Findmypast. https://www.findmypast.com/search-newspapers (online access verified on 
December 19, 2024). 

[Exhibit 74] Land Maps 
	  
[74A] Catholic Parish Boundaries - NLI’s collection of Catholic parish register microfilms. https://registers.nli.ie/ (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[74B] Urard Townland, Co. Tipperary. Irish OpenStreetMap community. https://www.townlands.ie/tipperary/slievardagh/fennor/fennor/urard/ (online access 
verified on December 18, 2024) 
	  
[74C] Screenshot of Google Maps. https://www.google.com/maps [saved December 1, 2024] 
	  
[74D] Screenshot of Google Maps. https://www.google.com/maps [saved December 1, 2024] 
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[74E] Screenshot of Map and Overlay for Griffiths Index. Refer to citation for Exhibit 71G. 
	  
[74F] Screenshot of Map and Overlay for Griffiths Index. Refer to citation for Exhibit 71G.  
	  
[74G] Screenshot of Map and Overlay for Griffiths Index. Refer to citation for Exhibit 71G. 
	  
[74H] Screenshot of Map and Overlay for Griffiths Index. Refer to citation for Exhibit 71G. 
	  
[74I] Screenshot of Map and Overlay for Griffiths Index. Refer to citation for Exhibit 71G. 
	  
[74J] Screenshot of Map and Overlay for Griffiths Index. Refer to citation for Exhibit 71G. 
	  
[74K] Screenshot of Map and Overlay for Griffiths Index. Refer to citation for Exhibit 71G. 
	  
[74L] Screenshot of Google Maps. https://www.google.com/maps [saved December 1, 2024] 
	  
[74M] Screenshot of Google Maps. https://www.google.com/maps [saved December 1, 2024] 

[Exhibit 75]  
	  
[75A] Julia Periolat Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/3:1:S3HY-6GTZ-W62?cc=1452409&wc=M66L-5ZS%3A39539601%2C39791501 : 20 May 2014), Holy Family Parish (North Chicago) > Baptisms 
1871-1899 > image 93 of 822; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[75B] George Boucher Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/3:1:S3HT-6273-26D?cc=1452409&wc=M66P-SNG%3A40325201%2C40339301 : 20 May 2014), St Pius V Parish (Chicago: Ashland Ave) > Baptisms 
1873-1892 > image 53 of 277; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 76] 
	  
[76A] James Sanders Baptism - Retrieved from the Findmypast online database titled “Chicago Roman Catholic Parish Baptisms”. https://search.findmypast.com/
search-world-records/chicago-roman-catholic-parish-baptisms (online access verified on December 19, 2024). NOTE: The transcription for the digital scan 
identifies Old St. Mary of the Assumption Catholic Church, but the digital version of the same ledger book from the Family Search online digital scans do not 
match.  
	  
[76B] Margaret Sanders Baptism - Retrieved from the Findmypast online database titled “Chicago Roman Catholic Parish Baptisms”. https://
search.findmypast.com/search-world-records/chicago-roman-catholic-parish-baptisms (online access verified on December 19, 2024). NOTE: The transcription for 
the digital scan identifies Old St. Mary of the Assumption Catholic Church, but the digital version of the same ledger book from the Family Search online digital 
scans do not match.  

[Exhibit 77] 
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[77A] Christopher Wright Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/3:1:S3HY-6SZ9-55V?cc=1452409&wc=M66P-HP6%3A40415601%2C40415602 : 20 May 2014), St Thomas the Apostle Parish (Chicago: Woodlawn Ave) 
> Baptisms 1873-1915 > image 2 of 148; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 
	  
[77B] Andrew Wright Baptism - "Illinois, Chicago, Catholic Church Records, 1833-1925," database with images, FamilySearch (https://familysearch.org/ark:/
61903/3:1:S3HT-DY4S-12H?cc=1452409&wc=M662-536%3A39541901%2C39541902 : 20 May 2014), Nativity of Our Lord Parish (Chicago: 37th St) > 
Baptisms 1871-1892 > image 252 of 411; Catholic Church parishes, Chicago Diocese, Chicago. (online access verified on December 17, 2024) 

[Exhibit 78] 2970 Archer 
	  
[78A] Byczek, Michael E. “John Rooney’s Family Home located at 2970 Archer in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2022. 
	  
[78B] The Chicago Chronicle Sun, Jul 19, 1896 - Page 22. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/668090035/) [online access 
verified on December 20, 2024]. 

[Exhibit 79] About the Biographer 
	  
[79A] Byczek, Michael E. “Profile Photo in the West Loop neighborhood of Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2024. 
	  
[79B] Byczek, Michael E. “Michael E. Byczek at the William and Julia Rooney Family Residence located at 43 E. Division in Chicago, IL”. Photograph. 2017. 
	  
[79C] Byczek, Michael E. “Michael E. Byczek at the William and Julia Rooney Family Plot at Calvary Cemetery in Evanston, IL”. Collection of Photographs. 
2016. 

[Citation Appendix] Representative Real Estate Deeds and Title Search - Michael E. Byczek conducted extensive research of William and Julia Rooney’s real 
estate ownership through the Cook County Recorder of Deeds (now called the Cook County Clerk’s Recording Division). This research included in-person review 
of tract books, microfiche archives, non-certified copies of documents obtained through the Cook County Recorder of Deeds, and digital access to select images 
that are available online through the website cited below. Michael E. Byczek personally compiled an unofficial title search of these properties for genealogical 
purposes as a licensed Illinois attorney. This ongoing research started in 2006 with regular updates as new information is identified. 

Digital Access to Real Estate Documents - Cook County, Illinois deed records, ca. 1872-1886. Family Search. https://www.familysearch.org/search/catalog/447817 
(online access verified on December 17, 2024). 

[Citation Appendix II-A] Julia Rooney's Original Will - Michael E. Byczek personally obtained access to original paper court files related to Julia Rooney’s 
probate through the Cook County Clerk of Court Archives in 2006. He made photocopies of these documents, in person, which are now part of his personal 
genealogical collection. Julia Rooney’s original Will is one of those documents from the original probate files.  

[Citation Appendix II-B] The Inter Ocean Thu, Apr 29, 1886 - Page 7. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/33847614/) [online 
access verified on December 20, 2024] 

[Citation Appendix II-C] Chicago Tribune Thu, May 20, 1886 - Page 8. Retrieved from newspapers.com (https://www.newspapers.com/image/349711781/) [online 
access verified on December 20, 2024]
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